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KASIKORNBANK PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED AND SUBSIDIARIES

Financial Statements
For Each of the Years Ended December 31, 2005 and 2004
 and

Audit Report of Certified Public Accountant



AUDIT REPORT OF CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANT

To the Shareholders of KASIKORNBANK PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED

I have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of KASIKORNBANK PUBLIC
COMPANY LIMITED and its subsidiaries as at December 31, 2005 and 2004, and the consolidated
statements of income, changes in shareholders’ equity and cash flows for each of the years then
ended. I have also audited the balance sheets of KASIKORNBANK PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED
as at December 31, 2005 and 2004, and the statements of income, changes in shareholders’ equity and
cash flows for each of the years then ended. The management of the KASIKORNBANK PUBLIC
COMPANY LIMITED is responsible for the correctness and completeness of the information
presented in these financial statements. My responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial
statements based on my audits.

I conducted my audits in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards. Those standards
require that I plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence
supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing
the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating
the overall financial statement presentation. I believe that my audits provide a reasonable basis for
my opinion.

In my opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
consolidated financial positions of KASIKORNBANK PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED and its
subsidiaries as at December 31, 2005 and 2004, and the consolidated results of their operations and
their cash flows for each of the years then ended, and the separaté financial positions of
KASIKORNBANK PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED and the results of its operations and its cash
flows for the same years, in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles.

R, Qimaharem.

Supot Singhasaneh
Certified Public Accountant
Registration No. 2826

KPMG Phoomchai Audit Ltd.
Bangkok
February 21, 2006



ASSETS
Cash
Interbank and money market items
Domestic items
Interest bearing
Non-interest bearing
Foreign items
Interest bearing
Non-interest bearing
Total Interbank and Money Market Items - net
Securities purchased under resale agreements
Investments
Current investments - net
Long-term investments - net
Investments in subsidiaries and asscciated companies - net
Total [nvestments - net
Loans and accrued interest receivables
Loans
Accrued interest receivables
Total Loans and Accrued Interest Receivables
Less Allowance for doubtful accounts
Less Revaluation allowance for debt restructuring
Total Loans and Accrued {nterest Receivables - net
Properties foreclosed - net
Customers' liability under acceptances
Premises and cquipment - net
Intangible assets - net
Derivative revaluation
Other assels - net

Total Asscis

BALANCE SHEETS

AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2005 AND 2004

Notes

6
32,7,

33,8,9

34,10

35,11

36,12

37,14
38,15

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

KASIKORNBANK PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED AND SUBSIDIARIES

Baht
Consolidated The Bank
2005 2004 2005 2004
14,912,704 474 13,536,066,960 14,912,318,996 13,535,831,175
4,925,527,530 1218,278,347 4,829,743,069 1,137,863,638
1,709,243,762 2,135,366,755 1,744,584,872 2,150,079,907

58,794,848,185

71,969,251,131

58,794,848,185

71,969,251,131

498,990,221 926,985,367 498,990,221 926.985,867
65,928,609,698 76,249,882,100 65,868,166,347 76,184,180,543
9,500,000,000 19,040,000,000 9,500,000,000 19,040,000,000

50,105,261,153

33,325,170,944

49,410,701,921

31,657,896,392

49,009,070,726 76,769,923,923 47,688,866,012 75,118,956,579
450,331,758 462,378,420 8,967,036,598 10,635,877,986
99,564,663,637 110,557,473,287 106,066,604,531 117,412,730,957

626,946,285,965
1,745,358,821

592,588,468,951
2,455,343,998

621,090,152,731
1,318,943,009

578,117,032,454
1,318,031,786

628,691,644,786
(34,767,312,880)
(2,671,805,187)

595,043,812,949
(41,468,136,470)
(4,878,194,345)

622,409,095,740
(26,721,376,432)
(2,354,976,482)

579,435,064,240
(29,368,186,450)
(2,297,055,189)

591,252,526,719
17,462,672,827
857,411,186
21,440,593,140
4.900,016,184
3,278,461,492
8,210,906,386

543,697,482,134
17,397,232,399
743,368,580
19,747,325472
3,523,349,656
6,348,766,754
9,133,173,694

593,332,742,826
12,603,188,405
857,411,186
20,807,158,160
3,403,864,276
3,278,461,492
7,069,634,121

547,769,822,601
12,734,511,528
743,368,580
19,220,398,395
2,988,529,800
6,348,766,754
8,385,780,007

837,308,566,243

824,974,121,036

837,699,550,340

824,363,920,340




BALANCE SHEETS
AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2005 AND 2004

KASIKORNBANK PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED AND SUBSIDIARIES

Baht
Consolidated The Bank
Notes 2005 2004 2005 2004
LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY
Deposits 16
Deposits in baht 684,055,736,156 701,712,987,751 685,185,853,882 702,127,816,843
Deposits in foreign currencies 3,725,483,969 3,856,728,173 3,725,483,969 3,856,728,173
Total Deposits 687,781,220,125 705,569,715,924 688,911,337,851 705,984,545,016
Interbank and monéy market items 17
Domestic items
Interest bearing 15,681,174,620 8,067,531,7121 15,422,208,46§ 7,707.531,721
Non-interest bearing 3,384,633,831 3,182,510,145 3,384,633,831 3,182,510,145
Foreign items
Interest bearing 151,826,184 18,777,373 151,826,184 18,777,373
Non-interest bearing 290,142,159 256,129,941 290,142,159 256,129,941
Total Interbank and Money Market ltems 19,507,776,794 11,524,949,180 19,248,810,635 11,164,949,180
Liability payable on demand : 5,904,216,881 7,426,010,070 5,904,216,881 7,426,010,070
Borrowings ’
Short-term borrowings 18 7,556,600,000 3,843,000,000 1,556,600,000 3,843,000,000
Long-term borrowings . 19 20,170,373,919 19,767,595,098 20,170,373,919 19,767,595,058
Total Borrowings 27,726973,919 23,610,595,098 27,726,973,919 23,610,595,098
Bank's liability under acceptances 857,411,186 743,363,580 857,411,186 743,368,580
Derivative revaluation 3,034,382,054 1,440,906,348 3,034,382,054 1,440,906,348
Other liabilitics 14,380,984,002 7,992,919,855 13,902,324,566 7,645,908,743
Total Liabilities 759,192,964,961 758.308,465,055 759,585,457,092 758,016,283,035

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.



Shareholders' equity
Share capital
Authorized share capital
3,048,614,697 ordinary shares, Baht 10 par value
Issuved and paid-up share capital ’
2,373,293,667 ordinary shares, Baht 10 par value
2,363,624,537 ordinary shares, Baht 10 par value
Premium on ordinary shares
Appraisal surplus on asset revaluation
Revaluation {deficit) on investments
Retained eamings
Approoriated
Legal reserve

Unappropriated

Minority interests
Total Shareholders' Equity
Total Liabilities and Shareholders' Equity

Off-balance sheet items - contingencies
Aval to bills and guarantees of loans
Liability under unmatured import bills
Letters of credit

Other contingencies

KASIKORNBANK PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED AND SUBSIDIARIES

BALANCE SHEETS
AS OF DECEMBER 31,2005 AND 2084

Baht

Consolidated

The Bank

Notes 2005

2004

2005

2004

21

130,486,146,970

30,486,146,970

30,486,146,970

30,486,146,97¢

23,732,936,670

17,737,192,156

37,14 10,024,386,669
32,7 (529,067,201)
23 1,470,000,000

25,678,644,954

23,636,245370
17,555,259,156
8,762,354,744
951,995,819

770,000,000
14,671,782,216

23,732,936,670

17,737,192,156
10.024,386,669
(529,067,201)

1,470,000,000
25,678,644,954

23.636,245370
17,555,259,156
8,762,354,744
951,995,819

770,000,000
14,671,782,216

78,114,093,248 66,347,637,305 78,114,093,248 66,347,637,305
1,508,034 318,018,676 - -
78,115,601,282 66,665,655,981 78,114,093 ,248 66,347.637,305

837,308,566,243

824,974,121,036

837,699,550,340

824,363,920,340

28
747,376,287
5,546,380,752
13,627,410,768
829,778,731214

(s Maeont

(Pol.Gen. Pow Sarasin)

Vice Chairman

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

614,862,334
4,290,601,894
14,103,370,881
532,559,403 640

741,376,287
5,546,380,752
13,627,410,768
829,643,286 486

617,266,534
4,290,601,894
14,103,370,881
532,843314,218

(FoTleione Lo

{Banthoon Lamsam)

Dircctor and Chicf Executive Officer



KASIKORNBANK PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED AND SUBSIDIARIES

STATEMENTS OF INCOME

FOR EACH OF THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2005 AND 2004

Interest and dividend income
Loans
taterbank and money market items
investments
Total Intcrest and Dividend tncome
Interest expense
Deposits
Interbank and money market items
Short-term borrowings
Long-term bormowings
Total Interest Expense
Nel income from interest and dividends
Bad debt and doubtful accounts (reversal)
Loss on debt restructuring
Net income from interest and dividends after bad debt and doubtful sccounts (reversal)
and foss on debt restructuring
Noz- interest income
Gain on investments
Share of profit (loss) from investments on cquity method
Fees and service income
Accepuances, aval end guarunices
Others
Gaia on exchanges
Loss on transfer of financial assets
Other income
Total Non-interest Income
Non-interest expenses
Persoune} cxpenses
Premises and equipment expenses
Taxes and dutics
Fees and service expenses
Directors’ remuneration
Loss on impairment of properties foreclosed
Contributions W Financial Instritutions Development Fund
Other cxpenses
Tots) Non-interest Expenses
Income before income tax
Income tax expense
Net income before minority interests
Minority inierests in net income
Net income
Basic camings per share (Baht)

Weighted average number of ordinary shases (shares)

(s %wcf;m}_

{Pol.Gen, Pow Sarasin)

Vice Chaiman

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

Notes

32,314

34,25
35,26

32,7
32

318
32

37,14

36,12

116

347,21
21

Baht
Consolidated The Bank
2005 2004 2005 2004
31,627,544,804 27,712,132,537 30,919,200,k81 25,977.970,262
2,387,346,643 1,526,553,323 2,385,997,529 1,524,696,606
4,050,596,523 3,760,407,049 4,024,930,564 3,731,076,167
38,065,487,970 32,999,092,909 37,330,128,274 31,233,743,035

5,702,845,936 5,547,532,642 5,704,409,791 5,547,532,642
187,225,641 . 230,474,109 350,522,572 224,198,606
59,367,971 4,985,975 59,367,971 4,985,975
1,133,608,653 1,249,657,68) 1,133,608,653 1,249,657,683
7,283,048,201 7,032,650,409 7.247,908,987 7,026,374,906
30,782,439,769 25,966,442,500 30,082,219,287 24,207,368,129
598,882,600 (6,158,539,182) 1,104,350,028 (4,864,473,590)
3,062,989,520 8,919,082,807 2,431,230,822 6,328,951,038

27,120,567,643 23,205,898,875 26,546,638,437 22,742.890,68)
421,062,539 2,142,692,278 342,727,073 1,946,087,327
(35,362,032) 81,913,500 363,476,320 (160,175,561)
685,470,421 576,680,596 685,470,42{ 576,680,596
8,656,039,639 7,530,593,628 7,835,229,551 6,791,218,089
1,129,028,613 1,805,557,255 1,129,028,613 1,805,557,255
- (568,500,832) - -

1,439,765,130 580,358,676 1,106,401,917 462,552,783
12,302,004,310 12,149,295,101 11,462,333,895 11,421,920,489

7,840,623,913
3,524,525,701

6,563,891,188
13,814,492,999

7,381,768,414
3,408,744,087

6,266,698,981
3,714,870,417

1,677,186,209 1,385,627,200 1,618,034,904 1,332,372,820
2,968,575,454 3,209,593,214 2,889,987,140 3,053,149,870
72,473,028 55,160,494 65,425,528 47,592,994
201,007,680 705,227,221 62,920,665 545,5543936
2,825,981,852 2,801,852,879 2,825,981,852 2,801,852,879
2,315,560,775 §,311,482,832 1,957,322,824 1,062,254,396
21,425,934,612 19,847,333,027 20,210,185,414 18,824,347,293
17,996,637,347 15,507,860,94% 17,798,786,918 15,140,463,877

4,002,825,334 115,518,668 3,868,935,430 -
13,993,812,013 15,392,342,281 13,929,851,488 15,140,463,877

{63,960,525) (51,878,404) - -
13,929,851,488 15,340,463,877 13,929,851,488 15,340,463,877
5.87 6.49 587 6.49
2,371,366,311 2,362,466,73! 2,371,366,311 2,362,466,731

(BBl Lo

(Banthoon Lumsam)

Director and Chiefl Executive Officer
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KASIKORNBANK PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED AND SUBSIDIARIES

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

FOR EACH OF THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2005 AND 2004

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net income
Add(Less) Adjustments 10 reconcile net income to net
cash from operating activities
Depreciation and amortization
Bad debt and doubtful accounts (reversal)
Loss on debt restructuring
Interest income from amortization of revaluation allowance for debt restructuring
Loss on foreign exchange translation of long-term loans
(Gain) loss on revaluation of iavestments
(Reversal) loss on impairment of investments
Amortization of goodwill
Gain on disposal of securitics for investment
Amortization of premium and discount on debt instruments
Loss on impairment of investments io receivables
qus on impairment of foreclosed properties
Reversal of loss on impaimment of other assets
{Reversal) loss on impairment cfi;\umgible assets
Gain on disposal of premises and equipment
(Reversal) loss on impairment of premises and equipment
Reversal of loss on revaluation of premises and equipment
Lass on transfer of financial assets

Share of loss (profit) from investments heid on cquity method

Dividend income from subsidiaries and p
Amortization of discount on debentures
Decrease (increase) in accrued intcrest receivables
Decrease (increase) in other accrued income
Increase {decrease) in accrued interest payables
Increase in other accrued expenses
Increase (decrease) in other reserves
Minorily interests in net income
Net income from operations before changes in operating
assets and liabilities
(Increase) decrease in operating assets
Interbank and money market items (assets)
Securities purchased under resale agreements
lavestment for trading
Loans
Properties foreclosed

Other assets

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements,

Baht
Consolidated The Bank
2005 2004 2005 2004
13,629,851,488 15,340,463 877 13,929,851,488 15,340,463 877
1,617,439,984 1,504,231,070 1,531,009,802 1,430,913,405
598,882,600 {6,158,539,182) 1,104,350,028 (4,864,473,590)
3,062,989,520 8.919,082,807 2,431,230822 6,328951,038
(371,595,837) (1,511,663,615) (63,717,053) (237,967,825)
398,728,968 110,618,839 398,728,968 110,618,839
(75,991,573) 22,303,603 (15,991,5713) 22,303,603
(287,162,173) 19,660,386 (299,177,568) 2,487,133
56,372,882 6,461,730) - -
(261,195,472) (2,136,425,257) (164,844,610) (1,954,213 307)

1,223.230,506
178,119,005
201,007,680
(281,961,721)
(121,174,133)
(8.935972)
(1,416,000
(114,872,689)
35,362,032
38,390,462
4,049,853
709,985,177
193,464,762

221,841,390 -

1,566,217,259
1,190,415,793
63,960,525

1,272,792 462

705,227,221
(382,255,452)
175,013,696

(3,069.,145)
1,416,000
568,500,832
(81,913,500
106,424,242
4,041,988
515,601,260
(146,946,729)
(1,467,535972)
509,217,115
(49,564,914)

51,878,404

1,241,441 686
178,119,008
62,920,665
(245,970,487)
(121,174,133)
(8.973,124)
(1,416,000)
(114,872,689)
(363,476,320)
190,837,335
4,045,853
(911,222
224,165,577
220,726,922
1,531,867,077
1,190,415,793

1,269,959,198

545,554,936
(346,931,418)
175,013,696
(1,697,101)
1,416,000
160,175,561
320,453 985
4,041,988
167,070,186
(138,923,020
(1,468.241,201)
466,719,460

(49,564,914)

23,766,004,316

10,276,570,116
9,540,000,000
529,386,431

(51,322,700,837)
3,041,846,290

2,074,457,590

17,882,098,306

30,014,898,766
12,670,000,000
(202,081,980)
(70,554,908,474)
2,537,905,761
(6,117,386,900)

22,779,190,242

10,271,311,910
9,540,000,000
529,386,431
(50,660,468,287)
3373,214,077
4,431,549,802

17,284,130,529

29,043 337,326
12,670,000,000
(202,081,980)
(69.816,324331)
2,225,516,131
(5,679,987,657)



KASTKORNBANK PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED AND SUBSIDIARIES
STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
FOR EACH OF THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2005 AND 2004

Baht
Coasolidated The Bank
Notes 2005 2004 2005 2004
Increase (decrease) in operating liabilities
Deposits {(17,788,495,799) 20,623,739,347 (17,073,207,165) 20,762,437,793
Interbank and money market items (liabilities) 7,982,827,614 4,424,077,823 8,083,861,455 4,269,077,823
Liabilitics payable on demand (1,521,793,189) 384,192,467 (1,521,793,189) 384,192,467
Short-term borrowing 3,713,600,000 3,843,000,000 3,713,600,000 3,843,000,000
Other liabilities 4,992,963 886 366,509,977 4,896,861,294 272,681,009
Net Cash (Used in) Provided by Operating Activities (2,715,333,582) 15,872,045,093 {1,636,493,430) 15,055,979,110
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds frem disposal of available for safe investments 44,584,568,081 118,413,841,264 44375,573,441 118,335,757,613
Proceeds from redemption of held to maturity debt instruments 10,946,614 968 15,448,808,318 5,813,614,968 13,957,126,358
Proceeds from disposal of general investments 263,408,056 6,34’3‘310,805 256,400,738 6,143,905,395
Proceeds from redemption of share capital of subsidiaries - - 3,384,439,959 -
Purchase of available for sale investments (38,875,975,180) (92,521,853,312) (38,823,912,680) (92,520,093,155)
Proceeds from coliection of investments in receivables 207,941,401 - 171,567,341 -
Purchase of held to maturity debt instruments (7,063,207,971) {20,994,168,919) (2,5991,706,194) (18,543,754,363)
Purchase of general investments (450,769,883) (4,720{205,477) (523,728,448) (4,735,448,427)
Purchase of investments in subsidiaries (1,321,474,850) (1,383,449,577) (1,474,974,890) (1,383,449,577)
Purchase of investments in receivables - - {3,214,979,793) -
Proceeds from disposal of premises and equipment 12,916,878 4,064,561 11,417,492 2,295,453
Proceeds from disposal of intangible assets 23,987 -
Purchase of premises and equipment {1,212,568,708) (902,657,361) {1,059,274,478) (880,171,003)
Purchase of intangible assets (848,637,668) (948,467,479} (820,185,938) (906,698,757)
Nct Cash Provided by Investing Activities 6,242,839,071 18,739,222,823 5,104,251,518 19,469,469,537
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Decrease in longrterm borrowing - (39,967,145,600) - (39,967,145,600)
Issuance in ordinary shares 96,691,300 95,591,200 96,691,300 95,591,200
Increase in premium on share capital 181,933,000 182,841,415 181,933,000 182,841,415
Payment of dividend - (2,369,894,567) - (2,369,894,567) -
Dividend paid to minority interests {59,597,706) (85,671,917 - -
Net Cash Provided by (Used in) Financing Activities (2,150,867,973) (39,774,384‘,902) (2,091,270,267) (39,688,712,985)
Net increase (decreasc) in‘cash and cash equivalents 1,376,637,516 (5,163,116,986) 1,376,487,821 (5,163,264,338)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year 31,4 13,536,066,960 18,699,183,946 13,535,831,175 18,699,095,513
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year 31,4 14,912,704,476 13,536,066,960 14,912,318,936 13,535,831,175
SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURES OF CASH FLOWS INFORMATION
Cash paid {received) during the year
{nterest expense ' 7,061,206,811 8,500,186,381 7.027,182,065 8,494,616,107

{ncome tax 2,604,467,211 (117,985,084) 2,457,261,124 163,806,608

The accompanying notes are an integral pan of these financial statements.
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2.1

KASIKORNBANK PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DECEMBER 31, 2005 AND 2004

GENERAL INFORMATION

KASIKORNBANK PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED, the Bank, is a public company registered in the Kingdom of
Thailand and listed on the Stock Exchange of Thailand. The registered office of the Bank is at 1 Soi Kasikomthai,

Ratburana Road, Bangkok.

The principal activity of the Bank is commercial banking and the Bank conducts its businesses through a network of
branches covering all parts of Thailand and some major parts of the world. As of December 31, 2005 and 2004, the

Bank had a total staffing of 10,303 and 10,110 persons, respectively.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The consolidated and Bank-only financial statements are prepared in accordance with the regulations of the Stock
Exchange of Thailand (SET), dated January 22, 2001, regarding the “Preparation and Filing of Financial Statements
and Reports Concerning the Financial Status and Results of Business Operations of Listed Companies” (B.E. 2544),
and with the Bank of Thailand (BoT) directive dated May 10, 2001, prescribing the forms for balance sheets and profit
and loss accounts for commercial banks and in accordance with Thai Accounting Standards (“TAS") including related
interpretions and guidelines promulgated by the Federation of Accounting Professions ("FAP") and in conformity with

generally accepted accounting principles in Thailand.

The financial statements are presented in Thai Baht and prepared under the historical cost basis except as disclosed in

the accounting policies.

The financial statements issued for Thai reporting purposes are prepared in the Thai language. This English translation

of the financial statements has been prepared for the convenience of readers not conversant with the Thai language.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with TAS and generally accepted accounting standards in
Thailand requires management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of policies
and reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. The estimates and associated assumptions are based
on historical experience and various other factors that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances, the
results of which from the basis of making the judgements about carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are not

readily apparent from other sources.

The estimates and underlying assumptions used in the preparation of these financial statements are reviewed on an
ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognized in the period in which the estimate is revised if the
revision affects only that period, or in the period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both current

and future periods.



2.2

23

The consolidated financial statements comprise the Bank, its subsidiaries and its interest in associates.
Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are those entities controlled by the Bank. Control exists when the Bank has the power, directly or
indirectly, to govern the financial and operating policies of an entity so as to obtain benefits from its activities. The
financial statements of subsidiaries are included in the consolidated financial statements from the date that control

commences until the date that control ceases.
Associates

Associates are those entities in which the Bank has significant influence, but not control, over the financial and
operating policies. The consolidated financial statements include the Bank's share of the total recognized gains and
losses of associates on an equity accounted basis, from the date that significant influence commences until the date
that significant influence ceases. When the Bank's share of losses exceeds its interest in an associate, the Bank's
carrying amount of investment is reduced to nil and recognition of further losses is discontinued except to the extent

that the Bank has incurred legal or constructive obligations or made payments on behalf of an associate.
Business combinations

Business combinations are accounted for using the purchase method. The cost of an acquisition is measured at the fair
bl

value of the assets given at the date of exchange, plus cost directly attributable to acquisition.

The consolidated financial statements of the Bank for each of the years ended December 31, 2005 and:2004, consist of

the Bank and its subsidiaries. Details of the Bank's subsidiaries are as follows:

% Sharcholding -

Phethai Asset Management Co., Ltd. ("Phethai-AMC") 99.99 ¢.§-9'99
Ploy Asset Management Co., Ltd. (“Ploy-AMC")* 99.99 99.99
Progress Land and Buildings Co., Ltd. (“PLB”) 99.99 99.99
Kastkom Factoring Co., Ltd. {(“KFactoring") 99.99 99.99
Kasikorn Research Center Co., Ltd. (“KResearch”) ** 99.99 99.99
Kasikom Leasing Cp., Lid. ("KLeasing") ** 99.99 99.99
Kas}kom Securitiés Public Co., Ltd. (“KSecurities”) *** 99.98 9991
Kasikorn Asset Management Co., Ltd. ("KAsset") 99.99 71.42

* Ploy-AMC is in the process of liquidation.

** The financial statements of KResearch and KLeasing have been included in the consolidated financial statements since the second

quarter of 2005.
*** The financial statements of KSecurities have been included in the consolidated financial statements since Decemnber 2004,

Phethai Asset Management Company Limited, a company registered in the Kingdom of Thailand on September 24;
1999, was approved by the BoT on October 13, 1999 to also register as an asset management company under the
Ministerial Regulation (B.E. 2541) issued with regard to the provisions of the Asset Management Company Act (B.E.
2541). The company is located at 252/6 Muang Thai - Phatra Office Tower 1, Floor 14, Ratchadaphisek Road,
Huaykwang, Bangkok and was established with the objective of managing substandard assets transferred from the

Bank.



Ploy Asset Management Company Limited, a company registered in the Kingdom of Thailand on September 30, 1999,
was approved by the BoT on October 13, 1999 to register as an asset management company under the Ministerial
Regulation (B.E. 2541) issued with regard to the provisions of the Asset Management Company Act (B.E. 2541). The
company is located at 252/6 Muang Thai - Phatra Office Tower 1, Floor S, Ratchadaphisek Road, Huaykwang,
Bangkok and was established with the objective of managing substandard assets purchased or transferred from Phatra
Thanakit Public Company Limited under the Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) between the Financial .Institution
Development Fund (FIDF), the Bank and Phatra Thanakit Public Company Limited dated September 29, 1999. Under
this MOU, the management of substandard assets had to be completed by December 31, 2004 and the resulting profit
or loss is thereafter to be shared among the aforementioned companies and the FIDF. On April 29, 2005, the company
paid to FIDF, in accordance with the conditions set forth in the MOU, FIDF share of the profit arising from the
revaluation of assets on December 31, 2004 amounting to Baht 180 million and interest on such profit calculated from
January 1, 2005 to April 28, 2005 amounting to Baht 1 million to FIDF, totalling Baht 181 million, in accordance with
the conditions set forth in the MOU. On June 30, 2005 the company registered its discontinuance of operation with the

Ministry of Commerce and has commenced the liquidation process.
Ty q P

Progress Land and Buildings Company Limited is a company which was registered in the Kingdom of Thailand on
November 18, 1999, and is located at 306 Seupa Road, Pomprab, Pomprab Sadtrupai, Bangkek. The company was
established to receive, manage and sell properties that have been foreclosed as well as the premises of Phatra Thanakit

Public Company Limited.

Kasikorn Factoring Company Limited is a company which was registered in the Kingdom of Thailand on July 9, 1990,
and is located at 252 Phatra Insurance Building, Floor 1, Ratchadapisek Road, Huaykwang, Bangkok. The company
was established to furnish commercial financial services to businesses and provide service in the area of factoring,

finance leases, operating leases and hire purchase.

Kasikorn Research Center Company Limited is a company which was registered in the Kingdom of Thailand on
December 16, 1994, and is located at 400/22 Kasikornbank Building, Floor 9, Phaholyothin Road, Samsennai,

Phayathai, Bangkok. The company's main business is to support the Bank with research work and public relations.

Kasikorn Leasing Company Limited is a company which was registered in the Kingdom of Thailand on December 24,
2004, and is located at 400/22 Kasikornbank Building, Floor 17, Phaholyothin Road, Samsennai, Phayathai, Bangkok.

The company's main businesses are the leasing and hire purchase businesses.

Kasikorn Securities Public Company Limited (formerly: “Asset Plus Securities Public Company Limited") is a
company, which was registered in the Kingdom of Thailand on August 13, 1974, and is located at 400/22
Kasikornbank Building, Floor 19, Phaholyothin Road, Samsennai, Phayathai, Bangkok. The company's main

businesses are the securities business and investment banking. In December 2004, the Bank purchased 99.91% of the

shares in this Company from Asia Plus Securities Public Company Limited. The consideration paid was Baht 1,310 -

million. At the acquisition date, the net assets amounted to Baht 765 million and goodwill on acquisition amounted to
Baht 545 million. This resulted in the company becoming a subsidiary of the Bank and it is included in the

consolidated financial statements since December 2004.

Kasikorn Asset Management Company Limited is a company which was registered in the Kingdom of Thailand on
March 18, 1992 and is located at 252/6 Muang Thai - Phatra Office Tower 1, Floor 30 - 32, office No. 252/38 - 41,
Ratchadaphisek Road, Huaykwang, Bangkok. The company's main businesses are assets and funds management. In
December 2005, the Bank purchased additional ordinary shares that resulted in the increase in percentage of shares
held from 71.42% to 99.99%.

Significant intra-group transactions between the Bank and its subsidiaries are eliminated on consolidation.
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3.2

The consolidated financial statements exclude the financial statements of subsidiaries whose financial statements are
not material to the Bank. The financial position and results of operations of subsidiaries, which are not included in the
consolidated financial statements, are presented as supplementary information in the accompanying Note 7 to these

financial statements.

The consolidated and the Bank only financial statements include the accounts of all branches, domestic and outside

Thailand, and of the Bank's Intemnational Banking Facility. Interoffice transactions have been eliminated.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents represent cash in hand and cash items in process of collection.

Investments

Investments in subsidiaries and associates

Investments in subsidiaries and associates in the separate financial statements of the Bank are accounted for using the

equity method.
Investments in other debt and equity securities

Investments in debt instruments or marketable equity securities held for trading are classified as trading investments

and are stated af fair value, with any resultant gain or loss recognized in the statement of income.

Investments in debt instruments the Bank and subsidiaries intend and are able to hold to maturity are classified as held-
to-maturity investments and are stated at less amortized cost after deduction of allowance for impairment. The
difference between the acquisition cost and redemption value of such debt securities is amortized using the effective

interest rate method over the period to maturity.

[nvestments in debt instruments or marketable equity securities other than those securities held for trading or intended
to be held to maturity, are classified as available-for-sale investments and are stated at fair value, with any resultant
gain or loss being recognised directly in equity. The exceptions are impairment losses and foreign exchange gains and
losses, which are recognised in the statement of income. When these investments are disposed, the cumulative gain or
loss previously recognised directly in equity is recognised in the statement of income. Where these investments are

interest-bearing, interest calculated using the effective interest method is recognised in the statement of income.

Investments in non-marketable equity securities that are not investments in subsidiaries or associated companies are

stated at cost, after deduction of allowance for impairment.

Investments in receivables are stated at acquisition cost after deducting the allowance for impairment. When debt
restructuring is required, the balance is recorded as a loan at fair value, following the transfer of financial asset
accounting procedure. The difference between the book value and the fair value is recognized as gain or loss on

transfer of financial assets in the statements of income.

An impairment review for investments is carried out when there is a factor indicating that an investment might be

impaired. Losses on impairment for all classifications of investments are charged to the statement of income.
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Interest and dividend income from investments is recognized on an accrual basis. Gains or losses on sales of securities
are recognized in the statement of income upon disposal. Interest income from investments in receivables is

recognized by using the effective yield method.

Investments in marketable equity securities classified as trading investments and available-for-sale investments are

stated at fair value based on the last Stock Exchange of Thailand (SET) bid prices as of the end of the year.

Investments in marketable unit trusts classified as trading investments and available-for-sale investments are stated at

fair value based on the net assets value as at the end of the year.

Investments in government securities and state enterprise securities guaranteed by the government, and classified as
trading investments or available-for-sale investments, are stated at fair value based on the Thai Bond Dealing Centre
Government Bond Yield Curve as of the end of the year. State enterprise securities not guaranteed by the government
and private debt instruments are stated at fair value based on bid prices from the Thai Bond Dealing Centre as of the
end of the year. If not available, the Government Bond Yield for the same period, adjusted by an appropriate risk

premium, is used.
Disposal of investments

On disposal of an investment, the difference between net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount together with the

associated cumulative gain or loss that was reported in equity is recognised in the statement of income.

Cost of investments sold is calculated by using the weighted average method.

Loans

Except in case of loans effected through overdraft agreements, loans represent only principal amounts. Uneamned

discounts received in advance are presented as a reduction in loans.

Allowance for Doubtful Accounts

Allowance for doubtful accounts is determined through methods based on the Bank of Thailand’s regulations and
based on the Bank’s estimated loan loss. The allowance for non-performing loans has been specifically determined by
the natures of loans and the related factors such as payment ability, collateral, historical loss and estimated loss, etc.
The allowance for perfoﬁning loans has been assessed based upon general related factors such as historical loss, éredit
risk, economic conditions and management experience, etc. For corporate loan, the allowance is determined on a case

by case basis while the allowance for retail loans is determined on portfolio basis with similar risk characteristics.

With reference to BoT’s regulations, the Bank and its asset management companies categorize their loan portfolios
into six categories and set minimum reserves based on these categories. The period that a loan is past due is the
principal criteria used in classifying a loan. Non-litigated or non-restructured doubtful loans require the set up of an
additional allowance by using the number of days past due. Collateral value used in setting up allowance for doubtful
accounts depends on collateral type and appraisal period. Allowances for pass and special mention loans are made

based on the outstanding debt before deduction of collateral value.

Allowance for doubtful accounts is charged as an expense in each accounting year.
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3.5

3.6

3.7

Bad debts written off or recovered are recorded as charges or credits, respectively, to the allowance for doubtful

accounts.

Before the third quarter of 2005 the Bank made a doubtful accounts provision at the rate of 0.5% of total loans per
quarter. Since the third quarter of 2005, the Bank no longer considered this provisioning policy necessary and

transferred the amount previously provided to be included in the allowance for doubtful accounts.

Troubled Debt Restructuring

The Bank and asset management subsidiaries record foreclosed assets acquired from troubled debt restructuring at fair
value up to the legal claim for the debt, including interest receivable. Where restructuring a loan involves
modification of its terms, the present value of the expected future cash collections is calculated by using discount rates
equivalent to the market rates of interest at the time of restructuring. The difference between the present value of the
future cash flows expected to be received and the outstanding balances of investment in loans is recorded in the
revaluation allowance for debt restructuring. This revaluation allowance for debt restructuring is amortized to the
statement of income according to the amounts received over the remaining period of the debt-restructuring contracts
except for restructured loans with high probability of default on their contractual obligations and agreement. In this
case the Bank will stop amortizing to the statement of income. The recognition in the statement of income occu1;s

when such risk is eliminated.

Properties Foreclosed

Properties foreclosed are recorded at the lower of market value or the amount of the legal claim on the related debt,
including interest receivable. The market value is estimated by using the latest appraisal value after deduction of

estimated disposal expenses and holding cost.

Losses on impairment are charged to the statement of income. Gains or losses on disposal of properties foreclosed are

recorded as other income or expenses upon disposal.

Premises and Equipment and Depreciation

Premises and equipme'nt are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses except for land and
buildings which are stated at their revalued amounts. The revalued amount is the fair value determined on the basis of
the property’s existing use at the date of revaluation less any subsequent accumulated depreciation and subsequent

accumulated impairment losses.

- Revalued assets
Land and buildings revaluations are performed by independent professional appraisers according to the Bank of
Thailand’s criteria with sufficient regularity to ensure that the carrying amount of these assets does not differ

materially from that which would be determined using fair values at the balance sheet date.

When an asset’s carrying amount is increased as a result of a revaluation, the increase is credited directly to equity
under the heading of revaluation surplus. However, a revaluation increase is recognized as income to the extent that it

reverses a revaluation decrease of the same asset previously recognized as an expense.

17
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When an asset’s carrying amount is decreased as a result of a revaluation, the decrease is recognized as an expense.

However, a revaluation decrease is charged directly against any related revaluation surplus to the extent that the

decrease does not exceed the amount held in the revaluation surplus in respect of that same asset.

Upon disposal, any restated revaluation surplus is transferred directly from the revaluation reserve to retained
earnings.

- Leased assets

Leases under which the subsidiaries substantially assume all the risk and rewards of ownership are classified as
finance leases. Equipment acquired by way of finance leases is capitalized at the lower of its fair value and the present
value of the minimum lease payments at the inception of the lease, less accumulated depreciation and impairment
losses. Lease payments are apportioned between the finance charges and reduction of the lease liability so as to
achieve a constant rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability. Finance charges are charged directly to the

statements of income.

- Subsequent expenditure

Subsequent cxpeﬁdimre relating to an item of property, plant and equipment is added to the carrying amount of the
asset when it is probable that the future economic benefits in excess of the originally assessed standard of performance
of the existing asset will flow to the Bank and its subsidiaries. All other subsequent expenditure is recognized as an
expense in the period in which it is incurred.

- Depreciation

Depreciation is charged to the income statement over the estimated useful lives of each part of an item of premises and

equipment.

Depreciation on buildings acquired before July 1996 is computed using the declining-balance method. Depreciation
on buildings acquired after July 1996 and on equipment is computed using the straight-line method. The estimated

useful lives are as follows:
Buildings 50 years
Equipment 5-15 years

Gains or losses on disposal of premises and equipment are recorded as other incomé or expense upon disposal.

Intangible Assets

- Goodwill
Goodwill arising on acquisition represents the excess of the cost of acquisition over the fair value of the Bank's
share of the identifiable net assets acquired. Negative goodwill arising on acquisition represents the excess of the
fair value of the Bank's share of the identifiable net assets acquired over the cost of acquisition.
Goodwill and negative goodwill are stated at cost less accumulated amortization and impairment losses. Goodwill
and negative goodwill arising on acquisition of shares in subsidiaries and associates in the Company's separate

financial statements are included in investments.
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3.10

3.n

- Other intangible assets
Other intangible assets are stated at cost less accumulated amortization and impairment losses.

- Amortization
Amortization is charged to the income statement on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of intangible
assets unless such lives are indefinite. Intangible assets with an indefinite useful life are systematically tested for
impairment at each balance sheet date. Goodwill, negative goodwill and other intangible assets are amortized from

the date they are available for use. The estimated useful lives are as follows:

Goodwill 10 years
Leasehold rights Over the lease periods
Software licenses 5-10 years

Deferred underwriting license fee and deferred stock exchange membership fee 5 years

Impairment

The carrying amount of the Bank and subsidiaries’ asscts are reviewed at each balance sheet date to determine whether

there is any indication of impairment. If any such indication exists, the assets’ recoverable amounts are estimated.

An impairment loss is recognised whenever the carrying amount of an asset or its cash-generating unit exceeds its
recoverable amount. The impairment loss is recognised in the statement of income unless it reverses a previous

revaluation credited to equity, in which case it is charged to equity.

Interest-bearing liabilities

Interest-bearing liabilities are recognized initially at cost less attributable transaction charges. Subsequent to initial
recognition, interest-bearing liabilities are stated at amortized cost with any difference between cost and redemption

value being recognized in the statement of income over the period of the borrowings.

Provisions

A provision is recognised in the balance sheet when the Bank has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result
of a past event, and it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a

reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

A provision for commitments as off-balance sheet items are determined by credit risk transactions ie., Avals,
Acceptances, loans with collateral, other collaterals and Letter of credit, etc. A provision is recognized when the
transactions related to loans that are classified as sub-standard, doubtful, doubtful of loss and loss assets. The provision
have been specifically determined by using the same rate as the allowance for doubtful accounts on each of those

loans.




3.12 Derivatives
Forward Exchange Contracts

For hedging transactions, the difference between the forward rate and the spot rate on the date of entering into a

forward exchange contract is amortized to the statement of income over the period of the contract.

Trading transactions are carried at fair value using the Mark-to-Market approach. Gains or losses resulting from

changes in fair values are included in revenues and expenses for the period.
Cross Currency Swaps and Interest Rate Swaps

The accounting for these derivative transactions depends on their purpose:
1. Hedging of the Bank's Exposure to Financial Risks

Derivative contracts are recorded off-balance sheet. Revenues, expenses and gains or losses resulting from
changes in the fair values of contracts are recognized in accordance with the standard accounting treatment for

revenues, expenses, gains or losses on underlying assets, liabilities or other financial obligations as follows:

Where gains or losses on the underlying transactions are recorded based on fair value, losses or gains on
derivative transactions used as the hedge are recognized based on fair value throughout the corresponding

hedging period.

Where gains or losses on the underlying transactions are recorded on an accrual basis, losses or gains on

derivative transactions used as a hedge are also recognized on an accrual basis over the period of the contracts.

2. Trading

Mark-to-market accounting is applied to trading transactions. Hence, traded derivative transactions are carried at
their fair values. Gains or losses resulting from changes in fair values are recognized in the income statement and

included as part of gain on exchange.

3.13 Employee benefits
- Staff Retirement Fund

Staff members are entitled to retirement pay upon termination of employment depending upon length of service and

other conditions. It is management's policy to contribute an appropriate amount to the Fund each period.
- Provident Fund

The Bank established a provident fund under the Provident Fund Act (B.E. 2530), and registered this Fund with the

Ministry of Finance on August 16, 1994,

According to the Fund's Articles, every employee is entitled to apply for membership, and each member must
contribute to the Fund at the rate of 3% of their basic salary, while the Bank contributes an additional 3.0 - 4.5%.
Upon termination of employment, employees are entitled to receive this benefit except when terminated “without

compensation”.
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3.14

3.15

3.16

3.17

3.18

Recognition of Interest Income

Interest and discount income on loans are recognized on an accrual basis, except when interest payments are in arrears
for more than three months when, regardless of collateral, the cash basis is adopted.

Income from hire-purchase agreements is recognized using the sum-of-the digits method.

In compliance with the Bank of Thailand regulation, the Bank reverses accrued interest receivable on loans for which

repayments are more than 3 months in arrears.
The asset management subsidiaries recognize interest income on investments in receivables and loans on a cash basis.

Lease income of a subsidiary is recognized as follows:
- Income under finance lease agreements is recognized on the basis of installment payments due by using the
effective yield method, calculated from the balance of the net investment in each installment. When installment

payments are in arrears for more than six months, the cash basis is adopted.

- Income under operating lease agreements is recognized on the basis of equal monthly installments. When

installment payments are in arrears for more than six months, the cash basis is adopted.

Recognition of Interest Expense

Interest expense is recognized on an accrual basis.

Income Tax

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income for the year, using tax rates enacted at the balance sheet

date.

Basic Earnings per Share

Basic earnings per share is computed by dividing net income by the weighted average number of ordinary shares in

issue during the year.

There is no diluting effect on earnings per share that might result from an assumed exercise of warrants.

Translation of Foreign Currencies

Assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated into Thai Baht at the rates of exchange
prevailing on the dates of the transactions. Assets and liabilities including the balance sheet of the Bank's foreign
branches that are denominated in foreign currencies at the end of the year are translated into Thai Baht at the reference
rates announced by the BoT on that date. The statement of income of the Bank's foreign branches are translated into

Thai Baht at the reference rates announced by the BoT at the month end rate.

Exchange gains or losses on translation and on transactions in foreign currencies including foreign exchange
differences arising on the translation of financial statements of the Bank's foreign branches are included in revenues

and expenses for the year.
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SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION OF CASH FLOWS

Non-cash items are as follows:

The Bank and its subsidiaries have provided for a revaluation surplus (deficit) on investments and have presented it as
a change in shareholders’ equity for each of the years ended December 31, 2005 and 2004 as follows:

(Million Baht)

Consolidated and The Bank
2005 2004
Revaluation deficit on investments (1,481) (1,037

For each of the years ended December 31, 2005 and 2004, the Bank recognized the realized portion of the appraised
surplus on asset revaluation amounting to Baht 147 million and Baht 140 million, respectively, by transferring these

amounts to retained earnings from appraisal surplus on asset revaluation.

For each of the years ended December 31, 2005 and 2004, the Bank and its subsidiaries received foreclosed properties
arising from debt settlement amounting to Baht 1,291 millicn and Baht 1,827 million, respectively on a consolidated

basis and Baht 733 million and Baht 1,113 million, respectively for the Bank only.

For each of the years ended December 31, 2005 and 2004, the Bank transferred sub-quality assets to Thai Assets
Management Corporation (TAMC) amounting to Baht 15 million and Baht 61 million, respectively ahd in return
received non-transferable promissory notes from TAMC, which have been included in investments in held-to-maturity

debt instruments (Note 7).

22



5 INTERBANK AND MONEY MARKET ITEMS (ASSETS)

Interbank and money market items (assets) as of December 31, 2005 and 2004 consisted of:

(Miilion Baht)
Consolidated
2005 2004
At call Term Total At call Term Total
1. Domestic

The BoT and FIDF 1,550 - 1,550 1,961 .- 1,961
Commercial banks 855 3,700 4,555 760 - 760
Other banks 3 - 3 4 - 4
Finance, securities and

credit foncier companies 200 2 202 ) 240 - 240
Other financial institutions - 365 _365 - 400 __400

Total Domestic 2,608 4,067 6,675 2,965 400 3,365
Add Accrued interest receivables - 9 9 - - -
Less Allowance for doubtful accounts _ (a2 _(4% _ (4 _(n

Total 2,601 4,034 6.635 2,958 396 3354
2. Foreign

US Dollar 3,808 55,056 58,864 3,197 68,938 72,135
Japanese Yen 39 - 39 29 - 29
Other currencies 389 13 402 735 1 736

Total Foreign 4,236 55,069 59,305 3,961 68,939 72,900
Less Allowance for doubtful accounts an - an _@ - )]

Total . 4225 55,069 59.294 3.957 68,939 72,896

Total Domestic and Foreign 6,826 59103 65929 6915 69,335 76250
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6

Domestic
The BoT and FIDF
Commercial banks
Other banks
Finance, securities and
credit foncier companies
Other financial institutions
Total Domestic
Add Accrued interest receivables

Less Allowance for doubtful accounts
Total

Eoreign

US Dollar

Japanese Yen

Other currencies

Totai Foreign

Less Allowance for doubtful accounts

Total

Total Domestic and Foreign

{(Million Baht)

The Bank
2005 2004

Atcall Term Total At call Term Total
1,550 - 1,550 1,961 - 1,961
794 3,700 4,494 694 - 694

3 - 3 4 - 4

200 2 202 240 - 240
- 365 365 - 400 400
2,547 4,067 6,614 2,899 400 3,299

- 9 9 - - -

)] _(42) _(49) )] 4 e
2,540 4,034 6.574 2,892 396 3,288
3,808 55,056 58,864 3,197 68,938 72,135
39 - 39 29 - 29
389 13 402 _135 1 736
4,236 55,069 59,305 3,961 68,939 72,900
1D - an (4 - (4)
4,225 55,069 59,204 3,957 68,939 72,896
6965 59,103 §5.868 6.849 69.335 16,184

SECURITIES PURCHASED UNDER RESALE AGREEMENTS

Securities purchased under resale agreements as of December 31, 2005 and 2004 consisted of:

Government Bonds and BoT Bonds
State enterprise Bonds

Total

(Million Baht)

Consolidated and The Bank

2005
9,500

2,500

24
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18,195
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4

7 INVESTMENTS

Investments as of December 31, 2005 and 2004 consisted of:

(Million Baht)
Consolidated
2005
Cost Value/
Amortized Cost Value Unrealized Gain ~ Unrealized Loss Fair Value
1. Current Investments
1.1 Trading investments
1.1.1 Government and state enterprise
securities 1,097 57 - 1,154
Add Allowance for revaluation _57 -
Total 1,154 1154
1.2 Available-for-sale investments :
1.2.1 Government and state enterprise
securities 11,022 13 (387 10,648
1.2.2 Private enterprise debt instruments 449 1 63 449
1.2.3 Foreign debt instruments 16,364 13 (43) 16,334
1.2.4 Marketable equity securities - domestic 1,006 152 (531) 627
1.2.5 Others __ 50 1 _(23) _ 28
Total 28,891 180 ‘ (985) 28,086
Less Allowance for revaluation (297) -
Less Allowance for impairment 508 -
Total 28,086 28,086
1.3 Held-to-maturity debt instruments
1.3.1 Government and state enterprises
securities 10,751 20 3) 10,768
1.3.2 Private enterprises debt instruments 14 - - 14
1.3.3 Foreign debt instruments 10,100 - (78) 10,022
Total 20,865 20 (81) 20,804
Less Allowance for impairment - .
Total 20,865 20,804
Total Current [nvestments - nct 50,105 50,044
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2. Long-term Investments

2.1 Available-for-sale investments
2.1.1 Government and state enterprise
securities
2.1.2 Private emerpr.ise debt instruments
2.1.3 Foreign debt instruments
2.1.4 Marketable equity securities
- domestic
2.1.5 Others
Total
Less Allowance for revaluation
Total
2.2 Held-to-maturity debt instruments
2.2.1 Government and state enterprises
securities
2.2.2 Private enterprises debt instruments
2.2.3 Foreign debt instruments
Total
Less Allowance for impairment
Total
2.3 General investments
2.3.1 Non-marketable equity securities
-domestic
2.3.2 Non-marketable equity securities
-overseas

2.3.3 Investments in receivables
Total

Less Allowance for impairment
Total

Total Long-term Investments - net

Cost Value/
Amortized Cost Value

15,849
1,761
11,215
153
29,058

(231)
28,827

10,958

26

(Million Baht)
Consolidated

2005

Unrealized Gain Unrealized Loss Fair Value
26 (397) 15,478
5 37 1,729
30 (56) 11,189
198 - 351
- - 80
259 (490) 28,827

28,82
44 (184) 10,818
- (792) 203
3 (10 3,383
47 (986) 14,404
14.404
- (628) 2,284
- (312) 110
— (2713) 3231
- (1,213) 5,625
5,625
48,856



1. Current Investments
1.1 Trading investments
1.1.1 Government and state enterprise
securities
Add Allowance for revaluation
Total
1.2 Available-for-sale investments
1.2.1 Government and state enterprise
securities _
1.2.2 Private enterprise debt instruments

1.2.3 Foreign debt instruments

1.2.4 Marketable equity securities - domestic

1.2.5 Others
Total
Add Allowance for revaluation
Less Allowance for impairment
Total -
1.3 Held-to-maturity debt instruments
1.3.1 Government and state enterprises
securities
1.3.2 Private enterprises debt instruments
1.3.3 Foreign debt instruments
Total
Less Allowance for impairment
Total

Total Current Investments - net

Cost Value/

Amortized Cost Value

27

(Miflion Baht)
Consolidated
2004

Unrealized Gain Unrealized Loss Fair Value

3 1,315
1,315
113 (210) 14,312
- 3) 321
12 ) 9,469
565 (572) 1,048
- _(48) _ 52
690 (834) 25,202
25,202
12 ) 4,635

- (4) -
- (&¥))] 2173
i2 42) 6,808
6,808
33,325



2. Long-term Investments

2.1 Available-for-sale investments
2.1.1 Government and state enterprise
securities
2.1.2 Private enterprise debt instruments
2.1.3 Foreign debt instruments
2.1.4 Marketable equity securities
- domestic
2.1.5 Others
Total
Add Allowance for revaluation
Total
2.2 Held-to-maturity debt instruments
2.2.1 Government and state enterprises
securities
2.2.2 Private enterprises debt instruments
2.2.3 Foreign debt instruments
Total
Less Allowance for impairment
Total
2.3 General investments
2.3.1 Non-marketable equity securities
-domestic
2.3.2 Non-marketable equity securities
-overseas

2.3.3 Investments in receivables

Total

Less Allowance for impairment
Total

Total Long-term Investments - net

Consolidated
2004
Cost Value/
Amortized Cost Value Unrealized Gain Unrealized Loss
21,791 210 (119)
2,522 9 (31
14,643 105 (35)
247 353 M
59 1 -
39,262 678 (186)
492
39.754
21,798 359 (66)
1,061 - (787)
11,428 19 (84
34,287 378 (937)
_(783)
33,504
2,857 - (813)
419 - (323)
3.356 - (1.984)
6,632 - (3,120
{3.120)
3512
16,770
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(Million Baht)

Fair Value

21,882
2,500
14,713

599
60
39,754




(Million Baht)

The Bank
2005
Cost Value/
Amortized Cost Value Unrealized Gain Unrealized Loss Fair Value
1. Current Investments
1.1 Trading investments
1.1.1 Government and state enterprises
securities 1,097 57 - 1,154
Add Allowance for revaluation _ 57 L
Total 1,154 1,154
1.2 Available-for-sale investments
1.2.1 Government and state enterprises
securities 11,022 13 (387) 10,648
1.2.2 Private enterprises debt instruments 449 1 [e)) 449
1.2.3 Foreign debt instruments 16,364 13 (43) 16,334
1.2.4 Marketable equity securities - domestic 1,006 152 (531) 627
1.2.5 Others _ 50 1 _ (23 _ 28
Total 28,891 180 (985) 28,086
Less Allowance for revaluation (297) -
Less Allowance for impairment 508 -
Total 28,086 28.086
1.3 Held-to-maturity debt instruments
1.3.1 Government and state enterprises
securities 10,057 20 m 10,076
1.3.2 Private enterprises debt instruments 14 - - 14
1.3.3 Foreign debt instniments 10,100 - (78) 10,022
Total 20,171 20 (79) 20,112
Less Allowance for impairment - -
Total 20,171 20,112
Total Current Investments - net 49411 49.352
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2. Long-term Investments
2.1 Available-for-sale investments
2.1.1 Government and state enterprises
securities
2.1.2 Private enterprises debt instruments
2.1.3 Foreign debt instruments
2.1.4 Marketable equity securities
- domestic
2.1.5 Others
Total
Less Allowance for revaluation
Total
2.2 Held-to-maturity debt instruments
2.2.1 Government and state enterprises
securities
2.2.2 Private enterprises debt instruments
2.2.3 Foreign debt instruments
Total
Less Allowance for impairment
Total
2.3 General investments
2.3.1 Non-marketable equity securities
-domestic
2.3.2 Non-marketable equity securities
-overseas
2.3.3 Investments in receivables
Total
Less Allowance for impairment
Total

Total Long-term Investments - net

Cost Value/

Amortized Cost Value

15,849
1,761
11,215

30

(Million Baht)

The Bank

2005

Unrealized Gain

26

30

198

259

(9

47

Unrealized Loss

(397)
(37
(56)

(490)

(184)
(792)
_(10)
(986)

(600)

(312)

(178)
(1,090)

Fair Value

15,478
1,729
11,189

351

28,777

:

2,272

110

1,973
4,355

4,355




(Million Baht)
The Bank
2004
Cost Value/
Amortized Cost Valug Unrealized Gain Unrealized Loss Fair Value

1. Current Investments \

1.1 Trading investments

1.1.1 Government and state enterprises

securities 1,312 3 - 1,315
Add Allowance for revaluation 3 -
Total 1,315 131

1.2 Available-for-sale investments

1.2.1 Government and state enterprises

securities 14,409 113 (210) 14,312
1.2.2 Private enterprises debt instrurhents 324 - (3) 321
1.2.3 Foreign debt instruments 9,458 12 (1) 9,469
1.2.4 Marketable equity se¢urities - domestic 1,055 565 (572) 1,048
1.2.5 Others _. 100 - 48 5

Total 25,346 690 (834) 25,202
Add Allowance for revaluation 462 : -
Less Allowance for impairment _(606) -

Total 25,202 25,202

1.3 Held-to-maturity debt instruments

1.3.1 Government and state entefprises

securities . . 2,957 9 - 2,966

1.3.2 Private enterprises debt instriuments 4 - “) -
1.3.3 Foreign debt instrumients . 2,210 - [€¥i] 2,173
Total . S 5,171 9 (41) 5,139
Less Allowance for impairment (30 . -
. Total , : — _ 5,141 5,139
Tetal Current Investments - net 31,658 . 31,656
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2. Long-term Investments

2.1 Available-for-sale investments
2.1.1 Government and state enterprises
sccurities
2.1.2 Private enterprises debt instruments
2.1.3 Foreign debt instruments
2.1.4 Marketable equity securities
- domestic
2.1.5 Others
Total
Add Allowance for revaluation
Total
2.2 Held-to-mnaturity debt instruments
2.2.1 Government and state enterprises
securities
2.2.2 Private enterprises debt instrinments
2.2.3 Foreign debt instruments
Total
Less Allowance for impairmeént
. Total
2.3 General investments
2.3.1 Non-marketable equity securities
-domestic
2.3.2 Non-marketable equity securitiés
-overseas
Total
Less Allowance for impairment
Total

Total Long-term [nvestments - net

Cost Value/

Amortized Cost Value

21,791
2,522
14,643

136

__ 59
39,151
— 417

2,819

_419
3,238
121
2,117

32

The Bank
2004

Unrealized Gain Unrealized Loss

210 (119)

9 31
105 (35)
277 -
_1 -
602 (185)
358 ©(66)

- (787)
_19 (84)
377 837)

- (798)
— _(323)

- (1,121)

(Million Baht)

Fair Value

21,882
2,500
14,713

413
60
39,568

39,568




As of December 31, 2005 and 2004, investments in held-to-maturity debt instruments, which are goveérnment or state
enterprise securities, included promissory notes from TAMC of Baht 5,575 million and Baht 3,668 million,
respectively, and the right to réceive promissory notes from TAMC of Baht S million and Baht 2,658 million,

respectively.

Gain (loss) on investments presented in the statement of income for each of the years ended December 31, 2005 and
2004 consisted of:

(Million Baht)

Consolidated The Bank
2005 2004 2005 2004
Gain on disposal of investments
Held for trading investments : 248 95 248 95
Available-for-sale investments 456 1,565 360 1,530
Held-to-ﬁaturity debt 1 2 1 2
General investments 11 976 10 845
Investments in receivables - 4 - 7 =
Total 16 2,652 619 2472
Loss oa disposal of investments ‘
Held for trading investments (260) (83) (260) (83)
Available-for-sale investments (160) (340) (160) (340)
General investments (49) (84) 49 (84)
Investments in receivables {5 - _{5 -
Total : (474) 507 (474) (507
Gain (loss) from revaluation 76 (22) 76 (22)
Gain (loss) reversal on impairment
Investments in securities 287 20 299 3
Investments in receivables . (_118)_ - (178) -
Total * 109 20 121 3
Total Gain on Investments 421 2,143 342 1946
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Revaluation (deficit) surplus on investments as of December 31, 2005 and 2004 consisted of:

Revaluation (deficit) surplus on investments

Debt instruments

Equity securities

Share of revaluation surplus in subsidiaries and

associated companies using the equity method

Total

L. Available-for-sale investments
1.1 Government and state
enterprise securities
1.2 Private enterprise debt
instruments
1.3 Foreign debt instruments
Total
(Less)add Ailowance for
» revaluation
(Less) Allowance for impairment
Total
2. Held-to-maturity debt
Instruments -
2.1 Government and state
enterprise securitics
2.2 Private enlerprise debt
inistruments
2.3 Foreign debt instruments
Total
Less Allowance for impairment

Total

(Million Baht)

Consolidated The Bank
2005 2004 2005 2004
(827) 49 (827) 49
298 903 298 829
- - - _14
(529) 952 (529 252
As of December 31, 2005 and 2004, a maturity analysis for debt instruments resulted in the following:
{(Million Baht)
Consolidated
2005 2004
Maturity Maturity
Over Over
ear {o Over s lyearto s Over 5
1 year years years Total 1 year ears yéars Total
5,912 16,260 4,699 26,871 5,524 25,164 5,512 36,200
449 1,761 - 2,210 287 2,559 - 2,846
16,364 5.845 5370 27,579 9.458 10.809 3834 24,101
23,725 23,866 10,069 56,660 15,269 38,532 9,346 63,147
(52) (444) (330) (826) 19 126 . (95) 50
(7 - - (1) = - - -
22,666 23,422 9,739 55,827 15,288 38,658 9,251 63,197
10,751 5,378 5,580 21,709 4,624 15,472 6,326 26,422
14 209 786 1,009 4 278 783 1,065
10,100 3,390 - 13,490 2210 11,438 - 13,638
20,865 8,977 6,366 36,208 6,838 27,178 7,109 41,125
- - (786) (786) 30 - (783) (813)
20,865 8,977 5580 35422 6.808 27,178 6,326 40,312
43,531 32399 15319 91,249 22,006 63836 13517 103,509

Total Debt Instruments
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1. Available-foi-sale investments

1.1 Government and state
' enterprise securities
1.2 Private enterprise debt
instruments
1.3 Foreign debt instruments
Total
{ Less!addAlloWance for

revaluation

{Less) Allowance for impairment

Total
2. Held-to-maturity debt
instruments
2.1 Government and state
enterprise securities
2.2 Private enterprise debt
instruments
2.3 Foreign debt instrumerits
Total
Less Allowance for impairment
Total

Total Debt Instruments

(Million Baht)

The Bank
2005 2004
Maturity Maturity
Over Over
lyearto$ Over5 lyearto 5 Over 5
1 year years years Total 1 year years vears Total
5,912 16,260 4,699 26,871 5,524 25,164 5,512 36,200
449 1,761 - 2,210 287 2,559 - 2,846
16364 5,845 5,370 27.579 9,458 10,809 3,834 24,101
22,725 23,866 10,069 56,660 15,269 38,542 9,346 63,147
(52) (444 (330) (826) 19 126 (95) 50
(7) - - N - - - -

22 666 123422 9,739 55,827 15,288 38,658 9251 63,197
10,057 5,378 5,580 21,015 2,957 15,401 6,326 24,684
14 209 786 1,009 4 278 783 1,065
10,100 3,390 . 13,490 2210 11428 . 13,638
20,171 ‘8,977 6,366 35,514 5,171 27,107 7,109 39,387
- (786) (786) (30) - _(783) __(813)
20171 8,977 5,580 34,728 5,141 27,107 6326 38,574

15319 90555 20420 65,765
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As of December 31, 2005 and 2004, investments held by the Bank and its subsidiaries in financial institutions that
were closed on December 8, 1997, or investments in listed companies which meet SET's criteria for delisting, and are
in default on debt instruments, or companies whose ability to continue as a going concem is uncertain, or unlisted
companies whose financial position and operating results are the same as companies which meet SET's criteria for

delisting or investments in réceivables with uncertainty in settlement or in default, were as follows:

(Mitlion Baht)

Consolidated
2005
Cost Value / Book Value Fair Value
Investments Equity Debt Investments  Equity Debt  Allowance for

In Receivables  Securities Instruments In Receivables Securjties Instruments Impairment

1. Closed financial institutions - 1 - 131 - - .- (132)
2. Li_sted companies which meet

SET'’s criteria for delisting, and

are in default on debt instruments 6 34 200 3 2 - (236)
3. Companies whose ability to

continue as a going concern is

uncertain, or unlisfcd companies

whose financial position and

operating results are the same &s

companies which meet

SET's criteria for delisting ’ - 768 494 - : 2 38 (1,219)
4. Investment in receivables with

uncertainty in settfement’

orin default ' 2250 - - 1,980 - - (270)
" Totl ' 2256  _803 825 1983 4 3B (L8S])
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(Million Baht)

Consolidated
2004
Cost Value / Book Value Fair Value
Investments Equity Debt Investments  Equity Debt  Allowance for

In Receivables  Securities [nstruments In Receivables Securities Instruments Impairment

1. Closed financial institutions - 1 131 - - - (132)
2. Listed companies which meet

SET’s ériteria for delisting, and

are in default on debt instruments - 121 200 - 14 - (309)
3. Companies whose ability to

continue as a going concem is

uncertain, or unlisted companies

whose financial position and

operating results are the same as

companies which meet

SET's criteria for delisting - 967 452 - 2 - 1,417
4. Investment in receivables with
uncertainty in settlement
" of in default ' 3,356 - - 1372 - - (1,984)
Total = ' 3356 1089 8 LD 16 . (842

37



(Million Baht)

The Bank
2005
Cost Value / Book Value Fair Value
Investments Equity Debt Investments  Equity Debt  Allowance for

In Receivables Securities Instruments In Receivables Securities Instruments Impairment

1. Closed financial institutions - 1 131 - - - (132)
2. Listed companies which meet

SET’s criteria for delisting, and

are in default on debt instruments - 6 34 200 3 2 - (236)
3. Comparies whose ability to

continue as a going concern is

uncertain, or unlisted companies

whose financial position and

operating results are the samie as

companies which meet

SET's criteria for delisting - 768 494 - 2 38 (1,219)
4. Investment in receivables with .

uncertainty in settlement

or in default

&
k|
g |
B
Nt
-
:

Total
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1. Closed financial institutions

2. Listed companies which meet
SET's criteria for delisting, and
are in default on debt instruments

3. Companies whose ability to
continue as a going concern is’
uncertain, or unlisted companies
whose financial position and
operating results are the same as
companies which meet
SET's criteria for delisting

Total

Cost Value / Book Value
Equity Debt
Securities Instruments
1 131
121 200
967 452
1089 C 183
39

The Bank
2004

Fair Value

Equity Debt

Securities Instruments

(Million Baht)

Allowance for

Impairment

(132)

(309)

(417
(1858)
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The recording of investments in subsidiaries and associated companies using the equity method in the financial
statements is based on financial information obtained from audited or reviewed financial statements and from

management information that has not been audited or reviewed by the auditors.

As of Decemnber 31, 2005 and 2004, investments held by the Bank and its subsidiaries, that comprised. more than 10%
of those companieé’ shares and were not investments in subsidiaries and associated companies, classified by industry

were as follows:

(Million Baht)

Consolidated The Bank

2005 2004 2005 2004

Agricultural and mining 49 48 - -
Manufacturing and commerce 254 277 254 277
Property development and construction 1,062 1,153 _ 1,062 1,153
Infrastructure and services 28 6 23 1
Others _ 615 . 394 615 -394
Total . 2,008 1878 1.954 1825

The financial position and results of operations of the Bank’s subsidiaries in the consolidated financial statements based on the

audited financial statements are set out below:

Phethai Asset Management Company Limited
Condensed Balance Sheets

As of December 31, 2005 and 2004

Million Baht

2005 2004
ASSETS _ '
Cash and dépbsits at financial institution 7 161
Loné-term invésﬁnents - net ] 40 » 50
In.veslmcnts in receivables — net ] 4,266 . 4,981
Loans, receivables and accrued interest receivables — net 3,633 4,508
Properties foreclosed - net . ' &,393 o 1,154 )
Equi’pfnéht ~net ‘ q 6
Other assets — net . ) 39 _ 402
Total Assets ’ : 12,946 1123
LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY"
Liabilities
Borrowings from firancial institution 8,925 7,440
Other liabilities 109 133
Sharcholders' Equity 3912 _3.659
Total Liabilities and Shareholders’ Equity 12,946 11,232
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Phethai Asset Management Company Limited

Condensed Statements of Income

For Each of the Years Ended December 31, 2005 and 2004

Interest and dividend income
[nterest expense
. Net income from interest and dividend
Bad debt and doubtful accounts (reversal)
Loss on debt restructuring -
Expense from interest and dividend

after bad debt and doubtful

accounts (reversal) and loss on debt restructurixig
Non-interest income
Nor-interest expense
Net profit (loss)

Basic earnings (loss) per share (Baht)

43

Million Baht
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Phethai Asset Management Company Limited
Statements of Cash Flows

For Each of the Years Ended December 31, 2005 and 2004

Million Baht

2005 2004
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net profit (loss) 254 64)
Add (less) Adjustments to reconcile net profit (loss) to net cash
from operating activities
Gain on transfer of financial assets (297) (829)
Loss on impairment of investments in receivables 147 265
Bad debt and doubtful accounts (reversal) 2 (104)
Loss on debt restructuring o 432 1,618
Interest income from amortizétion of revaluation a)lowance for debt restructuring (149) (320)
Depreciation and amortization ‘ 7 6
Loss on impairment f properties foreclosed 137 65
Loss on impairment of assets to be transferred - : 59
Loss on impairment of investments 12 7
Reversal of loss on impairment of other assets 36) (34)
- Gain on sale of securities for investments | (1) -
Increase(decrease) in accrued interest payables 13 7
{Decreasc) increase in accrued expenses )] _30
- Net profit from operations before changes in operating assets and liabilities 518 72
(Increase) decrease in operating assets
Investments in receivables ) (1,709) 459
Loans and receivables 1,706 3,836
Properties foreclosed o o : (1,915) 64
Other assets (148) 20
(Decrease) increase in operating liabilities
Other liabilities : _ _ (9 __47
Net Cash (Used in) Provided by Operating Activities (1,582) 4,498
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchases of general long-term investments - (€20
Proceeds from disposal of general long-term investments 7 -
Purchases.of intangible assets - )
Purchases of equipment — _(
Net Cash Provided by (Used in) Investing Activities _17 _(39)
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Phethai Asset Management Company Limited
Statements of Cash Flows (Continued)

For Each of the Years Ended December 31, 2005 and 2004

Million Baht
2005 2004
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from borrowings from financial institutions 1,485 -
Cash paid for repayment of borrowings from financial institutions - (4,410
Net Cash Provided by (Used in) Financing Activities 1,485 4,41
Net (decrease) increase in cash and cash equivaients (90) 49
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the years _l61 _ 112
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the years ya| 161
SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURES OF CASH FLOWS INFORMATION
Cash paid (received) during the years .
Interest expense 117 125
Income tax . 13 ()]
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Ploy Asset Management Company Limited
(In Liquidation)
Condensed Balance Sheets

As of December 31, 2005 and 2004

Million Baht

2005 2004
{Restated)
ASSETS
Cash and deposits at financial institutions 33 23
Long-term investments — net - 185
Investments in receivables — net - 1,372
Loans, receivables and accrued interest receivables - net - 4,013
Properties foreclosed — net - 2,973
Leasehold improvement and equipment — net - 1
Other assets — net . - 87
Total Assets 33 8,654
LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY
Liabilities
Borrowings from financial institutions - 5;665
Other Iiabilitﬁes _ - 198
Sharcholdérs' Equity . 33 2,791
Total Liabilities and Shareholders’ Equity 33 8.654
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Ploy Asset Management Company Limited
(In Liquidation)
Condensed Statements of Income

For Each of The Years Ended December 31, 2005 and 2004

Interest expense

Net profit (loss)

Milliocn Baht

2005
Interest and dividend income 239
13
Net income from interest and dividend 226
Reversal of bad debt and doubtful accounts (182)
Loss on debt restructuring » 199
Net income from interest and dividend after reversal of bad .
debt and doubtful accounts and loss or debt restructuriné - 209
Non-interest income (expense) ' 173
Non-interest expense 146
236
Basic earnings (loss) per share (Baht) 052

47

200:

(Restated)

1,186
69
.17
(510
1572

55
(205)

428

(Li6)



Pioy Asset Management Company Limited
(In Liguidation)
Statements of Cash Flows

For Each of the Years Ended December 31, 2005 and 2004

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net profit (loss)
Add (less) Adjustments to reconcile net profit (loss) to net cash
from operating activities
Gain on investments in securities
Loss on transfer of financial assets
Reversal of bad debt and doubtful accounts
Loss on debt restructuring
Interest income from amortization of revaluation allowance for debt restructuring
Depreciation and amortization
Loss oa impairment of properties foreclosed
Reversal of loss on impairment of other assets
Decreasc in accrued interest payables
(Decrease) increase in accrued expenses
Net (loss) from operations before changes in operating
assets and liabilities

Decrease in operating assets
Investments in receivables
Loans and receivables
Properties foreclosed
Prepaid income tax
Other assels

(Decrease) increase in operating labilities
FIDF payable
Deferred income
Other liabilities

Net Cash Provided by Opérating Activities -

48

Million Baht

2005

236

(96)
(182

199
(159)

5,173

2004
(Restated)

(578)

(224)

569
510
1,572
(953}

95
2

L—‘

(28}

17
1,700
32
23

182
©

kb




Ploy Asset Management Company Limited
(In Liquidation)
Statements of Cash Flows (Continued)

For Each of the Years Ended December 31, 2005 and 2004

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from disposal of long-term investments
Purchases of long-term investments

Net Cash Provided by Investing Activities

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Cash paid for capital returned to sharcholder
Cash paid for repayment of borrowing from financial institutions
Net Cash Used in Financing Activities
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the years
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the years
SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURES OF CASH FLOW INFORMATION
Cash paid (received) during the years
Interest expense.

Income tax -

49

Million Baht

2005

209
(2)
207

(2,929)
(2,450)
(5.370)

~

o~
Lad
Py

2004

(Restated)



Progress Land and Buildings Company Limited
Condensed Balance Sheets

As of December 31, 2005 and 2004

Million Baht

2005 2004
ASSETS
Cash and deposits at financial institutions 89 109
Investments — net - 358
Other current assets 8 7
Properties foreclosed - net : 503 565
Premises and equipment — net 336 347
Tota! Assets 236 1,386
LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY
_ Liabilities 13 11
Sharcholders’ equity 923 1375
Total Liabilities and Sharcholders’ Equity 936 1386 °
Progress Land and Buildings Company Limited
Condensed Statements of Income
For Each of the Years Ended December 31, 2005 and 2004
Million Baht
2005 2004
Revenues . 48 118
Expense _36 _99
Net profit 12 é
Eamings per share (Baht) 078 M
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Kasikorn Factoring Company Limited
Condensed Balance Sheets

As of December 31, 2005 and 2004

Million Baht
2005 2004
ASSETS
Current Assets
Cash and deposits at financial institutions 110 103
Current portion of factoring reccivables — net 2,386 2,092
Current portion of finance lease receivables — net 94 90
Current portion of hire purchase receivables — net 5 5
Current portion of installation receivables — net 19 12
Other current assets o ) 25 16
" Non-Current Assets
Factoring receivables - net 114 ‘ 86
Finance lease receivables — net 125 a 59
Hire purchase receivable - net 4 8
'- Installment receivables - net ‘ 17 26
Other non-éﬁrrent assets 21 15
Total Assﬁts . . 2.920 _ 2512
LIABILITIES AND SHAR_EHOLDERS' EQUITY
Lisbilitles
Short-teﬁn loans frorr:l financial ir;stitutidﬁs 2,260 1,700
Accounts payébleé . . - 4
CuirentAportion of Iong-tcmﬂoan 185 260
Long term loan - net ' 60 220
Other liabilities ' ¥ 34
Sharcholders Equity | - _ 378 294
© Total Liélﬁilit.ies aﬁd Shﬁrchoiders’ Equity 2,920 2,512



Kasikorn Factoring Company Limited

Condensed Statements of Income

For Each of the Years Ended December 31, 2005 and 2004

Revenues
Expense
Net profit

Earnings per share (Baht)

ASSETS

Cash and cash cquivalents

Other assets

Total Assets

LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY

Liabilities

Shareholders’ Equity

Total Liabilities and Shareholders’ Equity

Revenues
Expense

Net profit (loss)

Million Baht
2005 2004
281 244
198 _168
83 18
52.14 4771
Kasikorn Research Center Company Limited
Condensed Balance Sheet
As of December 31, 2005 and 2004
Million Raht
2005 2004
18 18
3 -3
23 23
7 7
16 16
4 23
Kasikorn Research Center Company Limited
Condensed Statements of Income
‘For Each of the Years Ended December 31, 2005 and 2004
Million Baht
2005 2004
57 48
56 53
-1 =3
151 (46.54)

Earnings (loss) per share (Baht)
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Kasikorn Leasing Company Limited
Condensed Balance Sheet

As of December 31, 2005 and 2004

Million Baht

2005 2004
ASSETS
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents 231 60
Current portion of hire purchase receivables - net 1,327 -
Current portion of finance lease receivables - net 72 -
Loans to sales representatives receivables — net ) 572 -
Other cuirent assets (213 -
Non-current assets
Hire purchase receivables - net oo 827
Finance lease receivables — net 33 : -
Premises and equipment — net 3 _-
Total Asscts 3.306 60
LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY
Liabilities
Short-term loans from financial institutions 1,038 -
Current portion of fong-term loan 55 -
Other current liabilities } 81
Long term loan - net 2,010 -
Shareholders’ Equity 122 60
Total Liabilities and Shareholders’ Equity 3306 60
Kasikom Leasing Company Limited
Condensed Statements of Income
For the Years Ended December 31, 2005
Million Baht
2005
Revenues 21
Expense _ 109
Net ioss __(88)
Loss per share (Baht) (10.30)
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Kasikorn Securities Public Company Limited

Condensed Balance Sheets

As of December 31, 2005 and 2004

ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents
[nvestments — net
Securities business receivibles
Premises and equipment — net
Other assets — net

Total Assets

LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY
Liabilities
Shareholders’ Equity

Total Liabilities and Sharcholders’ Equity

54

Million Baht

529
50
80

101

132

8ig

2004

R
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Kasikorn Securities Public Company Limited

Condensed Statements of Income

For Each of the Years Ended December 31, 2005 and 2004

Million Baht
2005 2004
Revenues 36 456
Expenses 120 357
Net (loss) profit 84) 99
(Loss) eaming per share (Baht) (1.39) 165
Kasikorn Asset Management Company Limited
| Condensed Balance Sheets
‘As of December 31, 2005 and 2004
Million Baht
2005 ' 2004
ASSETS
' Cash and cash equivalents 1o 83
Investments — net 701 627
Fee réceivables 105 81
Premises and cquipm;:nt - net 150 162
Properties foreclosed - net 1 1
Other assets - net _287 _ 338
Total Assets 1354 1202
LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY.
Liabilities 169 166
Sharcholders’ Equity 1,185 1126
Total Liabilities and Shareholders’ Equity Lﬁ 1,292
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Kasikorn Asset Management Company Limited
Condensed Statements of Income
For Each of the Years Ended December 31, 2005 and 2004
Million Baht

2005 2004
Revenues 924 767
Expense 656 559
Net pfoﬁt 268 208
Earnings per share (Baht) 2.86 169

The summary of financial position and results of operations of its subsidiaries, which are not included in the
consolidated financial statements, are as follows:

{Million Baht)

Balance Sheets
2005 2004
(Unaudited) (Audited)
{Reviewed)
Total Total Shareholders'  Total Total Shareholders’

Assets  Liabilities Equity Assets Liabilities Equity

Progress Gunpai Co., Ltd. 170 97 73 134 87 47
Progress Plus Co., Ltd. 54 30 24 69 46 . 23
Progress Facilities Management Co., Ltd. 25 10 15 25 9 - - 16
Progress Services Co., Ltd. 26 8 18 33 6 27
Progress Management Co., Ltd. ' 23 ) 16 17 6 11
Progress Storage Co., Ltd. 20 4 16 20 3 17
Progress Appraisal Co., Ltd. 56 20 36 47 19 28
Progress Software Co., Ltd. 101 38 63 62 21 41
Thai Administration Services Co., Lid.* - - - 89 -52 . 37
Progress HR Co., Ltd. 12 _8 _4 1 = _1

487 222 265 497 249 248

*On January 30, 2005, the Bank sold its investment in THai Administration Services Co., Ltd.
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(Million Baht except for Earnings (Loss) per Share)
Statements of Income
For Each of the Years Ended Decémber 31

2005 2004
(Unaudited) (Auditcd)
(Reviewed)
Net  Eamings Eamings
Profit  (loss) per Net per
Revenue Expenses (loss) Share (Bahy) Revenue Expenses Profit Share (Baht)
Progress Gunpai Co., Ltd. 228 201 27 134.27 167 154 13 66.28
Progress Plus Co., Ltd. ) 155 154 1 3.44 372 368 4 19.16
Progress Facilities Management Co.,-Ltd. 69 65 4 87.48 61 57 4 72.86
Progress Services Co., Ltd. 155 145 10 524.66 146 136 10 507.78
Progress Management Co., Ltd. 44 39 5 79.85 35 3_3 2 36.48
Progress Storage Co., Lid. . 32 24 8 ‘265.88 .26 19 7 22523
Progress Appraisal Co., Ltd. 167 159 8 1,667.26 - 150 . 137 13 251095
Progress Software Co., Ltd. 167 144 23 225.75 109 98 11 106.48
Progress HR Co., Ltd. 21 22 . (D) (55.62) - - - -
Thai Administration Services Co., Led # - - - - _ 93 83 10 4.04
1038 253 85 L9 108 14

*On January 30, 2005, the Bank sold its investment in Thai Administration Services Co., Ltd.
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8

LOANS AND ACCRUED INTEREST RECEIVABLES

Loans and accrued interest receivables as of December 31, 2005 and 2004 consisted of:

1. Classified by Type of Loans

Overdrafts .

Add Accrued interest receivable
Less Allowance for doubtful accounts
¢ss Revaluation allowance for
debt restructuring

Total

2. Classified by Maturity of Contracts

Within 1 year
Over 1 year

Total

(Million Baht)
Consolidated The Bank

2005 2004 2005 2004
123,940 133,708 118,536 125,871
271,048 259,209 266,317 243911
207,216 177,657 - 217,019 189,467
24,743 22015 19,218 18.868
626,947 592,589 621,090 578,117
L1745 _2455 1319 131
628,692 595,044 622,409 579,435
(34,767) (41,468) V (26,721) : (29,368)
2,672 (4.878) (2.355) (2297
391,253 348,698 23438 4L
) (Million Baht)
Consolidated - The Benk
398,190 374,926 402,257 378,858
230,502 220,118 220,152 200,577
628,692 395,044 622,409 . 579.435

3. Classified by Currencies and Residéncy of Borrowers

(Million Baht)

Consolidated
2005 2004
Domestic Foreign Total Domestic Foreign Total
Baht 606,292 12 606,304 568,678 12 568,690
US Dollars 18,898 985 19,883 21,496 1442 22938
Other currencies 2,495 . 10 2,505 3,400 16 3416
Total - 627,685

1007 628602 593,574 1470 595044
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(Million Baht)

The Bank
2005 : 2004
Domestic Foreign Total Domestic Foreign Total
Baht 600,009 12 600,021 553,069 12 553,081
US Dollars 18,898 985 19,883 21,496 1,442 22,938
Other currencies 2,495 _10 2,505 3.400 _16 _ 3416
Total 021402 1007 622,409 577,963 1470 579435
4. Classified by Type of Business aﬁd Account Status
{Million Baht)
Consolidated |
29_(-)5
Special Sub- Doubtful
Pass Mention ~ Standard  Doubtful  of Loss  Total
Agricultural and mining 16,011 180 102 254 1,578 18,165
Manufacturing and commerce 346,321 2,486 2,771 '7,70.1 22,012 381,291
Prdperty development and
construction 30,339 444 579 1,808 6,912 40,082
Infrﬁstmcturc and services 62,070 694 301 1,121 3,407 67,593
Housing loans _ _ 65,384 934 504 609 5,313 72,744
Others _46,463 345 _259 __57¢ 1172 _48.817
Total 566,588 5083 4516 12,111 40,394 628,692

59



Agricultural and mining

Manufacturing and commerce

Property development and
construction

Infrastructure and services

Housing loans

Others

Kesikom Factoring Co., Ltd.

Total

Agri_r;‘u'ltural énd mining

Manﬁfactu;ing a-nd commerce

Propcrty development and
cbnstruction

Inf_rastrucmre and services

Housing loans

Others v

Total

Pass
14,929
312,043

30,187
51,607
53,488

50215

312,469

ass
15,959
341,995

29911

59,342

65,230
60,368
212,805

Special
Mention

406
2,902

841
752
950

E b

Special

Mention

180

2,377

60

Consolidated
2004
Sub- Doubtful
Standard Doubitfu] of Loss
394 359 2,032
3,020 8,091 27,195
1,029 720 8,792
2,904 1,361 5,670
802 868 8,211
296 604 1,489
8.445 12.003 33,289 .
The Bank
2005
Sub- Doubzfui
Standard Doubtfuf aof Loss
102 294 1,378
2,761 7,674 15,416
579 1,807 4,000
299 1,120 2,544
504 609 3918
259 __578 __901
4.504 12,082 28,15

(Milion Baht)

Total -
18,120
353,251

41,569
62,294
64,319
53,036
592,589
_ 2455
295,044

(Million Baht)

Total
17,913

370,223

36,719

63,933

71,180
2441

62,

622.400



5.

Agricultural and mining
Manufacturing and commerces
Property development and

construction
Infrastructure and services
Housing loans
Others

Total

Ciassitied by Account Status

Pass

Special Mention

Sub-Standard

Doubtful

Doubtful of Loss

Allowance established in
eXCess of BOT reguiations

Total

27,343
49,766
53,288
643817
317,189

Loanus and

Accrued Interest

Receivables

566,588
5,083
4516

12,111
- 40,394

628,692

(Miltion Baht)

The Bank
2004
Special Sub- Doubtful
Mention  Standard Doubtful of Los Total
337 394 359 1,711 17,727
2,438 3,020 8,091 14,482 339,080
448 1,029 720 5,546 35,086
562 2,904 1,361 4,114 58,707
840 802 868 5832 61,630
387 296 604 Lot 67205
5012 8 12,003 36786 579438
Million Baht)
Consglidated :
e
Ouistanding Debt % Used for

after Deduction of Calculating Allowance for

Collateral Value The Allowangze  Doubtful Accounts

224,660 | 5,688%
882 2 192
1,024 20 205 <
5,239 750 2,619 -
14,678 < 100 14,739%=
— ) 11,423
246,483 34,367
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Loans and
Accrued Interest

PReceivables

Pass 512,469

Special Mention 6,283

Sub-Standard 8,445

Doubtful 12,003

Doubtful of Loss 53,389
Allowance established 1,1

excess of BOT regulailons e

592,589

Kasikoru Factaring Co., Ltd. 2,455

Total 595,044

(Million Baht)

Consolidated
2004
Qutstanding Debt % Used for
after Deduction of Calculating Aliowance for
Collateral Value The Allowdncs Doubtfﬁl Accounts
171,697 1 5,692*
1,377 2 191
3,807 20 761
3,271 50 1,635
18,598 100 18,928"‘
- 14,182
198,750 41,389
—2455 1

* Includes the allowance for doubtful sccounts of assct management companies as per the Bo't"s andit i'é_étilrs, which has

been transferred from the aliowance provided in excess of the BoT regulations.

** Includes the zilowance for doubiful accounts_ provide

restiustured deans in accordance with the BoT ragulation

Loans and

Accrued Interest

d by using number of past due days foi noenitigaied or non

3.

(Miilion Baht)

* TheBank
2005

Gutstanding Debt % Used for

after Deduction of Caluu!atiné Allowance for

ﬁeceivabl_éis C pllét‘eral Valuc The Allowance QMLM_AC_CM
Pass 572,805 233,166 ' ! 5,728
Special Meution 4,86] C141 2 97
Sub-Staadare 4504 ... 1013 .20, - 202
Doubtfu! . 12,082, . 3212 56 2,606 -
Deubtful of Loss 28,157 9,251 100 9,304*+
Alio@éncfc wtab)xshcdm . .‘ . . o
cmcsx ol BOT reguﬂ;ations - o _8e
Total 22.409 249383 28721
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The Bank
2004
Loans and Outstanding Debt
Accrued Interest  after Deduction of
Reccivab]és Collate%al Value
Pass 517,189 181,668
Special Mention 5,012 957
Sub-Standard 8,445 3,807
Doubtful 12,003 3,27t
Doubtful of Loss 36,786 11,560
Allowance established in
Excess of BOT regulations - -
Total 379435 201,263

% Used for
Calculating

The Allowance

1

2
20
50
100

(Million Baht)

Allowance for
Doub{tjful Accounts
5,175
100
761
1,635
11,831%*

0,866
29368

** Includes the allowance for doubtful accounts provided by using number of past due days for non-litigated or non

restructured loans in accordance with the BoT regulations.

Non-performing loans (NPL)

According to the BoT's directive dated January 16, 2003, effective for financial statements ended December 31, 2002,

non-performing loans (NPL) were redefined as sub-quality loans, being outstanding loans of sub-standard, doubtful,

doubtful of loss and loss loan accounts in accordance with the BoT's guidelines. This included fully-provisioned loans

which had previously been written-off.

As of December 31, 2005 and 2004, non-performing loans (including financial institutions) based on the above

directive can be summarized as follows:

Phethai - AMC
The Bank  (Original principal)

Non-performing loans 44388 . 11,720

Total loans used for NPL ratio
)

calculation 627,066 14,424
Percentage of total loans 7.08 81.25
63

2005
Kasikorn Kasikorn
Factoring Leasing
109 =
2,847 2,860
3.84 -

(Million Baht)

The Bank and
Subsidiaﬁcs
56,217
632,922
8.88




Non-performing loans

Total loans used for NPL ratio

.
calculation ®

Percentage of total loans

[{}]

2004
Phethai - AMC
The Bank {Original principal) Ploy - AMC
56,870 14,407 1,532
579,885 15,002 7,939
9.81 75.82 19.31

to financial institutions as included in interbank and money market items.

(Million Baht)

The Bank and
AMC
72,809

591,9017

12.30

Total loans used for NPL ratio calculation are loans to general customers as presented in the balance sheet and loans

@ Excluding loans to subsidiaries, as of December 31, 2005 and 2004 amounting to Baht 14,275 million and Baht

14,925 million, respectively.

Non-accrual loans (including financial institutions) were as follows:

Non-accrual loans
Total loans used for ratio
Calculation*

Percentage of total loans

Non-accrual loans
Total loans used for ratio
Calculation*

Percentage of total loans

The Bank
55,656

627,066
8.88

The Bank
71,353

579,885
1231

(Million Baht)

2005
Phethai - AMC Kasikomn Kasikorn The Bank and
(Qriginal principals) Factoring Leasing Subsidiaries
14,424 98 - 70,178
14,424 2,847 2,860 632,922%*
100.00 3.46 - 11.09
(Million Baht)
2004
Phethai - AMC Kasikomn The Bank-and
(Original principals)  Ploy - AMC Factoring Subsidiaries
19,002 7,939 55 98,349
19,002 7,939 2,455 594 356%*
100.00 100.00 223 16.55

* Total loans used for NPL ratio calculation are loans to general customers as presented in the balance sheet and loans to

financial institutions as included in interbank and money market items.

** Excluding loans to subsidiariés, as of December 31, 2005 and 2004 amounting to Baht 14,275 million and Baht 14,925

million, respectively.
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As of December 31, 2005 and 2004, loans to listed companies that meet SET's criteria for delisting were as follows:

(Million Baht)

Consolidated
2005 2004
Loans and Allowance Loans and Allowance
Accrued for Accrued for
Interest Collateral Doubtful Interest Collateral Doubtful
Receivables Value Accounts  Receivables Value Accounts
Listed companies which
meet SET's
criteria for delist_ing 1,093 397 61 1,499 834 274
(Miltion Baht)
The Bank
2005 2004
Loans and Allowance  Loansand Allowance
Accrued for Accrued for
Interest Collateral Doubtful Interest Collateral Doubtful
Receivables Yalue Accounts  Receivables Value Accounts
Listed companies
meet SET's
criteria for delisting 1,049 397 16 1,148 530 227

As of December 31, 2005 and 2004, the outstanding balances of loans to the Bank's wholly owned subsidiaries were as

follows:
(Million Baht)
2005
Type of loans Maturity Interest rate Amount
Phethai Asset Management Co., Ltd. Bills 3 Months 3-Month Fixed Deposit 8,925
Kasikorn Factoring Co., Ltd. Bills 1-6 Months Money Market Rate + 1,740
_ Spread 1% at least V '
Bills At Call Money Market Rate + 400
Spread 1% at least
Loans 1-2 Years Fixed Rate 245
Kasikom Leasing Co., Ltd. Bills 7-120 Days Money Market Rate 2,065
Loans - 1-4 Years Fixed Rate 900
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(Million Baht)

2004
Type of loans Maturity Interest rate Amount
Phethai Asset Management Co., Ltd. Bills 3 Months 3-Month Fixed Deposit 7,440
Ploy Asset Management Co., Ltd. Bills 3 Months 3-Month Fixed Deposit 5,665
Kasikorn Factoring Co., Ltd. Bills 1-6 Months Money Market Rate + 1,340

Spread 1% at least

Loans 3 Years Fixed Rate 430

Transferring of Sub-Standard Quality Assets to Thai Assets Management Corporation (TAMC)

In accordance with the Emergency Decree on the Thai Assets Management Corporation B.E. 2544, on October 12, 2001, the
Bank signed an Asset Tlansfer Agreement with TAMC to transfer eligible sub-standard quality assets outstanding as of
December 31, 2000 to TAMC All rights and duties associated with each transferred sub-standard quality asset were
transferred to TAMC at a price determined by the appraised value of the underlying collateral assets, provided that the price
did not exceed the book value of credits extended, less existing provisions outstanding, as required by law on the transfer date.
TAMC has 180 days from the date of each transfer to examine any transferred assets. TAMC will then quote the transfer price
within seven days after the end of the examination period. After confirming the price, TAMC will issue non-transferable 10-
year callable promissory notes guaranteed by FIDF. The notes bear interest equal to the weighted average of the deposii rates
of five major banks, and are paid at the end of each year by means of a non-transferable, extendable one-year promissory note,
guaranteed by FIDF. The rights to these notes and the received notes are included in investments in held-to-maturity debt

instruments.

In accordance with the Emergency Decree and the Asset Transfer Agreement, TAMC and thc Bank will share jointly the
proflts and responsibility for any losses on transferred assets, which are payable on the fifth and the tenth anniversaries of the
transfers, starting from July 1, 2001. In the case of losses, the Bank will first be responsible for any loss, not exceeding 20% of
the transfer pricc. The second portion of losses, again not exceeding 20% of the transfer price, will be equally shared by
TAMC and the Bank. Any remaining loss would then be absorbed by TAMC. In addition, expensesiofTAMC are included in
the calculation of the gain or loss Sharing. In the case of profit, the .ﬁrst portion of profits up to 20% of the transfer price is to
be \shared equélly by TAMC and the Bank. Should there be any profit over and above this; the Bank is entitled to the

remainder up to the gross book value of the assets, less the transfer price and the Bank's share in the first portion of the profits.

For each of the years ended December 31, 2005 and 2004, the Bank transferred to TAMC sub-quality assets relating to 2
borrowers and 4 borrowers with a gross book value (as of their transfer dates) of Baht 19 million and Baht 61 million,
respectively (up to December 31, 2005 totaling Baht 14,557 million). The estimated total transfer price was Baht 15 million
and Baht 61 million (up to December 31, 2005 totaling Baht 10,123 million). As of December 31, 2005, the Bank received
promissory notes from TAMC of Baht 10,118 million and TAMC is examining the remaiﬁing assets of Baht 5 million and will

confirm the transfer price in order to issue notes to the Bank within the aforementioned timeframe.
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9 TROUBLED DEBT RESTRUCTURING

During the years ended December 31, 2005 and 2004, the Bank and its subsidiaries (Phethai - AMC and Ploy - AMC)

engaged in debt restructuring contracts as follows:

Debt restructuring contracts
that incurred losses
Debt restructuring contracts

that incurred no losses

Total

Types of Restructuring

Transfers of assets

Chahges of fepayment conditions -

Debt restructuring in various forms

Total

(Million Baht)
Consolidated The Bank
2005 2004 2005 2004
Total Total Total Total
Outstanding Outstanding Outstanding Outstanding
Debt Before Debt Before Debt Before Debt Before
Cases Restructuring Cases Restructuring Cases Restructuring Cases Restructuring
2,514 14,787 5,227 31,398 2,115 9,574 4,454 17,634
14,276 20,943 14218 26,057 14,061 19.866 13,478 23.239
16790 35730 19445 37455 16176 29440 17932 40873
Losses on debt restructuring for each of the years ended December 31, 2005 and 2004 were as follows:
(Miilion Baht)
Consolidated
2005
The Outstanding Debt Transferred Assets Loss on
Before After Debt
Cases Restructuring  Restructuring Types Fair Valug  Restructuring
1,792 5,985 - Cash, land, 3,834 2,151
premises
and investments
617 7,081 6,548 . - 1869
105 1,721 1,028 Cash, land, 572 422
premiises
- - _ and investments e P
- 2514 14,787 1576 4.406 3442




(Million Baht)

Consolidated

2004
The Outstanding Debt Transferred Assets Loss on
Before After Debt
Types of Restructuring Cases Restructuring  Restructuring Types Fair Value Restructuring
Transfers of assets 4,049 13,115 - Cash, land, 8,113 5,002

Premises
and investments
Changes of repayment conditions 852 14,105 13,285 - - 1,973
Debt restructuring in various forms 326 4,178 1,559 Cash, land, 1,108 2,152
premises

and investments

Total 3227 31398 14,844 9221 2.127

(Million Baht)

The Bank
2005
The Outstanding Debt Transferred Assets Loss on
Before After Debt
Types of Restructuring Cases  Restructuring . Restructuring Types Fair Value  Restructuring
Transfers of assets 1,675 5,336 - Cash, land, 3,456 1,880
v premises

and investments
Changes of repayment conditions 341 2,537 2,242 - - 512
Debt restructuring in various forms 99 1,701 1,016 Cash, land, 566 419
premises

and investments

Total 2115 2,574 3238 4.022 2.811
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(Million Baht)

The Bank
2004
The Outstanding Debt ‘ Transferred Assets Loss on
Before After Debt
Types of Restructuring Cases  Restructuring  Restructuring Types Fair Value Restructuring
Transfers of assets 3,926 11,822 - Cash, land, 7,386 4,436
premises

and investments
Changes of repayment conditions 247 2,351 2,142 - - 410
Debt restructuring in various forms 281 3,461 1,312 Cash, land, 977 1,691
premises

and investments

Total 4,454 11634 3.454 8,363 6.537

The Bank and its subsidiaries measure the expected recoverable amounts of loans restructured by changing repayment

conditions by using the present value of future cash flows discounted by the market rate.

The terms of debt restructuring agreements with debts which were restructured by changing the repayment conditions

and restructured in various other ways and which resulted in losses on debt restructuring during the years ended

December 31, 2005 and 2004 are as follows: A
(Million Baht)
Consolidated
2005 2004
The Outstanding Debt E The Qutstanding Debt
Terms of debt Before After End of Before Aftgr End of
restructuring agreements  Cases Restructuring Restructuring Years Cases Restructuring Restructuring Years
Less than 5 years 431 4,470 3,691 2,339 900 12,730 10,578 8,367
Sto loyears 110 2,772 2,389 1,876 159 2,065 1,528 1,298
Over 10 years 181 _1,560 1,496 1,163 119 3,488 2,738 2,388
Total 22 8,802 1576 2,378 L1738 18283 14,844 12,053
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(Million Baht)

The Bank
2005 2004
The nding Debt The Outstanding Deb

Terms of debt Before After End of Before After End of
restructuring agreements  Cases Restructuring Restructuring Year Cases Restructuring Restructuring Year
Less than 5 years 272 2,243 1,652 1,214 476 4,152 2,755 2,238

5 to 10 years 76 1,592 1,258 1,210 21 353 104 103
Over 10 years 92 403 348 243 31 1307 595 _588
Total 440 4,238 3.258 2,667 528 5812 3454 2928

The Bank and its subsidiaries recognized interest income from debt restructuring for each of the years ended December

31, 2005 and 2004 as follows:

(Million Baht)

Consolidated The Bank
2005 2004 2005 2004
Debt restructuring contracts that incurred losses 790 2,352 411 927

As of December 31, 2005 and 2004, the Bank had commitments to extend additional loans to these borrowers as

follows:
(Million Baht)
Consolidated and The Bank
2005 2004
Debt restructuring contracts that incurred losses 89 90

As of December 31, 2005 and 2004, the Bank and its subsidiaries had outstanding balances on debtors which were

restructured during the year as follows: . .
(Million Baht)

Consolidated The Bank
2005 2004 2005 2004
Debt restructuring contracts that incurred losses 5,378 12,053 2,667 2,929
Debt restructuring contracts that incurred no losses 14,502 16,220 1_1,&99 14,343
Total 19,880 28273 16.467 17.272

As of December 31, 2005 and 2004, the Bank and its subsidiaries had outstanding balances relating to all restructured
debtors which had been performing in accordance with debt restructuring agreements as follows:

(Million Baht)

Consolidated The Bank
2005 2004 2005
Debt restructuring contracts that incurred losses 19,844 23,448 17,074
Debt restructuring contracts that incurred no losses 30,228 44293 28967
Total 50,072 67,741

2004
14,625
39,532



i0 ALLOWANCE FOR DOUBTFUL ACCOUNTS

The movements in the allowance for doubtful accounts during the years were as follows:

Balance at beginning of the year

Transferred from investments in
receivables

Doubtful accounts (reversal)

Bad debts recovered

Bad debts written off

Allowance for loans transferred to
TAMC

Allowance for loans transferred to
KBank

Kasikorn Factoring Co., Ltd*

Others

Balance at end of the year

5,692

472

(502)
26

.688

Consolidated

(Million Baht)

2005
Allowances
Established in
Special Sub- Doubtful ~ Excess of BoT
Mention  Standard Doubtful of Loss Regulations Total
191 761 1,635 18,928 14,182 41,389
y - - 517 - 517
(75) (559) 971 2,699 (2,958) 550
- - - 955 - 955
- - - (6,133) - (6,133)
- - - 4 - 4
(16) - - (1,716) (607) (2,841)
2 3 13 33 6 83
— - - (557) 800 243
2 20 2619 14230 11423 14267

*As of December 31, 2005 , allowance for receivables of Kasikorn Factoring Co., Ltd. has been classified under BoT regulations.

(Million Baht)

Pass
Balance at beginning of the year 4,424
Transferred from investments inv
receivables -
Doubtful accounts (reversal) 1,268
Bad debts recovered -
Bad debts written off -
Others -
Balance at end of the year 5692

Kasikom Factoring Co., Ltd

Balance at end of the year

Special
Mention

276

(85)

191

Sub-
Standard
130

631

61

Consolidated
2004
Allowances
Established in
Doubtful Excess of BoT
Doubtful of Loss Regulations Total
928 34,891 20,145%* 60,794
- 778 - 778
707 (2,142) (5.963)** (5,584)
- 1,565 - 1,565
- (16,348) - (16,348)
— 184 - 184
1,635 18,928 14,182 41,389
1
41,468

** Include normalized provisioning of Baht 1,600 million for balance at the beginning of the year and of Baht 800 million for additional

normalized provisions during the year.
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Balance at beginning of the year

Transferred from investments in
receivables

Doubtful accounts (reversal)

Bad debt recovered

Bad debt written off

Allowance for loans transferred to

TAMC
Others

Balance at end of the year

Balance at beginning of the year
Doubtful accounts (reversal)
Bad debt recovered

Bad debt written off

Others

Balance at end of the year

5,175

553

2,175

Special

Mention

100

®

Sl

Special

Mention
245

(145)

100

Sub-
Standard

761

(559)

Sub-
Standard

130

631

61

The Bank
2005

Al

{Million Baht)

lowances

Established in

Doubtful Excess of BoT

Doubtful of Loss Regulations Total
1,635 11,831 9,866 29,368
- 517 - 517
971 1,179 (1,082) 1,059
- 955 - 955
- (5,108) - (5,108)
- 4 - 4
- (74) - (74)
2,606 2304 8,784 26,721
{Million Baht)
The Bank
2004
Allowances

Established in

Doubtful Excess of BoT

Doubtful of Loss Regulations
928 23,563 15,2154+
707 (785) (5,349)*+

- 1,565 -

- (12,381) -
- _(131) -
1635 11.831 2.866

Total
44,596
(4,281)
1,565
(12,381)
(131

** Include normalized provisioning of Baht 1,600 million for balance at beginning of the year and of Baht 800 million for

additional normalized provisions during the year.

72



11

12

REVALUATION ALLOWANCE FOR DEBT RESTRUCTURING

The movements in the revaluation allowance for debt restructuring during the years were as follows:

Balance at beginning of the year
Increase

Decrease due to writing off
Transfer on loan disposal
Change of classification
Amortization to interest income

Balance at end of the year

PROPERTIES FORECLOSED

Consolidated
2005 2004
4,878 6,666
552 1,586
(665) (2,699)
(1,257) -
(464) 837
372 (1,512)
2672 4.878

Properties foreclosed as of December 31, 2005 and 2004 consisted of:

Type of Foreclosed Properties
1. Assets acquired from debt repayment
1.1 Immovable assets
1.2 Movable assets
Total
2. Others
Total Foreclosed Prdperties
Less Allowances for impairment

Total Foreclosed Properties — net

Consolidated
2005

Beginning _

Balance Addition Disposal

20,263 5,139 (5,418)
—28 —_ _
20,291 5,139 (5,418)

—926 - (174

21,217 5,139 (5,592)

(3.820) (8 900

12397 4758 (4.692)

73

(Million Baht)
The Bank
2005 2004
2,297 4,721
432 513
(665) (2,699)
355 -
(64) (238)
2355 2297
(Million Baht)
Ending
Balance
19,984
28
20,012
_752
20,764
(3.301)
12.463



(Million Baht)

Consolidated

2004

Beginning Ending

Type of Foreclosed Properties Balance Addition Disposal Balance
1. Assets acquired from debt repayment

1.1 Immovable assets 17,075 5,780 (2,592) 20,263
1.2 Movable assets _ 28 - - _ 28
Total 17,103 5,780 (2,592) 20,291
2. Others 1,16 4 (247 __926
Total Foreclosed Properties 18,272 5,784 (2,839) 21,217
Less Allowances for impairment (3.755) _(705) 640 820
Total Foreclosed Properties ~ net 14517 5079 (2,199) 17,397

" (Million Baht)

The Bank
2005
Beginning Ending
Type of Foreclosed Properties Balance Addition Disposal Balance
1. Assets acquired from debt repayment

1.1 Immovable assets 15,797 3,478 (4,239) 15,036
1.2 Movable assets _ 28 - - 28
Total 15,825 3,478 (4,239) 15,064

2. Others _ 246 - _ (8% __161
Total Foreclosed Properties 16,071 3,478 (4,324) 15,225
Less Allowances for impairment (3.336) _(63) _177 (2,622)
Total Foreclosed Properties - net 12,735 3415 (3.547) 12,603
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{(Million Baht)

The Bank
2004
Beginning Ending

Type of Foreclosed Properties Balance Addition Disposal Balance
1. Assets acquired from debt repayment

1.1 Immovable assets 13,891 4,285 (2,379) 15,797

1.2 Movable assets . 28 - - 28

Total 13,919 4,285 (2,379 15,825

2. Others _283 - (1 246
Total Foreclosed Properties 14,202 4,285 (2,416) 16,071
Less Allowances for impairment (3,342 _(545) _ 551 (3,336)
Total Foreclosed Pro;-)erties - net 10,860 3,740 (1,865) 12,735
CLASSIFIED ASSETS

As of December 31, 2005 and 2004, assets of the Bank and its subsidiaries classified as investments, loans and accrued
interest receivable (including financial institutions), properties foreclosed and other assets were categorized by quality
in compliance with the BoT regulations, taking into account analyses of each loan and appraisal of the financial

standing of each borrower,were as follows:

(Million Baht)
Consolidated
2005
Loans and Accrued Properties
nvestmen Interes‘tReceivables Foreclosed Other Assets g tal
Pass - 571,646 - - 571,646
Special Mention . - 5,039 - - 5,039
Sub-Standard - 4,515 - - 4,515
Doubtful . 12,110 - - 12,110
Doubitful of Loss 3,526 40,395 1,712 73 _46,406
Total 3526 633,705 L712 173 639,716
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Pass

Special Mention
Sub-Standard
Doubtful
Doubtful of Loss

Total

Pass

Special Mention
Sub-Standard
Doubtful
Doubtful of Loss

Total

Pass

Special Mention
Sub-Standard
Doubtful
Doubtful of Loss

Total

Investments

Investments

3.405

Investments

Loans and Accrued

Interest Receivables

516,385
6,283
8,445

12,024

53422

596,559

Loans and Accrued
Interest Receivables
577,862
4,817
4,504
12,083
28,156

\

Loans and Accrued
Interest Receivables

518,704
5,012

8,445

12,003
36,786
580,930

76

Consolidated
2004
Properties
Foreclosed Other Assets
1,736 1,102
L736 1102
The Bank
2005
Properties
Foreclosed Other Assets
1,402 745
1402 145
The Bank
2004
Properties
Foreclosed Qther Assets
1,369 991
L1369 291

{Million Baht)

516,385
6,283
8,445

12,024

_61.420

(Million Baht)

Total

577,862
4,817
4,504

12,083

33,708

032,974

(Million Baht)

Total
518,704
5,012
8,445
12,003
42,308
586,472
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DEPOSITS

Deposits as of December 31, 2005 and 2004 were classified as follows:

1. Classified by Type of Deposits

(Million Baht)

Term

Consolidated The Bank
2005 2004 2005 2004
Current 39,702 38,063 39,962 38,367
Savings 390,021 384,437' 390,891 384,548
- Less than 6 months 190,220 225,246 190,220 225,246
- 6 months and less than 1 year 17,408 4,928 17,408 4,928
- 1 year and over | year 50430 _52,896 50430 _52.896
Total 687,781 105,570 688,911 205,985

2. Classified by Matu.rity of Contracts
(Million Baht)

Consolidated The Bank
2005 2004 2005 2004
Within 1 year 678,980 699,457 680,110 699,872
Over 1 year _8.801 6113 _8.801 _6.113
Total 687.78] 205,570 688911 705,985

3. Classified by Currencies and Residency of Depositors

(Miilion Baht)

Consolidated
2005 ' 2004
Domestic Foreign Total Domestic Foreign Total
Baht 667,887 16,169 684,056 685,842 15,871 701,713
US Dollars 3,068 114 3,182 3,234 185 3,419
Other currencies 487 56 543 359 79 _ 438
Total 671,442 16,339 687,781 689435 16135 105,570
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(Mitlion Baht)

84

The Bank
2005 2004
Domestic Foreign Total Domestic Foreign Total

Baht 669,017 16,169 685,186 686,257 15,871 702,128

US Dollars 3,068 114 3,182 3,234 185 3,419
Other currencies 437 56 543 359 _ 1 __ 438
Total 672,572 16339 688911 689.850 16135 205,985

INTERBANK AND MONEY MARKET ITEMS (LIABILITIES)
Interbank and money market items (liabilities) as of December 31, 2005 and 2004 consisted of:
(Million Baht)
Consolidated
2005 2004
Atcall Term Total Atcall Term Total
1. Domestic
The BoT and FIDF - 8,087 8,087 - 2,691 2,691
Commercial banks 1,205 520 1,725 862 132 994
Other banks 101 - 101 140 - 140
Finance, securities and
¢redit foncier companies 2,989 1,260 4,249 2,265 10 2,275
Other financial institutions __658 4246 4,904 705 4,445 5,150
Total Domestic 4,953 14,113 19,066 3972 7278 1,250
2. Foreign

US Dollars 42 - 42 17 - 17
Yen 55 - 55 6 - 6
Other currencies _345 - 345 252 - 252
Total Foreign _442 o 442 275 - _ 275
Total Domestic and Foreign 5395 14,113 19,508 4,247 1,278 11,525
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1.

(18]

(Million Baht)

The Bank
2005 2004
Atcall Term Total Atcall Term Total
Domestic
The BoT and FIDF - 8,087 8,087 - 2,691 2,691
Commercial banks 1,066 400 1,466 627 7 634
Other banks 101 - 101 140 - 140
Finance, securities and
credit foncier companies 2,989 1,260 4,249 2,265 10 2,275
Other financial institutions 658 4,246 4,904 _1705 4,445 515
Total Domestic 4814 13,993 18,807 3737 7.153 10,890
rei
US Dollars 42 - 42 17 - 17
Yen 55 - 55 6 - 6
Other currencies _345 - 345 252 - _ 252
Total Foreign _442 - 442 275 - _ 275
Total Domestic and Foreign 5,256 13,993 19,249 4012 7153 11,165

SHORT-TERM BORROWINGS

2004
- The Bank has issued short-term unsubordinated debentures in name certificate without security and not
convertible, without debenture holder representative in Thai Baht currency not exceeding Baht 50,000
million, with a maturity of no more than 270 days and an interest rate of 1.35% per annum payable quarterly
in order to allow the Bank better flexibility and a wider variety of administration of its funding structure and
to expand the investment alternatives to the public and/or depositors of the Bank.

2005

- The Bank has issued short-term unsubordinated debentures in name certificate without security and not -
convertible, non-transferable, without debenture holder representative in Thai Baht currency not exceeding
Baht 10,000 million, with a maturity of no more than 270 days and an interest rate of 1.35% per annum
payable on maturity. The Bank has issued similar its characteristics, types and maturity of preceding
debentures with the range of interest rate of 4.11% - 4.46% per annum payable on maturity, proposed to the
corporates. Those are subjected to allow the Bank better flexibility and a wider variety of administration of

its funding structure and to expand the investment alternatives to the public and/or depositors of the Bank.
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- The Bank has issued short-term unsubordinated debentures in name certificate without security and not
convertible, non-transferable, without debenture holder representative in Thai Baht currency not exceeding
Baht 10,000 million, with a maturity of no more than 270 days and an interest rate of 3.25% per annum
payable on maturity to expand the investment alternatives to the public and/or de;;ositors of the Bank.

- The Bank has issued of Promissory notes without security and not convertible and non-transferable in Thai
Baht currency not exceeding Baht 10,000 million, with a maturity of no more than 1 year and 11 months and
its béneﬁts payment will be paid in accordance with terms and conditions in the contracts to expand the

investment alternatives to the public and/or depositors of the Bank.

LONG-TERM BORROWINGS

Long-term borrowings as of December 31, 2005 and 2004 consisted of:

(Million Baht)
Consolidated and The Bank
2005 2004

Domestic Foreign Total ‘ Domestic ~ Foreign Total

Subordinated Debentures - 8,170 8,170 - 7,768 7,768
Subordinated Debentures

KASIKORNBANK Pic. No.3 12,000 - 12,000 12,000 - 12,000

Total 12000 8170 20070 12000  LI68 19768

SUBORDINATED DEBENTURES
The Board of Directors in its meeting on July 25, 1996 approved the issuance of US$ 200 million of unsecured
subordinated debentures, having a face value of US$ 100,000 each, with a twenty-year maturity offered at a price of

US$ 98,997 each on August 21, 1996 and carrying an 8.25 percent coupon rate payable semi-annually.

SUBORDINATED DEBENTURES NO.3

The Board of Directors in its meeting on September 25, 2003 approved the issuance of these Subordinated Debentures
in name certificate without security and not convertible, having debenture holder representative in Thai Baht currency
not éxceeding Baht 12,000 million, with a maturity of no more than 10 years in order to raise long-term funding a
reasonable cost, to efficiently manage the interest rate risk and liquidity risk, as well as to strengthen the status of the
Banks tier two capital funds. On October 16, 2003, the Bank issued the Subordinated Debentures of
KASIKORNBANK PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED No.3 Due A.D. 2013 in the amount of Baht 12,000 million, with
a ten-year maturity. In accordance with certain terms and conditions and with the approval of the Bank of Thailand,
the Bank‘may redeem the debentures before maturity as follows: (1) on the fifth anniversary of the issue date or any
subsequent interest payment date after the fifth anniversary of the issue date; or (2) if the Bank can demonstrate that
interest payments under the Debentures are no longer, or will no longer be, deductible as an expense for income tax
purposes; or (3) in any other case as may be later stipulated by the Bank of Thailand. The debentures bear interest at
the fixed interest rate for the first five years of 3.75 % per annum and the fixed interest rate for the second five years of

4.25 % per annum. Interest is payable quarterly.
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WARRANTS

The Board of Directors in its meeting on September 25, 2003 approved the second issuance of warrants of 100 million
units having a six-year maturity, to existing shareholders in the ratio of eight ordinary shares for each warrant, at a
price of Baht 25 each totaling Baht 2,500 million. Each warrant can be exercised quarterly over their maturity for a
Baht 10 par value ordinary share at a price of Baht 200 each. The subscription period was during September 4-12,
1996. On August 20, 1999, the exercise price was adjusted to Baht 131.832 with the exercise ratio of 1.51708 ordinary
shares for each warrant. The last exercise date was September 16, 2002 and expired warrants amounting to Baht 2,520

million have been presented in the financial statements as premium on expired warrants.

A resolution was passed by the Extraordinary Meeting of Shareholders held on August 11, 1999 authorizing (i) the
issuance and offering for sale of 50,000,000 units of warrants for ordinary shares of the Bank to the Bank's employees,
except for directors, under a three-year scheme and (i) allocating 50,000,000 new ordinary shares from the increase of
the authorized share capital, with a par value of Baht 10 each, to support the exercise of the warrants for ordinary

shares of the Bank to be 1ssued and offered for sale to Bank employees, except for directors, under the above scheme.

Warrants issued to Bank employées (except directors) consisted of:

7. Term of exercise period

Details of Warrants ' Phase 1 Phase 2 Phase 3
1. Offering date August 1-31, 2000 December 7-28, 2001 December 2-30, 2002
2. Maturity five-year and four-month five-year and one-day five-year
3. Offering price zero Baht zero Baht zero Baht
4. Right to exercise 1 warrant : 1 ordinary share 1 warrant : 1 ordinary share 1 warrant : 1 ordinary share
S. Exercise price 30 Baht 30 Baht 27.82 Baht
6. Exercise date June and December June and December March , June ,
(every last business day) ) September and December

8. Total offered 18,500,000 units 5,000,000 units 26,500,000 units
9. Total allocated 15,612,600 units 3,962,500 units 26,490,560 units
10. Total allocated and accepted 15,586,300 units 3,885,300 units 26,048,380 units-
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Dec. 28, 2001 - Dec. 30,2005 Dec. 30, 2002 - Dec. 29,2006 Dec. 30, 2003 — Dec. 30, 2007



The movements of warrants during the year
Beginning balance as of January 1, 2004
Less Exercised
Less Exercise right terminated by
employee's retirement
Ending balance as of December 31, 2004
Less Exercised
Less Exercise right terminated by
employee's retirement
Less Exercise right expired

Ending balance as of December 31, 2005

Number of Unit

Phase 1 Phase 2 Phase 3 Total
8,245,760 2,422,120 23,147,528 33,815,408
(3,495,120) (711,420) (4,136,778) (8,343,318)
(112,040) {43.200) (318.496) (473,736)
4,638,600 1,667,500 18,692,254 24,998 354
(4,307,660) (824,680) (6,161,060) (11,293,400
(71,640) (31,300) (448,326) (551,266)
(259,300 - - _{259,300)
—_— 811,520 12,082 868 12,894,388
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21 SHARE CAPITAL AND EARNINGS PER SHARE

As of December 31, 2005, the calculation of basic eamings per share was based on profit attributable to ordinary
shareholders of Baht 13,930 Million (2004: Baht 15,340 Million) and the weighted average number of ordinary shares
outstanding during the year ended December 31, 2005 of 2,371,366,311 shares (2004 : 2,362,466,731 shares)

nsolidated and The Bank
Number of the weighted average

number of ordinary shares

For each of the years ended
Share capital December 31
Amount 2005 2004
Shares (Million Baht) (Shares) (Shares)
Issued ordinary shares as of January 1, 2004 2,333,518,072 23,535 2,363,624,537 2,353,518,072
Add:
- The Bank registered the changed of its paid-up
capital as a result from the conversion of Class A
Preferred Shares into ordinary shares
January 13,2004 : v 547,345 5 529,400
- The Bank registered the change in its paid-up share
capital as a result of the increases in paid-up
capital from the exercise of warrants for ordinary
shares which were issued and offered for sale to
Bank employees (except for directors)
2004
January 9 : 7,485,832 75 7,322,207
April 16: 675,722 7 480,021
July 12: 1,222,340 12 577,773
October 12: 175,226 2 39,258
0,106,463 101
Issued ordinary shares as of December 31, 2004 2,363,624,537 23,636
2005
January 11 : 6,270,030 63 6,098,248
April 11 : 879,298 9 638,395
July 12 : 1,769,226 18 838,565
October 12 : 750,576 1 166,566
9,669,130 91
Issued ordinary shares as of December 31, 2005 2,373,293 667 23,733
Weighted average number of ordinary shares as of
December 31 2,371,366.311 2,362,466,731
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CAPITAL REQUIREMENTS

The ratios of capital to assets (Capital Adequacy Ratio) as of December 31, 2005 and 2004 were calculated from the

financial statements of the Bank and include the risk assets of the Bank's two subsidiary asset management companies

as follows:
(Million Baht)
2005 2004
Tier 1 Capital
Issued and fully paid up share capital, premiums on
share capital, warrants and premiums on warrants 41,470 41,191
Legal reserves 770 -
N_et income after appropriation 20,068 _7,585
Total Tier 1 Capital 62,308 487
Tier 2 Capital
Surplus on land revaluation 4,288 4,168
Surplus on premises revaluation . 1,947 1,401
Surplus on marketable equity securities revaluation 134 406
Provision for normal assets 5,748 5,725
Subordinated debentures 20,132 19,735
Total Tier 2 Capital 32,249 ) 31.435
Total Capita! Requirements 94,557 80,211

The BoT's regulations requires that banks registered in Thailand maintain a ratio of capital funds to assets and
contigencies of not less than 8.5% and that tier-1 capital must not be less than 4.25% of such assets and contigencies.

Capital adequacy ratios maintained by the Bank were as follows:

Percentage
2005 2004
Total Capital Requirements 14.47 13.13
Tier-1 Capital 9.53 7.98

LEGAL RESERVE

According to The Public Company Act, the Bank has to allocate at least 5 percent of its net income for the year, less
accumulated net loss (if any), to capital reserves until this reserved capital is not less than 10 percent of authorized
share capital, and under the provisions of the Civil and Commercial Code of Thailand, subsidiary companies are
required to set aside as a legal reserve at least 5 percent of its net income each time a dividend is declared unti! the

reserve reaches 10 percent of authorized share capital. The reserve is not available for dividend distribution.
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DIVIDEND PAYMENTS
On April 8, 2005, the General Meeting of Shareholders of the Bank approved to pay dividends from the operating

results of 2004 at the rate of Baht 1 per share, totaling Baht 2,370 million, which was paid on April 18, 2005.

BAD DEBT AND DOUBTFUL ACCOUNTS (REVERSAL)

Bad debt and doubtful accounts (reversal) for each of the years ended December 31, 2005 and 2004 consisted of:

(Million Baht)
Consolidated The Bank
2005 2004 - 2005 2004
General customers 554 (5,576) 1,059 (4,281)
Financial institutions 45 583 __45 583
Total 599 (6.159) 1104 (4.864)

L.OSS ON DEBT RESTRUCTURING
Loss on debt restructuring for each of the years ended December 31, 2005 and 2004 consisted of:

(Million Baht)

Consolidated The Bank
2005 2004 2005 2004
Net present value of cash flows lower
than investments in receivables (reversal
for non-performing restructured loans) 552 1,586 432 513
Transferred assets lower
than investments in receivables 2,511 7333 1,999 5,816
Total 3,063 8919 2431 6,329

ASSETS PLEDGED AS COLLATERAL

Assets pledged as collateral as of December 31, 2005 and 2004 consisted of:
(Million Baht)
Consolidated and The Ban

2005 2004
Deposits 79 ' -
Government bonds 6,719 6,733
State enterprise bonds 3,252 3,866
Foreign bonds 2,835 4,645
Total 12,885 15244

The Bank has pledged these assets as collateral for derivatives, for electricity consumption, for court collateral and for

repurchase agreements.
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CONTINGENCIES

Contingencies as of December 31, 2005 and 2004 consisted of:

Avals on bills

Letters of indemnity-
borrowing

Other guarantees

Letters of credit

Exchange rate agreements
Purchase agreements
Sale agreements

Interest rate agreements
Purchase agreements
Sale agreements

Credit Default Swap

Unused credit line of
overdraft

Others

Total

Consolidated
2005
Baht Foreign Currency Total Baht
505 - 505 340
2 241 243 34
41,799 5,872 47,671 31,494
1,187 12,440 13,627 626
15,495 144,618 160,113 13,093
9,315 256,004 265,319 4,695
83,787 34,422 118,209 30,510
83,787 30,936 114,723 30,510
- 5,955 5,955 -

116,263 - 116,263 110,224
774 6,298 7,072 272
352914 496786  849.700 221,798
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(Million Baht)
2004

Foreign Currency Total
- 340
243 277
4,210 35,704
13,477 14,103
64,575 77,668

192,112 196,807

24,097 54,607
20,165 50,675
5,468 5,468

- 110,224
5823 6095
330170 35L968




(Million Baht)

The Bank
2005 2004
Baht Foreign Currency  Total Baht Foreign Currenc Total

Avals on bills 505 - 505 340 - 340
Letters of indemnity-

borrowing 2 241 243 34 243 277
Other guarantees 41,787 5,748 47,535 31,494 4,096 35,590
Letters of credit 1,187 12,440 13,627 626 13,477 14,103
Exchange rate agreements

Purchase agreements 15,495 144,618 160,113 13,093 64,575 77,668

Sale agreements 9,315 256,004 265,319 4,695 192,112 196,807
Interest rate agreements

Purchase agreements 83,787 34,422 118,209 30,510 24,097 54,607

Sale agreements " 83,787 30,936 114,723 30,510 20,165 50,675
Credit Default Swap - 5,955 5,955 - 5,468 5,468
Unused credit line of

overdraft _ 116,263 - 116,263 110,224 - 110,224
Others 774 6,298 7,072 272 5.823 6,095

Total 352,902 496,662  849.564 221,798 330,056 551,854

Under normal business operations, the Bank is a defendant in various litigation against the Bank. These include cases of
wrongful acts brought against the Bank, with total claims amounting to Baht 9,198 million and Baht 1,628 million as of
December 31, 2005 and 2004, respectively. The Management believes that any liability resulting from this litigation will

not be material to the Bank's financial position or on the results of operations.
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29 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

1. Loans and contingencies made to executive officers and to business entities where the Bank and its subsidiaries, their
directors or executive officers, holds 10% or more of their paid-up ‘capital, as of December 31, 2005 and 2004 are
summarized as follows:

{Million Baht)

Consolidated

2005 2004
End of Year End of Year
Loans
1. Executive officers 23 20
2. Business entities where the Bank and subsidiaries,
their directors or executive officers,
hold 10% or mlore of the paid - ﬁp capital(l) 4,091 1,192
Total 4114 1212
Qqntingengies
1. Executive officers - -
2. Business entities where the Bank and subsidiaries,
their directors or executive officers,
hold 10% or more of the paid - up capital 31 14
Total S1 74
(Million Baht)
The Bank
2005 2004
End of Year End of Year
Loans
1. Exec'utive officers 23 20
2. Businzss entities where the Bank,
its directors or executive officers,
hold 10% or more of the paid - up capital(” 15,401 16,117
Tolai 15,424 16,137
Contingencies -
1. Executive officers - -
2. Business entities where the Bank,
its directors or executive officers,
hold 10% or more of the paid - up capital 61 76
Total 61 6

m . N . " . N .
Transactions occurring between the Bank and related business entities are charged at market price as with other normal business.
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2. Related Party

Relationships between the Bank and other business entities where control exists consisted of:

Company Name

Phethai Asset Management Co., Ltd.
Ploy Asset Management Co., Ltd.
Progress Land and Buildings Co., Ltd.
Kasikom Factoring Co., Ltd.
Kasikorn Research Center Co., Ltd.
Progress Gunpai Co., Ltd.

Progress Plus Co., Ltd.

Progress Facilities Management Co., Ltd,

Progess Management Co., Ltd.
Progress Software Co., Ltd.
Kasikorn Leasing Co., Ltd.

Kasikorn Asset Management Co., Ltd.

Progress Storage Co., Ltd.
Kasikorn Securities Public Co., Ltd.
Progress Service Co., Ltd.

P‘rogr'ess HR Co.; ud,

Proéress Appraisal Co., Ltd.

Thai Administration Services Co., Ltd.*

Type of
Relationship

Subsidiary
Subsidiary
Subsidiary
Subsidiary
Subsidiary
Subsidiary
Subsidiary
Subsidiary
Subsidiary
Subsidiary
Subsidiary
Subsidiary

Subsidiary
Subsidiary
Subsidiary
Subsidiary
Subsidiary
Subsidiary

% Shareholdin

December 31,

2005
99.99%
99.99%
99.99%
99.99%
99.99%
99.99%
99.99%
99.9%
99.99%
99.99%
99.99%
99.99%

99.98%
99.98%
99.97%
99.93%
99.84%

December 31,

2004
99.99%
99.99%
99.99%
99.99%
99.99%
99.99%
99.99%
99.99%
99.99%
99.99%
99.99%

71.42%

99.98%
99.91%
99.97%
99.93%
99.84%
51.00%

Type of share

Ordinary share
Ordinary share
Ordinary share
Ordinary share
Ordinary share
Ordinary share
Ordinary share
Ordinary share
Ordinary share
Ordinary share
Ordinary share

Ordinary share

Ordinary share
Ordinary share
Ordinary share
Oi'dinary share
Ordinary share

Ordinary share

* OAn January 30, 2005, the Bank sold its investment in Thai Administration Services Co., Ltd.
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Type of Business

Asset Management
Asset Management
Property Development
Lending
Service
Service
Scrvice
Service
Service
Service
Lending
Mutual Fund
Management
Service
Securities Business
Service
Service
Service

Service




3. Significant transactions occurring between the Bank and related parties are summarized as follows:

Loans

Subsidiary Companies

- Phethai Asset Management Co., Ltd.

Beginning balance
Addition (Deduction)
Ending balance
- Ploy Asset Management Co., Ltd.
Beginning balance
Deductions
Ending balance
Accrued interest receivables
Subsidiary Companies
- Phethai Asset Management Co., Ltd.
- Ploy Asset Management Co., Ltd.
Deposits
Subsidiary Companies
- Phethai Asset Management Co., Ltd.

- Ploy Asset Management Co., Ltd.

I_n:ercsi inggmg‘
Subsidiary Companies
- Phethai Asset Management Co., Ltd.

- Plr;y Asset Management Co., Ltd.
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(Million Baht)
The Bank
December 31, 2005  December 31, 2004

7,440 11,850
1,485 (4,410
8.925 2,440
5,665 8,005

(5.665) 2,340
—_ 5,665

13 -

- S
71 160
33 24

(Million Baht)
The Bank ‘

For Each of the Years Ended December 31

2005 2004
106 ° 98
12 63




In March 2005, Ploy Asset Management Company Limited sold its entire assets to the Bank and Phethai Asset

Management Company Limited on a mutually agreed basis as follows:

Assets sold to the Bank

(Million Baht)
Allowance for
Type of Assets of Ploy - AMC Cost Doubtful Accounts Book Value Selling Price
Pass and Special mention loans 5,599 2,382 3,217 3,215

Assets sold to the Phethai - AMC

(Million Baht)

Alowance for

Type of Assets of Ploy - AMC Cost Doubtful Accounts Book Value Selling Price
Invesiment inreceivables © 3,338 1,986 1,352 1,352

Doubtful loans (Non-

performing loans) 2,429 1,715 714 678
Properties foreclosed 3,219 243 2,976 3,014
QOther assets _ 33 - _ 33 __33

Total 9,019 3,944 ;Qﬁ 5,077

Ploy AMC registered its discontinuance of operation with the Ministry of Commerce on June 30, 2005 and is under

the liquidation process.

Loans to Phethai Asset Management Company Limited are 3-month bills with interest ratcs equal to the interest rate of
a 3-month fixed deposxt pledged as collateral. As of December 31 2005 and 2004 the p]cdged deposits were Baht 71

million and Baht 160 mllhon respectively.

As at December.31, 2005 and 2004, the Bank has provided an allowance for doubtful accounts for Phethai Asset
Management Company Limited, classified as normal loans, amounting to Baht 89 million and Baht 74 million,

respectively.

As at December 31, 2005, the Bank has no loans to Ploy Asset Management Company Limited, so there is no
allowance for doubtful accounts while as at December 31, 2004, the Bank provided aﬁ allowance for doubtful,

classified as normal loans, amounting to Baht 57 million.

Income and expenses shared between the Bank, Phethai Asset Management Company Limited and Ploy Asset

Management Company Limited are charged at cost, except for fee income, which is charged at market price.

The Bank has provided an allowance for doubtf{ul accounts for related business entities using the same method as for

general customers and in accordance with the BoT regulations.
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4.

Additional transactions occurring between the Bank and related business entities, which arc charged at market price as

with other normal business or the price as stipulated in the agreement, are as follows:

4.1 Assets, liabilities and contingencies shared between the Bank, its subsidiary and associated companies as of

December 31, 2005 and 2004 are summarized as follows:

Loans

Subsidiary Companies
- Kasikorn Factoring Co., Ltd.
- Thai Administration Services Co., Ltd.
-~ Kasikomn Leasing Co., Ltd.
Other Assets
Subsidiary Companies
- Kasikorn Asset Management Co., Ltd.

- Kasikorn Leasing Co., Ltd.-

Subsidiary Companies

- Kasikorn Research Center Co., Ltd.

i

Progress Appraisal Co., Ltd.

.

Progress Land and Buildings Co., Ltd.

- Progress Software Co., Ltd.

Progress Plus Co.; Ltd.
- Progress Facilities Management Co., Ltd.
" - - Progress Service Co., Ltd.

"~ Progress Management Co., Ltd.

Kasikom Faétoring Co., Ltd.
- Progress Gunpai Co., Ltd.
- Thai Administration Services Co., Ltd.

- Progress Storage Co., Ltd.

Kasikorn Leasing Co., Ltd.

- Kasikorn Asset Management Co., Ltd.
Associated Companies .

- Processing Center Co., Ltd.

Interbank and Money Market Iitems (Liabilities)

Subsidiary Company

- Kasikomn Securities Public Co., Ltd.
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Ny

31
23
13
19
24
13

78

15

38

Consolidated
2004

36

18
3

20

18

28

14
15
10
60

26

(Million Baht)

The Bank

2005 2004
2,385 1,820
- 36

2,965 -
23 24
10 -
18 18
31 31
89 109
23 20
13 14
19 18
24 28
13 13
110 103
78 14
- 15
15 10
231 60
21 12
38 26
518 2



Other Liabilities -
Subsidiary Companies

- Progress Software Co., Ltd.
- Progress Plus Co., Ltd.

Contingencies

Subsidiary Company

- Thai Administration Services Co., Ltd.

Associated Ccmpanies

- E.S. Industry Co., Ltd.

Consolidated

2005 2004
33 43
19 14
. 22
16 16

(Million Baht)

The Bank
2005 2004
33 43
19 14
- 22
16 16

Certain subsidiaries and associated companies have entered into 2-year building lease agreements. Rentals are charged

at cost. As of December 31, 2005 and 2004, the Bank and its related parties have rental agreements with remaining

tenures amounting to Baht 1 million and Baht 12 million, respectively.

For the year 2005, the Bank had sold government bonds to Kasikorn Securities Public Co., Ltd in the amount of Baht

3,170 million. .

4.2 Revenue and expenses occurring between the Bank, its subsidiary and associated companies for each of the years

ended December 31, 2005 and 2004 are summarized as foliows:

Subsidiary Companies
Revenue:
Interest income
Dividgnd income
Fee incdrﬂe. '
" Other income
Expenses:
Other expenses
Associated Companies
Expenses:

Other expenses

Consolidated
2005
34
12
1,003
44

99

2004
102
13
972
38

{Million Baht)
The Bank

2005 2004
& .43
187 316
203 122
27 23
1,060 973
44 38



4.3 Assets, liabilities and contingencies shared between the Bank and other business entities in which the directors, key
executive officers and close members of their families have significant influence as of December 31, 2005 and 2004
were summarized as follows:

{(Million Baht)
Consolidated an e Bank

2005 ] 2004
Loans
-TT & T Public Co., Ltd. 2,900 2,271
~ Charoen Pokhaphand Feedmill Public Co., Ltd. 1,032 290
- Bangkok Glass Industry Co., Ltd. 592 813
- Bank of Asia Public Co., Ltd. 400 -
- Thanakorn Vegetable Oil Products Co., Ltd. 272 271
- Quality House Public Co., Ltd. S 270 S .
- Siam Container Pipe Co., Ltd. | 7 227
- Loxley Public Co., Ltd. 156 115
- Manager Media Group Public Co., Ltd. 35 ' s
- Siam Food Products Public Co., Ltd. % 130
- Jutha Maritime Public Co., Ltd. >9 10
- Yip In Tsoi & Jacks Ltd. - 45
- Thai British Security Printing Public Co., Ltd. - 26
Deposits
=TT & T Public Co., Ltd. 625 731
- Muang Tkai Life Assurance Co., Ltd. 316 332
- Sermsuk Public Co., Ltd. 247 238
- Sermsuk Beverage Co., Ltd. 118 32
- Com _-'Link Co., Ltd. - 100 128
- Bangkok Glassﬁln‘gusﬁy Co., Ltd. 82 32
- Mitsubishi Elevator Asia Co., Ltd. 77 92
- Thai British Security Printing Public Co., Ltd. 66 75
- Loxley Public Co., Lid. 49 135
- Siam Motors Parts Co., Ltd. biq 39 53
- Globex securities Co., Ltd. 38 79
- Siam Food Products Public Co., Ltd. 35 44
- Aspac Oil .(Thgiland) Co,, Ltd. 35 20

100



2005

- Smithithada Co., Ltd. 33
- Phatra Real Estate Public Co., Ltd. 33
- Phatra Insurance Public Co., Ltd. 31
- Suludee Co., Ltd. 30
- Ruam Samphant Co., Ltd. 27
- Ngow Hock Agency Co., Ltd. 24
- Loxley Information Services Co., Ltd. 20
- CS Loxinfo Public Co., Ltd. 19
- Nithi Thamrong Co., Ltd. 19
- Charoen Pokhaphand Feedmill Public Co., Ltd. 12
- Suttawong Place Co., Ltd. 10
- Thawepramoth Co., Ltd. 3
- Point Asia Dot Com (Thailand) Ltd. 2
- Loxley Property Development Co., Ltd. 2
- Dole Thailand Co., Ltd. 1
- Samart Corporation Public Co., Ltd. 1
- Charoen Pokhap}:énd Feedmil! Public Co., Ltd. 1,333
- Loxley Public Co., Ltd. 143
- Dole Thailand Co., Ltd. ) 125
- Bangkok Glass Industry Co., Ltd. %0
- Com - Link Co., Ltd. . 72
- Loxley Trading Co., Ltd. 43
- SermSuk Public Co., Ltd. 43
- Samart Telcom Public Co., Ltd. 41
- Yip In Tsoi & Jacks Ltd. 30
- Thai British Security Printing Public Co., Ltd. 20
- Thanakorn Vegetable Oil Products Co., Ltd. 17
- Siam Food Produgts Public Co., Ltd. 16

6

- TT & T Public Co., Ltd.

* As of Décember 31, 2004 these companies were not related parties to the Bank.

101

(Million Baht)

Consolidated and The Bank

2004

19
38
10

33

39
390
91
173
62
80

17

409

58




4.4 Assets, liabilities and contingencies shared between the Bank and its directors and key executive officers or the
Bank’s employees in which such persons have authority and responsibility for planning, directing and controlling

the activities of the Bank as of December 31, 20035 and 2004 are summarized as follows:

(Million Baht)

nsolida nk
2005 2004
Loans 35 31
Deposits 1,144 1,039

30 BENEFITS OF DIRECTORS' AND EXECUTIVES

The Bank and its subsidiary companies have not paid other benefits to directors and executives except for the benefits

that are normally paid such as directors’ fec, directors’ bonus (if any) and income tax, executives' salary and bonus

(if any).
31 COMMITMENTS
Capital Commitments

(Miltion Baht)

December 1 Lgoo_s

Consolidated - The Bank
2005 2005
Contractéd but not provided for 1,222 1,196
Aufhorizéd but ot éontracted for 320 320

Total" SRR - © L542 'LS16

Long-Term Lease Agreements

. Leaschgreements

Tﬁc Bank and its 'sﬁbsi&liary companies have entered into land/building lease agreements for branch offices and vehicle
lease agrcemerﬂs As of December 31, 2005 and 2004 the Bank and its subsidiary companies were committed to pay

tuture rentals, which are summarized as follows:

(Million Bzht)

Consolidated The Bank
Type of Leasc Agreement Remaining of Period . 2005 ' 2005
Land/building lease agreements January 1, 2006 ~ October 17, 2027 467 437
Vehic]_c lease agreements January 1, 2006 -~ November 30, 2010 442 418
Total 909 835
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32

33

34

(Million Baht)

Consolidated The Bank
Type of Lease Agreement Remainin ri 2004 2004
Land/building lease agreements January 1, 2005 - October 17, 2027 518 518
Vehicle lease agreements January 1, 2005 — December 17, 2008 468 452
Total 986 910

2. Service Agreements
On November 12, 2002 the Bank entered into an Information Technology Service Agreement with IBM Thailand Co.,
Ltd., under which service will be provided until December 31, 2012 and for which as of December 31, 2005 and

2004, the Bank is commiited to pay a total service fee of Baht 7,199 million and Baht 8,220 million respectively.

REDUCTION IN RETAINED DEFICIT

On April 2, 2004, the Annual General Meeting of shareholders passed a resolution to reduce the retained deficit in the
amount of Baht 65,148 million through the transter of Baht 26,675 million from othet reserves, the transfer of Baht
800 million from legal reserves, Baht 5,520 million from the premium on expired warrants and Baht 32,153 ‘million
from the premium on ordinary shares. There was 1o change in the total amount of sharcholders’ equity and the Bank's

capital funds, effective as of January 1, 2004.

SUBSEQUENT EVENT

On January 11, 2006, the Bank registered a change in its paid-up capital as a result of the increase in paid-up capital of
7,894,300 shares at Baht 10 par value, totaling Baht 78,943,000 from the exercise of warrants for ordinary shares,
which were issued and offered for sale to Bank employees, except for directors. Thercfore as of January 11, 2006, the

Bank Vhavd total paid-up share capital of Baht 23,811,879,670.

CHANGE OF ACCOUNTING POLICY

Change of Accounting Policy for Deferred Tax

In December 2004, the Bank and its subsidiaries ch‘anged'their accounting 'policy for deferred tax. Deferred tax was

recognized in rescht of temporary differences between the carrying amount of an asset or hablhty and its tax base a

deferred tax asset was only recognized to the extent that the asset was expected to be reahzed in the future.

Accounting for deferred tax is an accepted accounting policy intemnationally. The deferred tax method requires the
estlmated figure of future beneﬁtcd deferred tax assets. The Bank note that other Thal comm;rcml banks have not generally
adopled dcferrcd tax accountmg In order to conform with their conservative con\,cpt thc Bank has dec1ded to change the
Bank’s accounting pollcy and from December 2004 deferred tax will no longer be recogmzed in the financial statements.
The Bank is of the opinion that this change in policy will facilitate comparison of the Bank’s results and assets with other

Thai commercial banks and that the new policy is, therefore, a more appropriate presentation of the financial statements in

the context of current business practices in-the banking sector in Thailand.
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The estimated effects of the change in accounting policy in both consolidated and Bank financial statements for the year
ended December 31, 2004 which have been restated in accordance with the new policy are summarized as follows: -

(Million Baht)

Consolidated The Bank
2004 2004

As of December 31,
Decrease in investments in subsidiaries and

associated companies - 39
Decrease in deferred tax assets 3,275 3,232
Decreasc in deferred tax liabilities 3,038 3,038
Increase in appraisal surplus on assets revaluation 2,629 2,629
Ingrease in revaluation surplus on investments - 286 286
Decrease in retained earnings 3,148 3,148
Decrease in minority interests : 4 -
For the year ended December 31,
Decrease in income tax credit 3,150 ” 3,150
Decrease in net income 3,150 3,150
Decrease in basic earnings per share (Baht) 1.33 1.33

The deductible temporary differences which resulted in deferred tax assets are mainly from the allowance for impairment of,
available-for-sale investments, properties foreclosed and other assets in addition to the provision for liabilities not

deductible for tax purposes until actually paid.
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THE FINANCIAL POSITIONS AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS DIFFERENTIATED BY DOMESTIC
AND OVERSEAS BRUSINESS

The financial positions and results of operations differentiated by domestic and foreign business can be summarized

as follows:
1. Financial Position Classifie Type iness
{Million Raht)
Consolidated
2005

Domestic Foreign Eliminated

Business Business Total Transactions Total
Total assets 826,402 43,272 869,674 (32,365) 837,309
Interbank and money market items - net (asset§) 53,862 12,067 ‘ _65,929 - . 65,929
Investmenis— et o 6881 30,684 99,565 - 99565
Loans o 626,868 78 626,946 - 626,946
Deposits ' 687,777 4 687,781 - 687,781
Interbank and money market items (liabilities) 19,508 - 19,508 - 19,508
Borrowings : ‘ 19,557 8,170 27,727 - 27,727
Contingencies 843,017 24218 867,235 (17,535) 849,700

(Million Baht)
Consolidated
2004

Domestic Foreign ' Eliminated

Business Business Total Transactions . Total
Total assets : 814,730 29,729 844,45’9‘ (19,485) 824,974
Interbank and money market items - net (assets) 68,663 7,587 76,250 o - 76,250
Tnvestments - net 89,185 21,372 110,557 - 110,557
Loans o ' 592,220 368 592,588 - 592,588
Deposits 705,506 64 705,570 - 705,570
Interbank and money market items (liabilities) 11,525 - 11,525 - 11,525
Borrowings 15,843 7,768 23,611 - 23,611
Contingencies 561,086 7,275 568,361 (16,393) 551,968




Total assets

Interbank and money market items-net (assets)
Investments - net

Loans

Deposits

Interbank and money market items (liabilities)
Borrowings

Conlingencies

Total asscls

Interbank and money market items-net (assets)
Investments - net

Loans

Deposits

['nterba'nlg'and ‘money market items (liabilities)
Borrowings

Contingencies

Domestic

Business

826,793
53,801
75,383

621,012

638,907
19,249
19,557

842,881

Domestic
Business
814,120
68,597
96,040
577,749
705,921
11,165
15,843
560,972

106

Foreign
Business
43272
12,067
30,684
78
4

8,170
24218

Foreign
Busine
29,729"
7,587
21,372
368
64
7,768
7,275

The Bank
2005

Total
870,065
65,368
106,067
621,090
688,911
19,249
27,7127
867,099

The Bank
2004

Total
843,849
76,184
117,412
578,117
705,985
11,165
23,611
568,247

{(Million Baht)

Eliminated
Transactions Total
(32,365) 837,700
- 65,868
- 106,067
- 621,090
- 688,911
- 19,249
- 27,727
(17,533) 849,564
(Million Baht)
Gliminated
Transactions Total
(19,485) 824,364
- 76,184 .
- 117,412
- 578,117
- 705,985
- 11,165 .
- 23,611
(16,393) 551,854




2. Results of Operations Classified by Types of Business

(Million Baht)

Consolidated
For the Year Ended December 31, 2005
Domestic Foreign Eliminated
Business Busine Total Transactions Total
Interest and dividend income 37,574 1,052 38,626 (560) 38,066
Interest expense 6,597 1,246 _7.843 560 _1.283
Net incdmc (expense) from-interest and dividend 30,977 (194) 30,783 - 30,783
Non-interest income 11,704 599 12,303 ¢))] 12,302
Non-interest expense 25,056 33 25,089 (M 25,088
Income before income tax 17,625 _372 17,997 - 17,997
(Million Baht}
Consolidated
For the Year Ended December 31, 2004
Domestic For@fgn Eliminated
Business Business Total Transactions Total
Interest and dividend income 32,748 568 33,316 317) 32,999
Interest expense - . 6,366 984 7,350 317 7,033
Net income (expense) from interest and dividend 26,382 (416) 25,966 - 25,966
Non-interest income : : 11,586 563 12,149 - 12,149
Non-interest expense . 22,542 65 22,607 - 22,607
Income before income tax 15426 _82 15,508 — 15,508
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(Million Baht)

The Bank

For the Year Ended December 31, 2005

Domestic Foreign Eliminated
Business Business Total Transactions Total
Interest and dividend income 36,838 1,052 37,890 (560) 37,330
Interest expense _6.562 1,246 _7.808 (560) _7.248
Net income {expense) from interest and dividend 30,276 (194) 30,082 - 30,082
Non-interest income 10,865 599 11,464 n 11,463
Non-interest expense 23,714 33 23,747 D 23,746
Income before income tax 17,427 372 17,799 - 17,799

(Million Baht)
The Bank

For the Year Ended December 31, 2004

Domestic Foreign * »  Eliminated
Business Business Total  Transactions Total
Interest and dividend income 30,982 568 31,550 .31 31,233
[nterest expense’ : 6,359 984 _1.343 317 1026
Net income (expense) from interest and dividend 24,623 (416) 24,207 - 24,207
Non-interest income: 10,859 563 11,422 - 11,422
Non-interest expense 20,224 _65 20,289 - 20,289
Income before income tax 15,258 _8 15,340 - 15,340

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to both a financial asset of one enterprise and a financial liability

or equity instrument of another enterprise.

Credit risk
Credit risk refers to the risk that a counterparty or a borrower may default on its contractual ‘obligations and
" agreements. Such default may be caused by the counterparty's inability to pay due to financial encumbrances or

their intention not to abide by the contractual agreements, resulting in a loss to the Bank.

The Bank has implemented credit risk management processes to measure and controi credit risk. Through the use
_ of credit risk rating tools for assessing customers' credit risk rating, the Bank is capable of granting better quality
loans. In addition, for retail customers, the Bank used credit scoring as a tool to determine an approprigte refum
given the risk level of each loan. In addition, the Bank is able to allocate credit concentration to various business

sectors and industries, so as to diversify credit risk as a whole.
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In the credit approval process, the Bank considers the customer's ability to repay and the loan objectives as key
- factors in the approval of credit and may obtain sufficient collateral or other securities, where appropriate, as a -
means of mitigating the risk of financial losses from default. To m?.ximize the effectiveness.of the credit approval
process, credit analysis and approval functions are separated from the units responsible for maintaining customer
relationships. The Bank also has processes for regularly reviewing customers' credit rating and performance on
all approved transactions. For non-performing loans (NPL), the Bank has closely and continuousty monitored,

resolved and/or restructured them to retain maximum benefits for the organization.

Of the “loans” item shown in the balance sheet, the Bank's maximum credit loss is the carrying amount of net
loans after deduction of applicable provision for losses without considering the value of collateral. In addition, -

credit-risk may arise from off-balance sheet items or contingencies.

Market risk

Market risk is any risk due to changes in interest rates, foreign exchange rates or securities prices that wiil have an
cffect on the Bank's funding costs, investment position or foreign currency position, resultiﬁg in p‘ossibl-e loss to
the Bank. Market risk for the Bank'can be categorized as interest rate risk, foreign exchange risk and equity

position risk.

1. Interest rate risk

Interest rate r‘isk refers to any risk that arises from changes in interest rates \‘vhich may aftect the value of the
Bank's financial instruments or may cause v;)lalility in the Bank's earnings or tluctuations in the value of the
-Bank's financial assets and liabilitics, both in the current reporting period and in future years. Interest rate
risk also arises from the structure and characteristics of the Bank's assets, liabilities and equities.
‘Most of the Bank's credit is based on the Bank's floating interest rates (MLR, MOR and MRR). Deposit

- interest rates are in line with the announcements made by the Bank. As a result, the interest rate risk faced
by the Bank is generally fow. However, the Bank actively manages such risk by adjusting its asset and
liability structure in order to maximize returns under the acceptable risk I_eyels in order to the best fit current
market conditions and trends. Management of interest rate risk is under fhe supervision of the Bark's A’sse(,

and Liability Management Sub-Commitiee.

An analysis of loans (including financial institutions) at fixed and floating interest rates (MLR, MOR and MRR) as of -

December 31, 2005 and 2004 is as follows:

~ {Million Baht)

Consolidated ) The Bank
2005 2004 2005 2004
Fixed interest rate ' 85,325 168,787 86,168 169,880
Floating interest rate 547,597 425,522 ' w ‘ 409,958
Totai Leans (including financial institutions) 632,922 594,309 627,066 579,838
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The following are interest-bearing financial assets and liabilities of the Bank and its subsidiaries, the average balances
of which are calculated by using beginning and ending balances. The average interest and dividend rates represent for

the years ended December 31, 2005 and 2004 are as follows:

(Million Baht)

Consolidated
2005 2004
Interest and Interest and
Dividend Dividend
Average Income/ Average Average Income/  Average
Balance Expense Rate (%) Balance Expense  Rate (%)
Interest-bearing Financial Assets
Interbank and money market items 71,122 2,002 2.81 90,893 1,146 1.26
Securities pu1'chased under resale agreements ' 14,270 385 270 25,555 381 149
Investments = - : 108,473 4,051 373 - 126,820 - 3,760 297
+ Loans . . . 609,767 31,628 . 5.19 570,253 27712 486
Total 803,632 38,066 4.74 813,521 32999 406
Interest-bearing_ Liabilities
Deposits 696,676 5,703 0.82 695,258 5,548 0.80
Interbank and money market items 15,516 385 248 9313 221 237
Securities sold under repurchase agreements 1,641 2 0.12 2,356 ) 9 0.38
Borrowings 25,669 1,193 4.55 41,726 1,255 3.01
Total 139,502 1,283 0.98 748,653 1033 094
' - ' (Million Baht)
The Bank - )
2005 2004
Interest and L Interest and
Dividend . Dividend
Average Income/ Average Average - Income/  Average

Balance Expense Rate (%) Balance - Expense . Rate (%)
_I)_L

Interest-bearing Financial Asscts

_‘[htcrbavnkk and money market items 71,059 2,001 2.82 90,721. 1,144 1.26
Securities purchased under resale agreements 14,270 385 2.70 25,375, 381 1.50
Investments B - . 114,127 4,025 3.53 130,592 3,731 2.86
Loans 599,604 30,919 5.16 554,104 25978  4.69

Total 799,060 37,330 467 800292 31234 .%3.90

[nterest-bearing Liabilities

Deposits 697,448 5,705 0.82 695,603 5,548 0.80
Interbank and money market items 15,207 348 2.29 o 9,030 214 237
Securities sold under repurchase agreements 1,641 2 0.12 2,357 T 0.38
Borrowings _25.669 1193 465 41726 1255 301

Total 139,965 7,248 0.98 748716 1026 094
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Financial asscts and liabilities, classified by maturity of interest repricing, as of December 31, 2005 and 2004 are

shown below:

Financial Assets

Cash

lnte_rbank and money market
Items

Securities purchased under .
resale agreements

Investments-

Loans

Accrued interest receivable

Customers' liability under
acceplances

Other assets

Total Financial Assets

Financial Liabilities

Deppsits

Interba_nlk and money market
iféms .

Liabilitieg payabie on démand

Bom.)wings‘

Bank's liability under

. écceptanccs

Other liabilities

Tota{ Finuancial Liabilities

On-balance sheet items

(Million Baht)
Consolidated
2005

Immediate Less than 6 months 1 Year Over  Non-interest Stop
Repricing 6 months tol Year to5 Years 5 Years Bearing Accrued Total
- - - - - 14,913 - 14,913
4,941 51,644 7,187 - - 2,208 - 65,980
- 9,500 - - - - - 9,500
16,417 25,939 9,332 23,690 9,427 5,253 2,573 102,631
429,267 84,624 8,635 24,664 " 8,124 1,455 70,177 626,946
- - - - - 1,745 - 1,745
- - - - - 857 - 857
- - - - - 6,004 - 6,064
450,625 171,707 25,154 48,354 17,551 42,495 72,750 828,636
390,160 190,861 58,396 8,801 39,563 - 687,781
1,720 11,985 1,013 515 600 3,675 - 19,508
- - - - - 5,904 - 5,904
741 6,266 550 - 20,170 - 27,727
- - - - - 857 - 857
- - - - - 6,267 - 6,267
392,621 209,112 59,959 9316 20,770 56,266 - 748,044
58004  (37.405) (34.805) 39,038 £219 43770 12350 80592
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(Million Baht)
Consolidated

2004
Immediate Less than 6 months 1 Year Over  Non-interest  Stop:
Repricing 6months tol Year (o5 Years 5 Years  Bearing  Accrued Total

Financial Assets
Cash - . - - - 13,536 - 13,536
Interbank and money market '

Items 4,263 65,404 3,516 20 - 3,062 - 76,265
Securities purchased under

resale agreements - 19,040 - - - - - 19,040
Investments 7 16,457 14,177 7,646 56,247 1,537 8,335 3,985 114,384
Loans 376,499 71,698 4,358 29,884 10,525 1,276 68,349 592,589
Accrued interest receivable - - - - - 2,455 - 2,455
Customers’ liability under

acceptances - - - - - . 743, - 743
Other assets - - ‘ - - - 6.166 . - _6.166
Total Financial Assets ﬂz_m 170319 15,520 86,151 18,062 35373 102,334 8_2LL7_8
Ejiancial Liabilities
D“'P‘)Si?S 384,552 255,939 21,017 6,113 - 37,949 - 705,570
Interbank and money market

items 593 3,432 3,246 200 615 3,439 - 11,525
Liabilities payable on - - - - - 7,426 - 7,426
Borrowings - - 3,843 - 19,768 - - 23,611
Bank’s Iiab.ility under ‘ .

acceptances - - b- - - 743 - 743
Other liabilitiés - - - - - 7.146 - 7.146
Total Financial Liabilities 385145 259371 28.106 6313 20,383 56,703 - 7156021
Onbalamceshestitems  1po7a (0052 (12586 19838  2J2) QUL 1ons 691
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Financial Assets

Cash

Interbank and money market
items

Securities purchased under
resale agreements

Investments

Loans

Accrued interest receivable

* Customers’ liability under
acceptances

Other assets

Tota! Financial Assets

Finan'cial Liabilities

Deposits

Interbank and m-oney market
items .

Liabilities payable on demand

Bo,.rr(_)wings»

Bank's liability under
acceptances

Other liabiliticg

Total Financial Liabilities

On-balance sheet items

The Bank
2005
Immediate Lessthan 6 months 1 Year ver  Non-interest

Repricing 6 months tol Year toSYears 5 Years Bearing
- - - - - 14,912
4,906 51,582 7,187 - - 2,244

- 9,500 - - - -
16,417 25,871 8,703 23,690 9,427 23,646
428,690 93,793 8,540 24,852 8,104 1,455
- - - - - 1,319
. . R - - 857
- . - . 5,423
450013 180,746 24,432 48,542 17,531 49856
391,030 190,861 58,396 8,801 - 39,823
1,581 11,865 1,013 515 600 3,675
. - . - - 5,904

741 6,266 550 - 20,170 -
- ; . - - 857
; ] ] ) . 6,034
393352 208,992 59,959 9,316 20770 56,293

s6661 (28246) (35527) 39226 (3239) (6437)

113

1.219
55,656

(Million Baht)

14,912
65,919

9,500
108,975
621,090

1,319

857
5.423
827,995

688,911

19,249
5,904
27,727

857
6.034
748,682
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(Million Baht)

The Bank
2004
Immediate Less than 6 months 1 Year Qver  Non-interest  Stop

Repricing 6 months tol Year oS 5 Years Bearing accrued ota

i~

Financial Assets
Cash - - - - - 13,536 - 13,536
Interbank and money market

items 4,182 65,404 3,516 20 - 3,077 - 76,199

Securities purchased under

resale agreements : 19,040 - - - - - 19,040
Investments 16,457 12,510 7,646 56,177 7,537 18,324 628 119,279
Loans 376,499 83,976 4,306 30,182 10,525 1,276 71,353 578,117
Accrued interest receivable - ‘ - - - - 1,318 - 1,318

Customers' liability under

acceptances - . - - - 743 - 743
Other assets - - - - - _5.556 - 5,556
Total Finan‘cial Assets 397,138 180,930 15.458 86,379 18,062 43,830 71,981 813,788

Financial Liabilities
Deposits 384,663 255,939 21,017 6,113 - © 38,253 - 705,985

Interbank aﬂd honey market

items ) 358 3,437 3,116 200 615 3,439 - 11,165
Liaﬁili;ie_s p_ayab}e o'n d.emand - - - - - 7,426 - 7,426
Borrowings ' . - 3,843 - 19,768 - - 23611

Bank's liability under
- - 743 - 743

accc_pt_aﬁc% - - - :
Other liabilisies . - - - : 6.920 - 6920
Total Financial Liabilities 21 250376 27976 6313 20383  S6781 - . 155850
Onbelance sheet items 2017 (5446 (2508 80066  .2321) (1295) LSSl 51938
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Foreign exchange risk

Foreign exchange risk is the risk that occurs from changes in exchange rates which may affect the value of the Bank's
financial instruments or may cause volatility in the Bank's earnings or fluctuations in the value of the Bank’s assets and
liabilities.

The Bank engages in foreign exchange related transactions, which may create foreign exchange risk. However, the
Bank believes that such risk is low, as most foreign currency transact‘ions are protected by customers' underlying
transactipns. The Bank's policy is to minimize foreign exchange risk by closing its foreign exchange position on a daily

basis. Management of foreign exchange risk is under the supervision of the Asset and Liability Management Sub-

Committee.

The Bank and its subsidiaries’ foreign currency positions, as of December 31, 2005 and 2004, were as follows:

(Million Baht)

Consolidated
2005
Currency
US Dollars Yen Pounds Eure Others Total

Assets .
Cash 246 12 14 14 6s 46
[nterbank and money market ' »

items - net 58,864 39 . - 67 318 59,288
Investments - net - - . 47,414 - 235 . - . 4 85 47,508
Loans and accrued interest

receivables - net 18,963 842 48 1,482 282 21,617
Other assets ' L7 - —_ IEIE 1,172

Total assets 126,657 928 _62 1671 122 - 130,046
Li:;bilitics .
Deposits 3,182 148 46 238 111 3,725
Interbank and money market iterms 44 55 3 75 1 178
Liability on demand _2,245_ S5 . 125 138. 136 2,699
Borrowing .v8‘,170 - - - 8,170
Other liabilities 3245 14 5 20 15 3,339

Total liabilitics . 16,886 272 179 471 323 18,131
Foreign currency position of ) .

on-balance items-net 109771 656 a1 1,206 399 111,815

Off-balance sheet items-net
(Forward exchange contracts

cross currency swaps and FX

options) aozgl4)  (318)

ks
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(Million Baht)

Consolidated

2004
Currency
US Dollars Yen Pounds Euro Others Total

Asets ~ _ .
Cash 121 23 27 180 82 433
Interbank and money market

items - net 72,135 29 129 410 197 72,900
Investments - net 43,869 339 - - 53 44261
Loans and accrued interest

receivables - net 22,126 1,006 110 1,765 385 25,392
Other asscts 1,538 5 _1 29 A 1,584

Total assets 139,789 1,402 267 2,384 728 144,570
Liabjlities
Deposits 3419 139 43 113 143 3,857
Interbank and money market items 22 6 3 1 9 ‘ 41
Liability on demand 3618 65 58 451 158 4350
B‘o>rrowing 7,768 - - - - 7,768
Other liabilities 340 1 _9 _ 8 _40 398

Total lizbilities 15.167 211 us _s13 350 16414

Foreign currency position of
on-balance items-net 124,622 L19l

Off-balance sheet items-net

3
Z
|

:

(Forward exchange contracts

and cross curTency swaps) (&éﬁl (1178) (54) QLM (597) (127,205)
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Assets
Cash

Interbank and money market
items - net
Investments - net
Loans and accrued interest.
receivables - net
Other assets
Total assets
Liabilities
Deposits
Interbank and money market items
Liability on demand
Borrowing
Other liabilities
Total liabilities
Foreign currency position of
- on-balance items-net
Off-balance sheet items-net
{Forward exchange contracts
cross currency swaps and FX

options)

(Million Baht)

The Bank
2005

Currency
US Dollar Yen Pounds Euro Others Total
246 12 14 124 65 461
58,864 39 - 67 318 59,288
47,414 35 - 4 55 47,508
18,963 842 48 1,482 282 21,617
L1170 = - - _2 1,172
126,657 928 _62 1,677 122 '130,046
3,182 148 46 238 11l 3,725
44 55 3 75 i 178
2,245 55 125 138 136 2,699
8,170 - - - 8,170
3242 14 _3 20 15 3354
16,883 272 177 471 323 18,126
100,774 856 (113) 1,206 399 111,920
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Assets

Cash

Interbank and money market
items - net

Investments - net

Loans and accrued interest
receivables - net

Other assets
Total assets

Liabilities

Deposits

Interbank and money market items

Liability on demand

Borrowing

Other liabilities
Total liabilities

Foreign currency position of
on-balance items-net

Off-balance sheet items-net

(Forward_ exchange contracts

and cross currency swaps)

3. Equity position risk

The Bank

(Million Baht)

Currency
US Dollar Yen Pounds Euro Qthers Total
121 23 27 180 82 433
72,135 29 129 410 197 72,900
43,369 339 - - 53 44,261
22,126 1,006 110 1,765 385 25,392
1.538 5 1 29 Al 1,584
139,789 1402 261 2384 28 144,570
3419 139 43 113 143 2857
22 6 3 1 9 41
3,618 65 58 451! 158 4,350
7,768 - - - 7,768
338 1 _4 _8 _40 391
15,165 211 108 373 350 _16,407
124,624 L191 153 L811 378 128,163

Equity position risk is any risk that arises from changes in the price of equitiés or commion stock that may causei;

volatility in the Bank's earnings o fluctuations in the value of the Bank's financial assets.

The Bank's policy is not to increase its equity investments, but to divest any equity position that is not directly

* related to its main banking business. The Bank manages and monitors market situations closely in order to acquire

supportive information for proper management and retain maximum benefits for the Bank.
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Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Bank may not be able to meet its obligations as they fall due, because of inability to

realise its assets or to cover funding requirements at an appropriate price which results in a loss to the Bank.

The Bank manages its liquidity position under the Bank of Thailand’s liquidity ressrve regulations and other applicable

regulations. The Treasury Department is accountable for managing the Bank’s liquidity position by providing short-term

and long-term funding sources as well as investing in highly liquid assets in both domestic and foreign currencies. The °

Bank also ensures that its liquidity position is suitable and sufficient for the current and foresezable market conditions.

The Asset and Liabilities Management Sub-Committee supervise management of liquidity risk.

A maturity analysis of financial assets and liabilities and off-balance sheet items as of* December 31, 2005 and 2004

was as follows:

Financial Assets
Cash “
Inferbank and money market items
Securities purchascd tnder

Resale agréemirits
[nves,@mgnts ‘
Loang _
Accrued interest receivables
Customers’ liability under acceptance
Other assets

Total Financial Assets

Financial Liabilities

D'clsosii£§.

Int‘érbarl'k and money ma_rkc'.‘_items
Liability payatle on demand
Borrp\‘ii_xl.gs_. (. - .

Bank's ljabilily under acepetances
Other liabilitics

Total Finaricial Libilities

Liquidity-net

(Mitlion Baht)
Consolidated
2005
. Lessthan 6 months 1 Year Over No
At call 6 months  to 1 Year to5 Years 5 Years Maturity Total
- - - - - 14913 14,913
5,784 52,009 7,187 . - - 65,980
- 9,500 - - - 9,500
557 26,123 . 17,611 34,526 18,653 5160 102,631
150,883 236,351 9,511 99,751 130,450 - 626,946
173 1,271 - 42 259 - 1,745
- 857 - - - - 857
- _1,625 - - - 4,439 6,064
158397 327736 34300 - 134319 149362 ‘24513 §28.636
429,723 190,861 58,396 8,801 - - 687,781
5,395 9,085 1,013 515 £2,600 - 19,508
5,904 - - - - 5,904
. 6,265 550 741 20,170 - 27,727
- 857 - - - - 857
% 1,066 138 18 I 4,949 .6> 267
441,118 200035 60,097 10,075 22,770 4,949 748,044
Q$2721) 118701 (25788) 124244 126592 19564 8059
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L‘\qﬁ‘\df\ty-net ‘

120

(Millio

an§0\'\datcd
Less than ¢ menths 1 Yeal Over No
- proal gons 2 ‘ ' 5 Years Mty
Fingnc‘xa\ Assets .
Cash - - - - - 13,536
Tnteroank and mOREY poarket jrems 6,926 65,803 3516 20 - .
gecuritics purchascd undet
resale agtccmems - 19,040 A - - . -
\nvestrent 57765 1y R 66,9 17037 3442
Loans 163479 TYREL 7073 a5 120977 .
Accrued interest receivadles - 2,455 - - .
C.ustoq\c\‘s‘ Yiabihity under acceptanc® 143 . - - .
Othet assets - PRty - JEET— o
Total Financial Asseis 176110 304060 el 16489} 13301
D"/PO-S\T5 - 472,500 255,93 1 o\7 ALK
\ntcr\)an\g and money market jtems 4032 ; 1,14 200 3215
Liability payabid on deménd 1426 . . - .
pofrownEs ' - 1343 19,768
Rank's {'\_}Ab’\\'\&\_{ under acccptanccs . T4 . - -
Other liabihites st e — 79 o -
Total Financial Ljabilitics 434069 260483 26085 ‘ﬁ; 0983
S g 22 a8 psal

0 Baht)

105,570
11,525
1426

2361

W



Financial Assets
Cash

Interbank and money market items

Securities purchased under
resaie agreements
Investments
Loans
Accrued interest receivables
Custemers' liability under acceptances

QOther assets

Total Financial Assets

Financial Liabilities

Deposits

Interbank and money market items
Liability payable on demand
Bdrrowings

Bank's liability under a_cccptances.
Oiher labilities

Total Financial Liabilities

Liquidity-net

(Miliion Baht)

The Bank
2005
Less than 6 months 1 Year Over Ne
Atcall  6months tol Year (o5 Years 5 Years Maturity Total

- - - - - 14,912 14,912
6,785 51,947 7,187 - - - 65,919
- 9,500 - - - - 9,500
96 25,496 17,543 34,424 17,862 13,554 108,975
147,747 244,454 8,763 98,549 121,577 - 621,090
- 1,293 - 26 - - 1,319
- 857 - - - 857
- 1,512 - - - 3911 5.423
154,628 03¢ 33,493 132,999 139,439 2377 27,995
430,853 1‘90,86] 58,396 8,801 - - 688,911
5,256 9,865 1,013 515 2,600 - 19,249
5,904 - - - - - 5,904
- 6,266 550 741 20,170 - 27,727
- 857 - - - - 857
9 1,064 128 18 - 4718 6,034
442,109 208,913 60,097 10,075 22,774 4,718 748,682

(287481) 126,146  {26.604) 122,924 116,669

121
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(Million Baht)

The Bank
2004
Lessthan 6 months 1 Year Over No
Atcall 6 months to 1 Year 105 Years 5 Years Maturity Total

Financial Assets
Cash - - - - - 13,336 13,536
Interbank and money market items 6,860 65,803 3,516 20 - - 76,199
Securities purchased under

resale agreements ’ - 19,040 - - - - 19,040
Investments 2,893 9,777 8,087 66,434 16,657 15,431 119,279
Loans 157,357 213,741 6,442 94,883 105,694 - 578,117
Accrued interest receivables - 1,318 - - - - 1,318
Customers' liability under acceptances - ' 743 - - - - 783
Other assets - 1.736 - - - 3,820 5,556
Total Financial Assets 167,110 312,158 18,045 161337 122351 12,787 813,788
D.epovsits 422,916 255,939 21,017 6,113 s - 705,985
Interbank and money market items 3,797 . ‘_5,937 . 1,016 . 200 3,215 B 11,165
Liability payable on demand ' 7,426 - - - - - 7,426
Borrowings - - 3,843 - 19,768 c 23611
Bank's liability under acceptunces - . 743 - - - - 743
Other liabilities . 110 868 79 39 - 5,824 6,920
Total Financial Liabilities 434,249 _260,487 25,955 6,352 22,983 5,824 755,350

26963 57,938

Liquidity-net (267,139) SL6T1  (7910) 154985 99368
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Fair value

Fair value is the estimated value that the Bank and its subsidiaries could receive from the sale of financial assets, or
the estimated cost of redeeming their financial liabilities. Fair values are based on market value, or estimated values

derived from using general market principles of calculation.

The following is a summary of carrying amounts and estimated fair values of financial assets and liat;ilities and
off-balance sheet items as of December 31, 2005 and 2004.
(Million Baht)

Consolidated

2005 2004
Carryin Carrying
Amount Fair value Amount Fair value
Financial Assets

Cash 14,913 14,913 13,536 13,536
Interbank and money market items - net 65,929 65,929 76,250 76,250
Sccuritl:es purchased under resale agreements * 9,500 9,500 19,040 19,040
Investments - net 99,565 99,351 110,557 110,781
Loans and accrued interest receivables - net 591,253 591,253 548,697 548,697
Customers’ liability under acceptances 857 857 743 743
Other assets _6,064 6,064 6,166 _.6,166

Total Financial Assets 788,081 787,867 774,989 775213

Financial Liabilities ’

Deposits 687,781 687,781 705,570 705,570
Interbank and money market items 19,508 20,247 11,525 11,550
Liabilities payable on demand 5,904 5,904 7,426 7,426
Borrowings 27,727 29,212 23,611 25,024
Bank’s liability under acceptances 857 857 743 743
Other liabilities _ 6,267 6,267 7,146 1146

Total Financial Liabilities 148,044 750,268 756,021 157,459
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{Million Baht)

The Bank
2005 2004
arryin arryin
Amount Fair value Amount Fair value
Financial Assets
Cash . 14912 14,912 13,536 13,536
Interbank and money market items - net 65,868 65,868 76,184 76,184
Securities purchased under resale agreements 9,500 9,500 19,040 19,040
Investments - net 106,067 105,855 117,412 117,632
Loans and accrued interest receivables - net 593,333 593,333 547,770 547,770
Customers' liability under acceptances 857 857 743 743
Other assets _ 5423 _ 5,423 __ 5,556 _ 5,556
Total Financial Assets 795960 795,748 780,241 780,461
Financial Liabilities

Deposits 688,911 688,911 705,985 705,985
Interbank and money market items 19,249 19,988 11,165 11,190
Liabilities payable on demand 5,904 5,904 7,426 7,426
Borrowings 27,727 29,212 23,611 25,024
Bank’s liability under acceptances 857 857 743 743
Other liabilities 6034 6,034 6,920 6,920
Total Financial Liabilities 748,682 150906 755,850 757,288

The following methods and assumptions were used by the Bank in estimating fair values of financial assets and

liabilities as disclosed herein:

The fair values of cash, interbank and money market items (assets and liabilities), securities purchased under resale

agreements, customers’ liability under acceptances, liabilities payable on demand, securities sold under repurchase

agreements, bank'’s liabilities under acceptances and accrued interest payables are stated at their carrying values at the

reporting date.

The fair values of held-for-trading investments, available-for-sale investments and held-to-maturity investments are

stated according to the Bank's policy mentioned in Note 3.2

The fair value of general investments is stated at cost, net of allowance for their impairment.
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The fair values of loans and accrued interest receivables are based on the carrying values of loans and accrued interest

receivables, net of allowance for doubtful accounts since most loans are floating rate ones.

The carrying values of deposits usually approximate fair values, except for negotiable certificates of deposit (NCD) for

which fair value is calculated by using the expected yield on borrowings.
The fair values of borrowings are estimated by using market values.
Derivatives

The Bank enters into derivative transactions for the following main reasons:

1. Hedging of the Bank's exposure to financial risks.

Hedgings activities are designed to reduce or eliminate exchange rate and/or interest rate risk related to the Bank's

financial assets, liabilities, contingent accounts or expected transactions in the future.

Derivatives undertaken for this purpose include Forward Exchange Contracts, Cross Currency Swaps and Interest

Rate Swaps.

The Bank controls credit risk on derivatives transactions by using procedures similar to those used when granting

general loans.
2. Hedging of the customer’s exposure to financial risks,

At the request of a customer, the Bank will enter info certain derivative contracts in order for customers to hedge
financial risk. The Bank uses appropriate hedging tools to take advantage of price differences or net market price

changes.

The derivatives used for this purpose are Forward Exchange Contracts, Cross Currency Swaps and Interest Rate

Swaps.

The market risk of derivative transactions used to hedge the customer’s exposure comprises exchange rate risk
and interest rate risk. To minimize risks, the Bank's policy is to conduyct full-amount hedges with customers or

counterparties. The Bank controls credit risk and liquidity risk by using procedures similar to those used when

granting general loans.
3.. Trading Purposes
The objective of derivatives for trading purposes is to take advantage of price movement in the shori-term market.

Derivatives used for this purpose include Forward Exchange Contracts, Cross Currency Swaps and Interest Rate

Swaps.

The Bank controls credit risk and liquidity risk by using procedures sinilar to those used when granting general

loans.
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The following is a summary of the notional amounts and the fair value of the consolidated and the Bank ‘s

derivative instruments as at December 31, 2005 and 2004:

Forward exchange contracts
Cross currency swaps
Interest rate swaps

Credit default swaps

Forward exchange contracts
Cross currency swaps
Interest rate swaps

Credit default swaps

Consolidated and The Bank

Notional Amount

Consolidated and The Bank

Notional Amount

(Million Baht)

Fair Value
(512)
333
115

n

(Million Baht)

Fair Value
3,831
1,040

206
@

The fair value is ordinarily derived from quoted market price or from generally accepted pricing models, in the case of no

market price being available.

37 RECLASSIFICATION OF ACCOUNTS

Certair_l aqcouhts in the financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2004 have been reclassified to conform

with the presentation in the financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2005.

38 APPROVAL OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The financial statements were approved for issue by the Audit Committee of the Board of Directors on February 21, 2006.



PP’ Management Discussion
~ and Analysis (MD&A)

For the year ending December 31, 2005 8

summisnansing
KASIKORNBANK B GEMG




Executive Summary for the Management Discussion and Analysis,
for the Year ending December 31, 2005

In 2005, the Bank reinvented the entire corporation to become
“KASIKORNBANKGROUP”, with the aim of promoting coordination among
subsidiaries using the concept of a full-range financial solution provider, leading to
synergy creation among KASIKORNBANKGROUP. The Bank is confident that our
full range of financial services will satisfy all customers’ needs, adhering to the
group’s “Towards Service Excellence” resolution with the “K Excellence” as a
corporate signature to represent the high-quality products and services of the group.

Regarding operating performance in 2005, the Bank’s consolidated net income
totaled Baht 13,930 million, decreasing by Baht 1,410 million, or 9.19 percent, from
2004. The decrease was due mainly to an increase in corporate income tax expense of
Baht 3,887 million, after the expiration of tax losses carried forward. However, net
interest income rose by Baht 4,817 million, due to loan extension and higher interest
rates. Meanwhile, non-interest income rose by Baht 153 million. Non-interest
expenses rose by Baht 1,579 million, while the sum of reversals of bad debts and
doubtful accounts and losses on debt restructuring increased by Baht 902 million, as
the Bank set aside allowances for doubtful accounts and incurred losses on debt
restructuring in response to the changing economic environment and new loan
extension.

On the financial front, as of December 31, 2005, the Bank’s total consolidated
assets were Baht 837,309 million, increasing by Baht 12,335 million, or 1.50 percent,
over the end of 2004, due mainly to loan growth. The Bank’s consolidated outstanding
loans totaled Baht 626,946 million at the end of 2005, rising by Baht 34,358 million,
or 5.80 percent, over the end of 2004. Meanwhile, non-performing loans of the Bank
and its asset management companies stood at 8.88 percent of the total outstanding
credit at the end of 2005, decreasing from 12.30 percent recorded at the end of 2004.
As for total consolidated liabilities, they were reported at Baht 759,193 million, rising
by Baht 885 million over the end of 2004, following increases in interbank and money
market items, borrowing and other liabilities. On the other hand, the Bank’s
consolidated deposits equaled Baht 687,781 million, declining by Baht 17,788 million,
or 2.52 percent from the end of 2004. Total consolidated shareholders’ equity was
Baht 78,116 million, showing a year-over-year increase of Baht 11,450 million, or
17.18 percent, due mainly to the Bank’s profits in 2005. Meanwhile, the capital
adequacy ratio of the Bank and its AMCs equaled 14.47 percent, with Tier-1 and Tier-
2 capital accounting for 9.53 and 4.93 percent, respectively. _

With regard to the operations of the three Business Groups, in addition to
achieving continued growth in fee-based income, the Corporate Business Group, at the
end of 2005, showed a 10.75 percent increase in the group’s total loans over the end of
2004, This increase was seen in every customer segment, as well as in domestic credit
and trade finance products. For the Retail Business Group, innovations and continual
development of products, services and sales channels, particularly electronic channels,
have resulted in a substantial increase in the number of users through these channels.
Besides this, the Retail Business Group’s total loans, at the end of 2005, surged by
15.00 percent year-on-year, following growth in all loan products. Furthermore, the
Treasury Group has conducted more financial transactions related to derivative

*
For the annual report, this section is shown in the “Management Report” section.



instruments, along with developing new deposit and investment products, to meet
customers’ needs. _

In terms of risk management, work proceeded throughout 2005 on
improvements and developments in managing all types of risks. For credit risk
management, the Bank has utilized the automatic credit evaluation system and
standardized credit approval procedures nationwide, while the credit operational
structure was upgraded, leading to higher efficiency and quality in overall credit risk
management. Furthermore, for market risk management, the Bank has completed
development of a new work procedure, complying with the Bank of Thailand’s new
regulations regarding capital adequacy for market risk in trading book transactions. To
introduce a greater variety of funding sources and better risk diversification, as well as
to provide more alternatives in investments for depositors, two projects of short-term
debenture and structured note issuances were launched as a part of liquidity risk
management. Prior to the Bank of Thailand’s plan to implement a new Capital Accord
‘Basel II’ for commercial banks by 2008, the Bank implemented our own Basel II
strategic project in 2005, aiming at streamlining the Bank’s system to effectively
comply with the Basel II standards. In the meantime, data preparedness and situational
modeling to facilitate computation of necessary capital reserves have proceeded, in
order to meet the Basel II standards in terms of capital reserves for operational risk.

Throughout 2005, the Bank continued our development efforts in the
implementation of human resources projects, with the goal of becoming a
competency- and performance-based organization. Other supportive work also
progressed on information technology (IT) improvements, including the design of a
secure IT infrastructure for innovative products and services, and the introduction of
an improved design in the security infrastructure of the Bank’s subsidiaries. At the
same time, the Bank has continued to improve the efficiency of our IT system under
the Transformation Plan, and an IT Master Plan has been drafted to pave the way for
improved Bank IT systems in the future.

With our commitment to outstanding business development, the Bank has been
widely acknowledged for our efforts. This was confirmed by upgrades in the Bank’s
credit ratings from international rating agencies, as well as by many prestigious
awards received during 2005.
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1. Overview

1.1 Economic Overview and Regulatory Changes

Q Thailand’s Economy in 2005 and 2006

Despite all the negative factors, such as higher oil prices and inflation, rising
interest rates, falling income from tourism following the tsunami disaster at the 2004
year-end, as well as the first current account deficit since the 1997 economic crisis,
Thailand’s economy sustained a satisfactory growth rate of around 4.5 percent in
2005, due mainly to a push from exports.

As for 2006, we expect Thai economic growth to average around 4.0-5.0
percent, due to investment expansion by public and private sectors, as well as a
rebound in tourism. Still, growth in private consumption is likely to be constrained by
the prospect of rising interest rates continuing from last year, while domestic oil prices
remain at relatively high levels. Meanwhile, we also expect the current account deficit
to continue for the second straight year, against a backdrop of continuing import
growth due to investment and export expansion, as well as higher global oil prices.

Thailand’s Economic Growth

{(Unit: Percent change over-year, or as otherwise indicated)

Private Consumption _45% 4.0%-4.3%
Investment. S 109% 72%-13.5%
Private 10.7% 7.5%-10.3%

Public 11.2% 6.2%-22.7%

Cae% | 40%:6.0%

15.0% 8.0%-15.0%

» Imports _ . 26.0% 8.0%-15.0%»
Trade Balance (USD mllhons) -’: < -8,578 :9:100 10:29,700
Current Account (USD millions) -3,714 | -3,800 to -4,200

_ Current Account (% to GDP) A -2.1% ‘ -2.1%1t0-2.3%

E>Hf:adlm€:~ CPI Inﬂatlon ) ok | ) 4.5%,:- 4.3%-4.8% .

Core CPI Inﬂatlon S 16% 2.0%-3.0%

. Average Brent Criide (USD/Barrel) T s e00e650

Average Retail Diesel (Baht/Liter) | 20.01 23.9-25.4

£39.50-40.50

e ' et (GDP) ;
Source: KASIKORN RESEARCH CENTER O, LD,
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Amid continued economic growth and demand for investments from both the
public and private sectors, domestic liquidity is likely to recede further. Also, as
financial institutions are pushing forward for new loan extension, the declining
liquidity situation may heighten competition among financial institutions for deposits.
This is particularly true as they try to retain customer bases and manage liquidity at
proper levels.

O Regulatory Changes '

During 2005, there were several regulatory changes concerning the Bank’s
operations, but those of notes are summarized as follows:

® Granting Approval to Engage in Securities Brokerage Business, Sales of
Securities & Unit Trusts

The Bank of Thailand (BOT) issued a directive, ref. FawKorSor. (11) Wor.
33/2548, dated May 6, 2005, with a BOT announcement, re: “Engaging in Securities
Brokerage Business, Sales of Securities & Unit Trusts”, which in essence granted
approval for commercial banks to engage in such securities business per the particulars

_of the directive, including the right to appoint private individuals meeting SEC
qualifications to be their representatives in such business.

This announcement is viewed as beneficial to the Bank, in that it aids the Bank
in expanding into unit trust-related business, thus broadening the services of the Bank.

® Granting Approval to Engage in Hire Purchase and Leasing Business 2

The Bank of Thailand (BOT) issued a directive, ref. FawKorSor. (11) Wor.
34/2548, dated May 11, 2005, with a BOT announcement, re: “Granting Approval to
Engage in Hire Purchase and Leasing Business”, with the purpose of allowing
commercial banks to engage in such business, providing they meet with certain
prerequisites and qualifications, per the following:

(1) They must have sound financial and operational status, can set aside
adequate allowances and reserves, and be able to maintain their capital to
risk-weighted asset ratios at a level not lower than the minimum set by the
BOT;

(2) They must cooperate with the authorities in implementing the Financial
Master Plan in becoming a “One Presence” financial institution, per the
policies of the BOT; and, ‘

(3) They must produce a business model detailing their plans in writing to enter
into hire purchase and leasing business, which has been approved by the
board of directors of the respective bank.

This announcement also aids the Bank in broadening our scope of financial

business operations.

' Details of other regulatory changes during the year 2005 may be found in the MD&A reports for the

périods ending March 31, June 30 and September 30, 2005.
* This directive is an amendment of previous authorizations, which supersedes the previous BOT

directive, re: Granting Approval for Commercial Banks to Engage in Hire Purchase and Leasing
Business, dated September 27, 2004,
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® Measure to Restructure Personal Loan Debts

The Ministry of Finance issued an announcement, dated October 18, 2005, re:
“Measures to Restructure Personal Loan Debts”, which was intended to ameliorate the
problem of defaulted personal loans within the general public, as currently held by
financial institutions. The targeted debts are those where lending institutions have
entered into legal proceedings against defaulted borrowers prior to July 1, 2005, and
have outstanding balances due less than or equal to Baht 200,000, but do not include
agricultural loans, mortgages or credit card debt.

One condition includes that if the defaulted borrower is able to repay the debt by
June 30, 2006, they will have the option of settling the debt with a single payment of
only 50 percent of the outstanding principle due. However, if the borrower is unable to
meet that deadline on their own, they may choose to apply for supports from the
Government Savings Bank (GSB), wherein GSB might lend the 50 percent amount
required to clear that debt with the original creditor within the deadline, and the
borrower would then be liable to repay a term loan to GSB.

As of the end of 2005, the Bank has not yet completed a summary of the number
of defaulted borrowers, or the value of the Bank’s personal loans that would fit the
profile to qualify for this debt relief measure, because the deadline for defaulted
borrowers to declare their intentions, i.e., May 31, 2006, has not yet been reached.
However, the Bank anticipates that this measure will reduce the total amount of NPLs
with the Bank to a certain degree, while the impact of this government plan on the
operating performance of the Bank will be minimal, because this segment of the
Bank’s loan portfolio is not large.

® Approval for Structured Derivative Transactions

The Bank of Thailand (BOT) issued a directive, ref. FawNawSor. (21) Wor.
4/2548, dated October 19, 2005, with a BOT announcement, re: “Approval for
Structured Derivative Transactions”, with the purpose of granting approval for
commercial banks to engage in such transactions, wherein there are such reference
variables as interest rates, currency exchange rates or financial indices, in addition to
basic ‘plain vanilla’ derivatives. .

This new measure broadens the choices in new types of transactions available for
the Bank to engage in, which will have a positive impact on the Bank in that will allow
the Bank to better meet the needs of customers.

1.2 Direction of Business Operations

Q@ KASIKORNBANK in 2005 and Outlook in 2006

With a commitment to creating outstanding financial services,
KASIKORNBANK, in 2005, has embarked upon a strategy of reinventing the entire
corporation as the “KASIKORNBANKGROUP?”, providing a full range of financial
services. The Bank is confident that our services will satisfy the needs of every
customer, in every segment, while adhering to the group’s “Towards. Service
Excellence” resolution. ,

Recently, at Meetings No. 10/2005 and 14/2005, the KASIKORNBANK Board
of Directors passed resolutions allowing the Bank to acquire additional sharés in the
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KASIKORN ASSET MANAGEMENT CO., LTD. This stock acquisition was
completed in December 2005, thus enabling KASIKORNBANK to become the first
Thai bank to truly offer a full-range of financial solutions in response to the needs of
customers.

KASIKORNBANK subsidiaries:

1. KASIKORN FACTORING CO., LTD. hulaigoSonansing '
(http://www.kasikornfactoring.com) KASIKORN FACTORING AT TRRE

Presently, KASIKORN FACTORING CO., LTD. (KFactoring), is one of the
premier factoring companies in Thailand. KFactoring plays an important role in
providing various forms of revolving credit to SME businesses. The company’s main
services include:

Factoring Services

® Domestic Factoring :
In this business, clients agree to sell their account receivables to
KFactoring. The company offers financing, collection, plus reporting and credit
verification services.

@ Import Factoring v
KFactoring provides credit guarantee services to clients in Thailand who
are importing products from other countries without opening Letters of Credit (L/C).
Business owners operating overseas are, therefore, protected against credit default and
collection fraud risks.

® Export Factoring
KFactoring delivers factoring services to export clients in Thailand for
export orders negotiated without Letters of Credit (L/C). These services include
financing, credit risk guarantees, as well as credit verification and collections.

® Equipment Finance
KFactoring offers short- and medium-term financing services, ranging
between two to five years, to business entities in the form of Equipment Finance
(EQF) for leasing and hire-purchase transactions, notably for industrial, commercial,
transportation and agricultural equipment/machinery transactions, etc.

2. KASIKORN ASSET MANAGEMENT CO., LTD.
(http://www.kasikornasset.com)

nannsweamsnaonunansing ¢
KASIKORN ASSET MANAGEMENT IR Rx2

, KASIKORN ASSET MANAGEMENT CO., LTD. (KAsset) has béen at the
front line of asset management companies in Thailand, with expertise in managing
investments in mutual, private and provident funds.

Mutual Fund Business

KAsset offers mutual fund management services with investment policies for
all types of securities, including equity funds, general fixed-income funds, balanced
funds, flexible portfolio funds, etc. Each mutual fund offers different levels of returns
and risk tolerance that can be best fitted to the needs of each investor.

Private Fund Business

KAsset offers fund management services that respond to individual needs and
provide optimal returns to individual investors based on analyses of the needs and
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requirements of investors. Investment policies are set jointly between the company and
the investor, and investments are then managed accordingly. Investment returns are
evaluated according to investors’ requirements and investment conditions, while
investment policies may be adjusted vis-a-vis changing situations.

Provident Fund Management

KAsset manages provident funds in accordance with each fund’s objectives,
keeping risks under control to achieve proper returns for the fund members at
retirement age. The company offers tailor-made provident funds with individualized
investment objectives and risk preferences determined by the fund members.

3. KASIKORN RESEARCH CENTER CO., LTD.

(http://www kasikornresearch.com) guaib“isnénslno )
KASIKOAN RESEARCH CENTER HESRUIT#O

KASIKORN RESEARCH CENTER CO., LTD. (KResearch) is a leading
research center in Thailand, continuously releasing quality research papers on
economics, finance and other current socio-economic issues. Accuracy, thoroughness
and speed are its key principles in providing information services with the following
other objectives:

® To provide knowledge about economics, business administration, finance
and banking to the employees and customers of the Bank, as well as to the
general public;

® To develop an accurate and up-to-date database for public use; and,

® To promote the company’s reputation in scholarly expertise as a subsidiary

of KASIKORNBANKGROUP
4. KASIKORN SECURITIES PCL. Hannsweindnsing
(http://www.kasikornsecurities.com) KASIKORN SECURITIES 2 SR %

KASIKORN SECURITIES PCL. (KSecurities) aims to become a leader in
providing a full range of financial solutions and an excellent standard of financial
services, with a customer-centric philosophy. Core businesses include securities
brokerage and investment banking services.

Securities Brokerage

Securities Brokerage Services include:

® Securities trading through KSecurities marketing staff, as well as over the
Internet;

® Providing investment recommendations based on both fundamental and
technical points of view by our experienced professionals. Our brokerage
team offers quality services with an aim to maximize clients’ asset growth,
using the same service standards as provided by other leading financial
institutions; and,

® Offering analyses and research on securities based on fundamental factors,
industrial and stock information, as well as technical analyses, which help
facilitate better decision-making for investment.

Investment Banking
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Financial Advisory Services include:

® The raising of funds through equity instruments, along with underwriting
services; '
- Arrangement of Initial Public Offerings (IPO): Public Offerings (PO) and
Private Placements (PP);
- Issuance and sale of equity instruments, such as warrants and preferred
stock;

® Other Financial Advisory Services: Investment banking activities in this
area of expertise include: '
- Mergers and Acquisitions, Arrangement of Strategic Partners and Joint
Ventures
- Independent Financial Advisories
- Financial Structure Planning

- Debt Restructuring
5. KASIKORN LEASING CO., LTD. aadonansing (W
(http://www kasikornleasing.com) KASIKORN LEASING B3R €8

KASIKORN LEASING CO., LTD. (KLeasing) offers hire-purchase and
finance leasing products to retail and corporate customers, focusing mainly on
passenger cars, pickup trucks, vans and commercial vehicles. Its products and services
include:

Hire-Purchase

This is a credit line for purchasing new and used vehicles. Ownership is
transferred to the customer after the loan is repaid.

Finance Leasing

This is credit financing for corporate business entities in need of passenger
cars, pickup trucks, vans and commercial vehicles for business. The main distinction
between this type of financing and hire-purchases is that the lessee has the option of
ownership rights over the asset upon maturity in lease contracts, or may relinquish
these rights, at their choice. Usually, there are greater tax benefits to be gained from
leasing contracts than with hire-purchases.

Dealer/Wholesale Floorplan Financing

Kl easing also offers credit financing to car dealers for purchases of vehicles
for sale, thus furthering business extension.

Refinancing

Car refinancing to provide cash for investment and expense purposes is also
offered.

KASIKORNBANKGROUP promotes coordination between subsidiaries in
various aspects, including operations, management and information services, etc., thus
leading to synergy creation and benefits to the group. Besides this, the Bank is
promoting an image of KASIKORNBANKGROUP as a full-range financial solution
provider, offering quality services and products, fusing personal care with modern
technology. Services are provided to customers in all segments and for all ages, with
all financial needs under the ‘K Excellence’ concept, which represents the high-quality
products and services of the group. This corporate signature is being used with all
service channels, as well as at the offices of subsidiaries, branches of the Bank, ATM
machines and all advertising materials. All products and services of
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KASIKORNBANKGROUP guarantee the customer that he/she will receive uniform
quality, denoted by the ‘K’ signature, as with K-SurePay, K-Stock Trade, K-Financial
Lease, K-Business Brief, and K-Global Factoring, etc.

¢ The letter “K” will be the prefix of the names
of all subsidiaries of KASIKORNBANK-

Corporate Signature: GROUP.

‘K Excellence’ e The “K” symbol is written with a brush,
conveying tenderness and caring, expressed
with calligraphic skill and a heartfelt effort
conveyed to the tip of the brush — delicate,
yet strong with every move.

¢ QGreen is the symbolic color of KASIKORN-
BANKGROUP - implying freshness,

: : fertility and life.
.S . ; e A rectangular pedestal is placed at its base,
EXCELLENCE , depicting a secure and strong position, Its
} color is red, representing vigor, warmth and
prosperity. The word, “Excellence”, is
lacated solemnly and confidently upon it.

o Wherever the letter “K” and “Excellence”
are combined as a corporate signature, they
will be an assurance of high-quality products
and services of KASIKORNBANKGROUP,
resolutely delivered with, “Towards Service
Excellence”.

In order to attain our vision and goals efficiently and effectively, the Bank has
adopted a “Balanced Scorecard” concept as a management tool, which has been
developed and modified to suit our business undertakings, and to closely monitor
implementation of key strategic programs.

The Bank’s strategic programs were initiated in the year 2000, and have led to
efficient and effective development of our business potential. Strategic programs
include the upcountry credit transformation process, centralization of credit operations
all over the country, development of a credit underwriting support system, operational
restructuring and support programs for international business. In 2005, the Bank
initiated the K-Transformation Program for the development of core business
strengths in four major areas, to better respond to the needs of our customers.

1. Know Our Customers is aimed at acquiring customer data for product and
service analyses and other related functions. More thorough understanding
of customers’ needs will enable the Bank to offer the right products and
services that truly respond to their needs.

2. Multi-channel Sales and Services are aimed at building the capability to
optimize channel assets to deliver a unique and consistent customer
experience across all channels, seamlessly.

3. IT Capital will enhance the effectiveness of innovations and resources of
the entire organization, using a customer-centric IT architecture.

4. The Financial Information System promotes the development of a new
chart of accounts for KASIKORNBANKGROUP and a singlé bank-wide
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General Ledger System that integrates with other core systems. As a result,
management has convenient access to financial data expressed clearly from
different perspectives, while also showing the financial standings and
performance of the group.

O Good Corporate Governance

In 2005, KASIKORNBANK continued in our determined efforts toward
expanding the Bank’s operations within the framework of good corporate governance,
in the belief that this path will help the Bank to achieve its vision and strategic targets
most swiftly and efficiently. In order for the principles of good corporate governance
to achieve material benefits, it is necessary to make these precepts a part of the
corporate culture, and in so doing, gain the acceptance of those within as well as
outside the organization. This requires the cooperation of every part of the Bank’s
organization, and the dissemination of the codes of good governance conduct to all
stakeholders through all appropriate Bank media channels, so that these stakeholders
receive correct and transparent information to support awareness and trust in the
transparency of KASIKORNBANK.

Aside from this, with our determination to continually develop our overall
business and management, the Bank has achieved considerable success, and has,
during 2005, thus been honored by numerous awards and favorable ratings for good
corporate governance, including the following:

® January 2005
- ‘Best Governance of Asia’ Award from Corporate Governance
Asia magazine, January 2005 issue.

® July 2005

- ‘Best Domestic Commercial Bank’
Award from  Asia  Money
magazine.

- The ‘Distinction in Maintaining
Excellent Corporate Governance
Report’, awarded by the Stock
Exchange of Thailand, in
cooperation with Money and
Banking magazine at the ‘SET "o
Awards 2005: Engine of Growth’ ceremony,

©®  August 2005
- An upgrade of the Bank’s good governance score from 8.80 to
8.89 (“Very Good”), out of a maximum possible score of 10, by
Thai Rating and Information Service (TRIS).
- ‘Best in Financial Management’ award from the Thai Business
Management Association, in cooperation with Sasin Institute.

® November 2005 _
- Rated one of the Top Ten companies in Thailand in the
‘Corporate Governance Report of Thai Listed Companies 2005°,

by the Thai Institute of Directors Association (IOD)
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cooperation with the Thai Securities Exchange Commission

(SEC) and the Stock Exchange of Thailand.

Honored as one of the best-managed companies
in Asia by Euromoney magazine, November
2005 issue, in its report on the achievements
commercial banks and financial institutions.

‘Board of the Year for Exemplary Practices
2004/2005° Award for the second straight time
in receiving this award from the Thai Institute
of Directors Association (IOD), in cooperation
with the Stock Exchange of Thailand, the Thai

EURDMONEY
Auir ¥ Besd-Honagped Companies
2068

RASIRORNBANK PLC

Chamber of Commerce and the Federation of Thai Industries.
‘Best IR by a Thai Company’ Award for the third straight year
from IR Magazine, in cooperation with the Stock Exchange of

Singapore.
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2. Operating Performance and Financial Position Analysis

2.1 Operating Performance
Operating Performance

_(Unit: Million Baht)

Income from interest and dividends 38,066 32,999 5,067 15.36
Interest expense 7,283 7,033 250 3.55
Net income from interest and dividends 30,783 25,966 4,817 18.55
Reversals on bad debts and doubtful accounts 599 (6,159) 6,758 n.a.
Losses on debt restructuring 3,063 8,919 (5,856) (65.66)
Non-interest income 12,302 12,149 153 1.26
Non-interest expense 21,426 19,847 1,579 7.95
Income tax expense 4,003 116 3,887 3,350.86
Minority interests in net income ‘ (64) (52) (12) (23.08)

Netdncome: -~ o oo 13,930 15340 L (14100~ (9.19)

The Bank’s Net Income In 2005, the Bank’s

consolidated net income totaled Baht
13,930 million, decreasing by Baht
1,410 million, or 9.19 percent, from
2004. The decrease was duée mainly to
an increase in corporate income tax
expense of Baht 3,887 million, after
the expiration of tax losses carried
forward. In addition, non-interest
expenses rose by Baht 1,579 million,
while the sum of reversals of bad
debts and doubtful accounts and
losses on debt restructuring increased by Baht 902 million, due to the Bank’s new loan
extension, as well as new loan loss provisioning guidelines set to dynamically reflect
changing economic conditions and other related factors. However, net interest income
rose by Baht 4,817 million, due to loan extension and higher interest rates. Meanwhile,
non-interest income rose by Baht 153 million.

Net Income (Million Baht)
Changes (Percent)
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Income Structure

Interest and dividend income

1. Loans 31,628 27,712 3,916 14.13
1.1 Loans 14,193 13,583 610 449
1.2 Overdrafts ) 9,192 8,535 657 7.70
1.3 Bills 8,243 5594 2,649 47.35

2. Interbank and money market items 2,387 1,527 860 56.32
2.1 Deposits 1,875 1,123 752 66.96
2.2 Loans 127 23 104 452.17
2.3 Securities purchased under resale

agreements 385 381 4 1.05

3. Investments

Total interest and

Non-interest income

1. Fee and service income

1.1 Acceptances, avals, and guarantees 686 577 109 18.89
1.2 Others 8,656 7,531 1,125 14.94
2. Gains on exchange 1,129 1,806 677) (37.49)

3. Other income 1,831 2,235 (404) (18.08)

Diversification of Income

Income from {
Investments : Income from
8.04 % ! » Investments

833 %
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3O Net Income from Interest and Dividends

In 2005, the Bank’s consolidated net income from interest and dividends was
Baht 30,783 million, increasing by Baht 4,817 million, or 18.55 percent, over 2004,
This was due mainly to an increase in interest income on loans of Baht 3,916 million,
achieved through loan extension and higher lending rates. In addition, interest income
from interbank and money markets rose by Baht 860 million, in tandem with higher
interest rates in money markets. Further boosting the Bank’s net income from interest
and dividends was increased earnings from investments of Baht 291 million. However,
the Bank’s interest expense rose by Baht 250 million, due mainly to higher fixed-term
deposit rates.

Q Provisions for Allowance for Doubtful Accounts

In response to the changing economic environment and new loan extension, the
Bank and its subsidiaries, in 2005, set aside allowances for doubtful accounts and
incurred losses on debt restructuring totaling Baht 3,662 million, which was Baht 902
million higher than that of 2004.

The Bank has maintained a policy of setting aside an allowance for doubtful
accounts in excess of the BOT regulations, as well as normalized provisioning. at the
rate of 0.50 percent of total loans, which had already reached the policy target in the
second quarter of 2005. The Bank has also set aside an allowance for normal loans at
1.00 percent in proportion to the net incremental normal loans.

However, as a result of changing economic conditions, the demand for loans has
been on an upward trend, leading the Bank’s loans to grow continuously. Therefore, to
manage the allowance for doubtful accounts to dynamically reflect changing economic
conditions and other related factors, from the third quarter of 2005 onward, the Bank
has rescinded the normalized provisioning policy and transferred the outstanding
amount to inclusion in the allowance for doubtful accounts.

The provision for non-performing loans has been specifically determined by the
nature of loans and related factors such as debt servicing ability, fair value of
collateral, default history and loss severity. Provisioning for performing loans has been
assessed based upon general factors such as default histories and loss severity, credit
risks, economic conditions and management experience. For corporate
loans, provisioning is determined on a case-by-case basis, while provisioning for retail
loans is determined on portfolio basis with similar risk characteristics.

QO Non-interest Income

In 2005, the Bank’s consolidated non-interest income was Baht 12,302 million,
increasing by Baht 153 million, or 1.26 percent, over 2004. This was due largely to an
increase in fee and service income of Baht 1,234 million, or 15.22 percent, over 2004,
mostly from loan-related fees, as well as our cash management, ATM and credit card
businesses.

The Bank’s gains on exchange, however, dropped by Baht 677 million, due
mainly to a decrease in gains on foreign exchange-linked derivatives. Other income
also decreased by Baht 404 million from 2004, following an over-year decrease of
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Baht 1,711 million in gains on investments in debt and equity securities, as the Bank,
in 2004, recorded substantial gains on sales of investments in firms not directly related
to the Bank’s main business. Contributing to the decrease in other income was a Baht
117 million decrease in the Bank’s share of profits (losses) from subsidiary and
associated companies. Other types of other income increased Baht 859 million over
2004, due mainly to profits from the sale of foreclosed properties, while gains on the
transfer of financial assets increased by Baht 564 million.

Q Non-interest Expense

The Bank’s consolidated non-interest expense in 2005 was Baht 21,426 million,
increasing by Baht 1,579 million, or 7.95 percent, over 2004. This was due mainly to a
rise in personnel expense of Baht 1,277 million, following the Bank’s annual pay raise
and provisioning for bonuses and the staff retirement fund, which follows the Thai
Accounting Standard No. 53, on ‘Provision, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent
Assets’, enacted in 2005.

2.2 Financial Position Analysis

Financial Position

(Unit: Million Baht)

824,974 12335 - 150

Assets ' 837,309

Liabilities and Shareholders’ Equity
-Total liabilities 759,193 758,308 885 0.12

- Total shareholders’ equity 78,116 66,666 11,450 17.18

Total Liabilities.and. .
Shareholders’ Equity. -

837,309 4 12,335 e 150

Q Assets

As of the end of 2005, the Bank’s total consolidated assets were Baht 837,309
million, increasing by Baht 12,335 million, or 1.50 percent, over the end of 2004. The
items having significant changes are as follows:

® [oans, as of December 31, 2005, were at Baht 626,946 million, rising by
Baht 34,358 million, or 5.80 percent, over the end of 2004. The increase in
loans was largely in line with the country’s economic growth.

® As of the end of 2005, the Bank’s allowances for doubtful accounts stood at
Baht 37,439 million, decreasing by Baht 8,907 million, or 19.22 percent,
from the end of 2004. The decrease was due to write-offs of bad loans in
accordance with BOT regulations.

® Interbank and money market items, as of De_cember 31, 2005, totaled Baht
65,929 million, decreasing by Baht 10,321 million, or 13.54 percent, from

Management Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) 15



the end of 2004, as some of the Bank’s term-deposits abroad became due.
Loan extension and increasing investments in securities yielding higher
returns during the second half of 2005 also contributed to a decrease in these
interbank and money market items.

® Net investments, as of December 31, 2005, stood at Baht 99,565 million,
decreasing by Baht 10,993 million, or 9.94 percent, from the end of 2004,
following the Bank’s reallocation of assets from investments in fixed-income
securities into loans, which yielded higher returns.

® Securities purchased under resale agreements, as of the end of December
2005, totaled Baht 9,500 million, decreasing by Baht 9,540 million, or 50.11
percent, from the end of 2004, as the Bank managed liquidity to facilitate
loan extension.

O Liabilities and Shareholders’ Equity

Total consolidated liabilities of the Bank, as of December 31, 2005, were Baht
759,193 million, increasing by Baht 885 million, or 0.12 percent, over the end of 2004.
Consolidated liabilities that changed significantly are as follows:

® Deposits, as of December 31, 2005, were Baht 687,781 million, decreasing
by Baht 17,788 million, or 2.52 percent, from the end of 2004. The decrease
in deposits was mainly in fixed-term accounts. There was a change in the
Bank’s deposit structure, with current and savings accounts accounting for
5.77 and 56.71 percent of the total deposits, respectively, increasing from
5.39 and 54.49 percent at the end of 2004, respectively. Meanwhile, fixed-
term accounts accounted for 37.52 percent of the total deposits, dropping
from 40.12 percent in 2004.

® [Interbank and money market items, as of December 31, 2005, were at Baht
19,508 million, increasing by Baht 7,983 million, or 69.27 percent, over the
end of 2004. This rise was attributed to an increase in sales of discounted
promissory notes to the BOT, in compliance with BOT policy.

® Borrowing, as of December 31, 2005, totaled Baht 27,727 million, increasing
by Baht 4,116 million, or 17.43 percent, over the end of 2004. Most of this
increase was in short-term borrowing as the Bank issued short-term
debentures to enhance flexibility and variety of funding structure
management, as well as to provide more alternatives in investments to the
public and the Bank’s depositors.

® Other liabilities, as of December 31, 2005, totaled Baht 14,381 million,
increasing by Baht 6,388 million, or 79.92 percent, over the end of 2004.
The increase in other liabilities was due mainly to deferred corporate tax
payments for 2005, and obligations on the Bank’s investments in foreign
securities purchased through liquidity management companies, wherein
transactions have not yet been settled in cash.

As of December 31, 2005, total consclidated shareholders’ equity was Baht

78,116 million, increasing by Baht 11,450 million, or 17.18 percent, over the end of
2004, due to the Bank’s profits in 2005.
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Q Relationship Between Sources and Uses of Funds

As of December 31, 2005, the funding structure as shown in the Consolidated
Financial Statement comprised Baht 759,193 million in liabilities and Baht 78,116
million in shareholders’ equity, resulting in a debt-to-equity ratio of 9.72. The major
source of funds on the liabilities side was deposits, which accounted for 82.14 percent
of the total. Other sources of funds included interbank and money market items and
borrowing, which accounted for 2.33 percent and 3.31 percent of the total,
respectively.

The Bank and its subsidiaries’ major use of funds was loans. As of December
31, 2005, loans amounted to Baht 626,946 million, resulting in a loan-to-deposit ratio
of 91.15 percent. For the remaining liquidity, the Bank has invested in various liquid
assets such as interbank and money market items, securities purchased under resale
agreements and investments in securities.

The major sources and uses of funds as of the end of December 2005 are
categorized by contractual maturity periods in the following table:

The Bank and its Subsidiaries’ Major Sources and Uses of Funds

(Unit: Million Baht)

. & v A *200 RelN
< 1year 678,980 98.72 699,457 99.13] 396,745 63.28 373,259 62.99

> 1 year 8,801 1.28 6,113 0.87} 230,201 36.72 219,330 37.01

Note: ADetails of deposits and loans appear in the item, “Liquidity Risk Management” in the Analysis of
Remaining Maturity of Assets and Liabilities.

The Bank and its subsidiaries’ deposits with remaining maturities of less than, or
equal to, 1 year at the end of December 2005 totaled Baht 678,980 million, decreasing
by Baht 20,477 million, or 2.93 percent, from the Baht 699,457 million at the end of
2004. Deposits with remaining maturities of over 1 year at the end of December 2005
weére Baht 8,801 million, increasing by Baht 2,688 million, or 43.97 percent, over Baht
6,113 million at the end of 2004.

At the end of December 2005, the Bank and its subsidiaries had loans with
remaining maturities of less than, or equal to, 1 year totaling Baht 396,745 million,
rising by Baht 23,486 million, or 6.29 percent, over the Baht 373,259 million at the
end of 2004. Loans with remaining maturities of over 1 year amounted to Baht
230,201 million, increasing by Baht 10,871 million, or 4.96 percent, over the Baht
219,330 million at the end of 2004. ‘

From the above table, it can be seen that, as of December 31, 2005, deposits with
remaining maturities of less than or equal to 1 year were larger than loans with
remaining maturities of less than or equal to 1 year. This is considered normal for
commercial banks in Thailand, as they normally fund their lending or investments in
long-term assets from short-term liabilities. However, since most deposits are
renewed when they reach maturity, it is likely that they will remain with the Bank
longer than their stated contractual term, thereby helping to support funds for the
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Bank’s lending. In addition, in December 2005, the Bank issued the Baht 6,816
million Short-Term Debenture Project 1/2005 and Project 2/2005 to promote better
flexibility and variety in the Bank’s funding structure, as well as to provide more
alternatives in investments for public and the Bank’s depositors.

Q Investments

The Bank’s and subsidiaries’ investments in securities consist of trading
investments, available-for-sale investments, debt instruments held to maturity, and
investments in subsidiaries and associated companies. A review of investments is
carried out when there is a factor indicating that an investment might have become
impaired. Investments in securitiés, classified by the type of investment, as of the end
of December 20035, are shown below:

Investments

__(Unit: Million Baht)

ercent

DebtInstruments - 94.81

- 104824

Government and State Enterprise
Securities
e Trading Investments 1,155 1.16 1,240 1.28 1,315 1.19
e Available-for-sale Investments 26,125 26.24 29,108 30.05 36,194 32.74
¢ Held-to-maturity Investments 21,708 21.80 24,860 25.67 26,422 23.90
Private Enterprise Debt Instruments
¢ Trading Investments - - 22 0.02 - -
e  Available-for-sale Investments 2,178 2.19 2,050 2.12 2,821 2.55
. Held-to-maturity Investments 223 0.22 223 0.23 278 0.25
Foreign Debt Instruments

e Available-for-sale Investments 27,522 27.64 17,987 18.57 24,182 21.87

o Held-to-maturity Investments 13,491 13.55 13,474 13.91 13,612 12.31
Equity Securities .- o763 o A9 7887 - . 84 5,733 5.19
Available-for-sale Investments 1,086 1.09 1,293 1.34 1,766 1.60
General Investments 5,626 5.65 6,161 6.36 3,504 3.17
Investments in Subsidiary and 451 045 433 0.45 463 0.42

Associat_ed Cqmganies _
#osiseiTotal Investments

Q Liquidity
Cash and cash equivalents, according to the Bank’s consolidated financial

statement, as of the end of December 2005, totaled Baht 14,913 million, increasing by
Baht 1,377 million over the end of 2004, due to the following activities:

® Net cash used in operating activities totaled Baht 2,715 million, as a result of
changes in key operating assets and liabilities. Interbank and money market
items (on the asset side) decreased by Baht 10,277 million, while securities
purchased under resale agreements declined by Baht 9,540 million. Loans,
however, increased by Baht 51,323 million. Deposits showed a decrease of
Baht 17,788 million, whereas interbank and money market items (on the
liabilities side) increased by Baht 7,983 million.

Management Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) 18



® Net cash received from investment activities was Baht 6,243 million. This
amount comprises cash received from the disposal of available-for-sale
investments, totaling Baht 44,585 million, and cash received from
redemption of debt instruments held to maturity of Baht 10,947 million,
while there were cash payments for available-for-sale investments of Baht
38,876 million, and cash payments for debt instruments held to maturity of
Baht 7,063 million.

® Net cash used in financial activities totaled Baht 2,151 million, due mainly to
the Bank’s dividend payments in the second quarter of 2005.

Q Capital Expenditures

To enhance service efficiency, in 2005, the Bank’s capital expenditures were
primarily for information technology (IT), totaling Baht 1,510 million. Capital
expenditures in other fixed assets were Baht 348 million.

2.3 Capital Requirements and Credit Ratings

Q Capital Funds

As of December 31, 2005, the Bank had a capital base of Baht 94,557 million,
comprising Tier-1 capital totaling Baht 62,308 million, and Tier-2 capital totaling Baht
32,249 million. The capital adequacy ratio of the Bank and our asset management
companies, Phethai and Ploy AMCs, equaled 14.47 percent, significantly above the
BOT’s minimum requirement of 8.50 percent. Details of the capital adequacy ratio of
the Bank and our AMCs are as follow:

Capital Adequacy Ratios*

. (Unit: Percent)
“Mar 31;

- 00 AL i : 2 ; ¢
Tier-1 Capital 9.53** 9.58 8.50 7.90 7.98

Tier-2 Capital 493 493 5.00 5.19 5.14
i pital Reqn SPTEISE

Note: *These ratios do not include the net profits of each accounting period. According to BOT regulations, the
net profits for the first half of the year shall be included in capital, after approval by the Bank’s Board of
Directors. The net profits for the second half of the year shall be included in capital after approval by a
General Meeting of Shareholders. However, if there is a net loss, the loss must be deducted from capital
immediately.

**Not including the net profits for the second half of the year, ending on December 31, 2005. Should the
net profits for the second half of the year, ending on December 31, 2005, be included, the capital
adequacy ratio of Tier-1 capital and of total capital requirements would be equal to 10.39 percent and
15.32 percent, respectively.

Q Maintenance of Ratios

The Bank maintains liquid assets, on average, of at least 6.00 percent of
deposits and borrowing, in compliance with BOT regulations. As of December 31,
2005, the Bank had cash, cash at Cash Operation Units, and deposits at the BOT,
including eligible securities, totaling Baht 68,622 million.
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O Credit Ratings

In 2005, the Bank’s credit rating was upgraded three times. In the first quarter,
Fitch Ratings raised its outlook for the Bank’s international long-term debt rating from
“stable” to “positive”, while the international long-term subordinated debt and
individual ratings were upgraded from BBB- to BBB and from C/D to C, respectively.

In the second quarter, Fitch Ratings raised the Bank’s international long-term
debt rating from BBB to BBB+, and the international short-term debt and deposit
rating from F3 to F2. In the third quarter, Standard & Poor’s raised three ratings for
the Bank and, for the first time, assigned a ‘C’ rating for the BFSR (Bank
Fundamental Strength Rating) to the Bank. The agency upgraded the Bank’s long-term
debt rating from BB+ to BBB, the Bank’s long-term subordinated debt rating from
BB- to BBB-, and the Bank’s short-term debt and deposit rating from B to A-2.

The details of the Bank’s ratings for the years ending 2005 and 2004 are shown
in the following table.

KASIKORNBANK’s Credit Ratings

‘, “-Credit Ratings. "December 31,2005 . December 31,2004
Moody’s Tivestors Services *** R ' o
Long-term - Debt n.a.* " na.*
- Subordinated Debt Baa2 Baa2
- Deposit Baal ** Baal**
Short-term - Debt/Deposit P-2 P-2
Outlook Stable Stable
Bank Financial Strength Rating
(BFSR) D D
Qutlook for BFSR Positive Positive
Standard & Pooi’s ***: RN e ‘ e
Long-term - Debt BBB BB+
- Subordinated Debt BBB- BB-
Bank Fundamental Strength Rating
(BFSR) C -
Short-term - Debt/Deposit A-2 B
Qutlook Stable Positive
TFiteh RRbngs ™ % o oL L e
International credit ratings
Long-term - Debt BBB+ BBB
- Subordinated Debt BBB BBB-
Individual C C/D
Support 2 2
Short-term - Debt/Deposit F2 F3
QOutlook Positive Stable
~National credit ratings R e :
Long-term - Debt AA(tha) AA(tha)
- Subordinated Debt AA-(tha) AA-(tha)
Short-term - Debt/Deposits F1+(tha) F1+(tha)
Qutlook Stable Stable

Remarks: *Moody’s Investor Services does not assign ratings to the Bank’s long-term debt.
** Long-term deposits are rated only by Moody’s Investor Services.
***The investment grade of long-term credit ratings for Moody’s Investors Services, Standard & Poor’s,
and Fitch Ratings are Baa3, from BBB- and from BBB-, respectively. For short-term credit ratings,
the investment grade ratings by these three agencies were from P-3, A-3, and F3, respectively.
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3. Operations of Business Groups *

3.1 Business Overview

KASIKORNBANK’s businesses are divided into three main groups: the
Corporate Business Group, the Retail Business Group and the Treasury Group. In the
year 2005, despite various negative factors, the business groups managed to
successfully proceed with work on the Bank’s strategies, guidelines, targets and goals.
In addition to this, the Bank continued to expedite continuous development in many
systems to improve operational capabilities and competitiveness.

3.2 Corporate Business Group

The Corporate Business Group provides services to customers with sales
volumes over Baht 50 million per annum. Bearing in mind the benefits to our
customers as being of utmost importance, products and services are offered to match
the needs of varying business sectors, which are categorized into three segments -
large corporate, or “multi-corporate banking”; medium corporate, or “corporate
banking”; and small corporate, or “business banking” - segments. The main products
of the group include domestic credit products, letters of indemnity-borrowing, trade
finance, corporate finance, foreign exchange services, cash management services and
securities services.

O Business Operations in 2005

In 2005, operations of the Corporate Business Group are summarized in the
following:

Customer Segment

® Multi-Corporate Banking Segment

Overview

This unit provides sophisticated financial products and services for multi-
corporate and investment project customers with sales volumes over Baht 5,000
million per annum. The main products are capital financing services, which include
end-to-end financial offerings such as loan arrangement services, financial advisories
and debt instrument underwriting. Other financial services include cash management
and foreign exchange services.

Changes in the Operating Environment and Business Operations

Amid market volatility and intense competition throughout 2005, the Bank’s
fee-based income rose above targets, especially in the fourth quarter. This was due to
increased revenues from risk management and corporate finance products, achieved

* Later in 2005, the Bank reorganized our business structure. This new structure is set to become
effective from January 1, 2006, onward.
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through introducing customers to potential benefits from our products. Meanwhile,
bank-customer relationships have been fostered via various activities, including
financial consulting, thus gaining the trust of our customers. In addition, different
service strategies have been designed for different groups of customers, while
relationships with our business alliance partners, both at home and abroad, have been
strengthened for future business opportunities.

® (Corporate Banking Segment

Overview

Customers in this segment are medium-sized corporate entities with sales
volumes between Baht 400 — 5,000 million per annum, for which the Bank has devised
specialized services such as capital financing services that include a complete range of
loan facilities, including working capital financing, capital expenditure loans, project
finance loans and trade finance. Other financial services include cash management,
foreign exchange and financial advisory services.

Changes in the Operating Environment and Business Operations

In 2005, the Corporate Banking Segment achieved continuing growth in
income, most notably in interest income, which was due to above-target loan
-extension, particularly in trade finance. This was also true for fee-based income, which
increased steadily from such products as letters of indemnity-borrowing, cash
management, corporate finance, and foreign exchange. Aside from continuing product
and service developments, the Bank has carried on proactive marketing strategies in
which bank-customer relationships are strengthened through various programs.
Meanwhile, the Bank, through KASIKORNBANKGROUP, is expanding business and
customer bases into the securities business via KASIKORN SECURITIES PCL., and
leasing business via KASIKORN LEASING CO.,LTD.

® Business Banking Segment

Overview

Customers in this segment are corporate entities with sales volumes between
Baht 50-400 million per annum to whom a full range of products, including domestic
credit, trade finance and cash management products, is offered to meet customers’
varying needs.

Changes in the Operating Environment and Business Operations

In 2005, the Bank achieved satisfactory growth in both new loan extension
and fee-based income. The latter was mainly in letters of indemnity-borrowing and
cash management services. In addition to marketing products to potential new
customers, importance has been placed on improving bank-customer relationships
with current customers. Among our marketing campaigns, there were seminars and
workshops, which were organized for current and potential customers on topics such
as international payments, currency trends, marketing and management.
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Product Group

® Domestic Credit Products and Letters of Indemnity-Borrowing

Overview

Domestic credit products are divided into two categories: working capital
finance, such as overdrafts and promissory notes, and investment capital finance of
various types. The Bank also offers several contingent bank guarantee products, such
as letters of indemnity-borrowing, avals, letters of guarantee on loans, and financial
statements.

Changes in the Operating Environment and Business Operations

Since the beginning of 2005, the Bank had been able to achieve higher
growth in domestic lending, while fee-based income from letters of indemnity-
borrowing was on target. This growth was achieved through constant improvements in
our existing credit products, as well as the introduction of new products that meet
customer needs in changing economic conditions. A notable example of this was a
revolving fund product for gasoline stations, while the Bank also participated in the
“Energy Conservation-Revolving Fund Project”, with the approval of the Department
of Alternative Energy Development and Efficiency. As for pricing, interest rates on
secured loans have been made more competitive by changing the rate structure to
deposit rates plus premiums approved by the Bank for each customer, from rates based

on benchmarks, such as MFI, MFJ, MSI and MSJ 4. For faster service, the Bank has

continued to improve credit procedures, including deposit deductions for loan
repayments and refinancing procedures.

® Trade Finance

Overview

Trade Finance offers many types of import and export services, such as letters
of credit (L/C), bills for collection, trust receipts, international fund remittances and
exchange of foreign currencies, etc.

Changes in the Operating Environment and Business Operations

In 2005, the Bank’s trade finance lending, both for imports and exports,
continued to grow on-target, in tandem with our volume of international trade. Notable
growth was observed in electronics, jewelry, construction materials and automobile
industries. Such satisfactory growth was a result of the Bank’s continuing
improvements in our products and services. Examples include advisory services,
which are provided under the guidance of international business experts, in addition to
quality services by our marketing teams. Furthermore, “Imaging Workflow”
technology has been implemented, which has helped facilitate fund transfer
transactions. All of these improvements have added extra value to our services to
customers.

* MFL: Minimum Fixed Deposit Rate for Individual Persons , MFJ: Minimum Fixed Deposit Rate for

Juristic Persons, MSI: Minimum Saving Deposit Rate for Individual Persons, MSJ: Minimum Saving
Deposit Rate for Juristic Persons
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® Corporate Finance
Overview

There are two major categories of services provided by Corporate Finance,
including financial advisory services and corporate finance services, covering a full
range of financial products and financial advisory services. In addition to offering
services as a broker-dealer and underwriter for state enterprise bonds, Corporate
Finance is responsible for researching the debt market and performing analyses on the
economy, foreign exchange and the capital markets.

Changes in Operating Environment and Business Operations

In 2005, the Bank remained the underwriter of choice for the IPO of
numerous debentures, while providing financial advisory services to several leading
corporations. In addition, the Bank has been entrusted with the role as the sole
underwriter of the government’s “Savings Bonds”, worth Baht 30,000 million, in total.
These bonds will be offered to the public from the third quarter of 2005 to August
2006. In the debenture auction business, the Bank has also maintained our position as
the top-ranked player, continued from last year.

® (Currency and Interest Rate Risk Management Products
Overview

Foreign exchange services and products include spot transactions and
hedging instruments, such as forward contracts and other financial derivatives.

Changes in the Operating Environment and Business Operations

Despite market volatility caused by several factors, including the weakening
of major currencies against the U.S. Dollar during the first half of the year, the
revaluation of the Chinese Renminbi on July 21, and the heightened volatility of the
Yen and the Euro in the fourth quarter caused by rumors of another Renminbi
revaluation in November, the Bank’s fee-based income from foreign exchange
products continued to grow. This satisfactory growth was attributable to the increased
demand for the Bank’s currency risk management, as evident in the larger number of
transactions. The Bank has also offered customers derivative products with larger sizes
and longer maturities, in addition to basic derivative products such as interest rate and
currency swaps. Furthermore, as interest rate risks have intensified due to upward
trends in interest rates at home and abroad, the Bank continued to meet customers’

needs in interest risk management by engaging in derivative transactions on their
behalf.

® (Cash Management

Overview

Cash Management Services provide an efficient, effective, end-to-end
solution in cash management, enabling more control over costs of funding, interest
paid, liquidity, and time expended. To meet the needs of customers in different
businesses, there are four key services provided under Cash Management: collection
management services, payment management services, liquidity management services
and special services such as payroll services.
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Changes in the Operating Environment and Business Operations

In 2005, the Bank has continued the development of our business according
to established strategies. Moreover, services and products have been upgraded to
better fit changing market conditions, especially in the second half of the year, when
there were several increases in commercial bank deposit rates. During this period, the
Bank adjusted fixed-term deposit rates and conditions for saving deposit rates, meeting
customers’ needs in the rising interest rate environment. Also of note, the Bank, in
cooperation with KASIKORN ASSET MANAGEMENT CO., LTD., launched a new
deposit product in which customers can transfer their deposits from saving accounts to
short-term government bond funds. As for our Business to Business (B2B) debt
collection services for large corporate customers, focus has been placed on electronic
payment services. For our Business to Customer (B2C) debt collection services, the
Bank has implemented several promotional activities through direct marketing, aimed
at increasing the transaction volume of our payment and fund transfer “K-SurePay”
services. Meanwhile, the Bank’s Electronic Banking System for corporate customers
has been upgraded to an internet platform, from the previous intranet platform.

& Securities Services

Overview

Securities Services consist of custodial services for retirement funds, private
funds, other mutual funds, and registrar services for bonds, securities, and unit trusts.
The Bank also provides support services for syndicated loans, such as acting as a
security agent for collateral control and as a facility agent.

Changes in the Operating Environment and Business Operations

In 2005, the Bank’s securities services enjoyed satisfactory growth, especially
in registrar services for unit trusts and debentures, due to the launch of six mutual
funds and ten debentures. In addition, the Bank has expanded custodial services into
foreign investment funds and short-term domestic funds, while gaining more business
from customers switching to our services. As for the Bank’s custodial services for
provident funds, we have maintained our leadership in terms of market share, while
new services for the government civil servant provident funds have been launched. As
for our K-Agency services, in which the Bank operates as a syndicated loan agency, a
collateral agency for syndicated loan programs and a bondholder representative, they
have all generated on-target fee-based income, exceeding that of the previous year.
This was aftributable to the Bank’s successful expansion in the syndicated loan
business and the public sector’s mega-investment projects. The Bank is also in the
process of preparing staff and operating systems to meet the new requirement of the
Securities and Exchange Commission, to be effective in 2006, which stipulates that
provident funds have to be provided with asset value verification.
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0 Financial Position

Corporate Business Group Credit Classified by Customer Segment

(Unit: Million Baht)

100,00 2245401202747 - . 21,793 © <1075

‘Cofriporﬁfé‘“Bu_s'iﬁe‘ss’:Group

Customer Segment _ '
Multi-corporate Banking Segment 30.53 68,542 66,417 2,125 3.20
Corporate Banking Segment . 37.37 83,913 72,750 11,163 15.34
Business Banking Segment 32.10 72,085 63,580 8,505 13.38

As of the end of 2005, the Corporate Business Group’s total loans stood at Baht
224,540 million, increasing by Baht 21,793 million, or 10.75 percent, over the end of
2004. Categorized by customer segment, the increase in the Group’s total loans in
2005 was due chiefly to a 15.34 percent increase in the Corporate Banking Segment’s
loans, over the end of 2004, following expansion in iron and steel, chemical and
plastic, and agro-industry businesses. Following this was the Business Banking
Segment’s loans, which grew by 13.38 percent over the end of 2004, while the Multi-
corporate Banking segment’s loans expanded by 3.20 percent.

Corporate Business Group Credit Classified by Product Group

(Unit: Million Baht)

Corporate Business Groitp 100:00. 224,540 202,747 .. 21,7093 1075

Product group
Domestic credit products 72.81 163,486 151,348 12,138 8.02
Trade finance 26.03 58,446 47,865 10,581 22.11
BIBF 1.12 2,506 3,378 (872) (25.81)
Other loans 0.05 102 156 (59 (34.62)

Categorized by product group, as of the end of 2005, products having the largest
loan extension were domestic credit products, which rose Baht 12,138 million over the
end of 2004. However, in terms of over-year percent change, trade finance loans
recorded the highest growth of 22.11 percent over the end of 2004, due to growth in
energy and electrical appliance industries. Following this was domestic credit
products, which showed an increase of 8.02 percent over the end of 2004. BIBF loans,
however, fell 25.81 percent.
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3.3 Retail Business Group

The Retail Business Group is responsible for developing and managing customer
relationships with retail business and individual customers. Based on their unique
financial needs, customers are divided into 4 segments: business & professional
customers, Platinum customers, middle-income customers, and general retail
customers, or transactors. By group, the Bank’s products are classified as follows:
retail business lending, consumer loans, credit cards, as well as deposits and fee-based
income.

Q Business Operations in 2005

Throughout 2005, the Bank’s products, as well as sales and service channels
have been improved to enhance the efficiency of business operations, as follows:

Product Group

® Retail Business Lending

Overview .

To help businesses operate at their full potential, the Bank has provided credit
facilities to improve their liquidity, as well as for funding business expansion.
Advisory services are also provided to help determine loan features best fitting
individual businesses and goals. Both short-term and long-term loans are offered, and
custom-made products designed to fit each customer’s needs are provided.

Changes in the Operating Environment and Business Operations

Despite an economic slowdown in 2005, the Bank was able to sustain
satisfactory loan growth, which was achieved through our commitment to product and
service developments. For example, to facilitate funding for liquidity and business
expansion of SME customers, the Bank has launched such innovative products as
“KBank SME Klean Credit”, which is a non-collateralized loan product, and “KBank
SME KMax”, which offers credit lines of up to 120 percent of the customer’s
collateral value. In addition, loan application forms have been standardized nationwide
to make them easier for customers to complete, while credit approval processes have
been improved for quick and responsive service. Moreover, focus has been placed on
fostering bank-customer relationships through various marketing programs, which, we
believe, will lead to broader business opportunities in the future.

® (Consumer Loans

Overview

In understanding the various financial needs of individuals and households,
the Bank offers a full spectrum of consumer loan products, covering housing loans and
personal loans.

Changes in the Operating Environment and Business Operations

In addition to developing products to better suit customers’ needs, the Bank
has continued to focus on the use of marketing campaigns to create closer bank-
customer relationships. For example, the “Decoration Guide by Home Smiles Club”
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magazine has been provided to the Bank’s “Home Smiles Club” members. Also, an
all-in-one mortgage product that comes with laundry and cleaning services for
homebuyers has been launched, through collaboration with our alliance partners.

® (Credit Cards

Overview

The Bank offers a broad array of credit card products and services, including
services classified by cardholder type, such as cards for individuals and corporate
customers, and services classified by card brand, such as the KBank Card, KBank-
VISA Card and KBank-Master Card. For maximum efficiency in our services and the
highest satisfaction of customers, the Bank’s credit card products and services have
been continuously developed and improved.

Changes in the Operating Environment and Business Operations

Although consumption spending has been hurt by several negative factors
such as volatile oil prices and rising inflation, credit card spending has continued to
grow. This was evident in the last quarter of the year, due to a boost from holiday
season spending and a rebound in tourism after the tsunami disaster. Meanwhile, the
Bank has introduced the “Ideal Card”, featuring a security chip preventing forgery.
Also, barcodes have been installed on the Bank’s credit card statements, making it
more convenient for customers to make payments at our branches and ATM machines.
Furthermore, “K-mAlert” service, in which information on spending through the
Bank’s debit and credit cards is sent to customers via SMS service, has been Jaunched.
Besides this, since the second quarter, the Bank has extended service to China
UnionPay (CUP) credit and debit cards, issued by China’s banks.

As for the card-accepting business, competition remains strong, especially in
promoting spending through credit cards and increasing shares of card accepting
stores. This is evident in the rising number of Electronic.Data Capture (EDC)
machines being installed by credit card providers in each quarter. In response to this
heightened competition, the Bank has expanded our card-accepting business through
various service initiatives and product developments. For example, EDC machines
have been installed for merchants at various trade fairs. Meanwhile, the number of
EDC-equipped stores ready for chip-embedded credit cards has increased. Also,
through the Bank’s “Loyalty Program”, card-accepting stores have been encouraged to
deliver quality services, according to the Bank’s guidelines, to cardholders in set target
groups. A wireless EDC system has also been developed, enabling high-speed GPRS
data transfers. In addition, the Bank’s “Secure Communications Project” has been
implemented, allowing the sending and receiving of data between the Bank and
customers to be processed through an Internet system. Besides this, the Retail
Business Group, through collaboration with the Corporate Business Group and
alliance partners, has sought to broaden the Bank’s marketing and business
opportunities through the launch of several service packages.

® Deposits and Fee-based Income

Overview
The Bank has offered a wide range of deposit and card access products,

including savings accounts, fixed-term deposits, current accounts and ATM cards. For
customers’ convenience, services such as fund transfers through ATM machines and
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utilities payments have also been offered.

Changes in the Operating Environment and Business Operations

Amid strong competition in the mutual fund business, the Bank, in
cooperation with KASIKORN ASSET MANAGEMENT CO., LTD., has launched
several mutual fund products throughout 2005. Products of note include short- and
medium-term open-ended funds invested in the public sector’s fixed-income
securities, as well as the Ruang Khao SET 50 Fund and the Ruang Khao Long-Term
Open-Ended 7030 Fund.

In the course of an upward interest rate trend and heightened competition in
the Bancassurance business, the Bank, in cooperation with Muang Thai Life
Assurance Co., Ltd., has introduced several new life insurance products, including the
Ruang Khao Sasomsup 5/1 Fund, the Ruang Khao Sasomsup 10/3 Fund and the Ruang
Khao Family Income Fund. As for personal accident insurance products, alternative
sales channels in addition to the Bank’s branches, such as through direct mailings and
telephone contacts, have been further improved, while sales contests have been held to
enhance the marketing prowess of the Bank’s staff.

Meanwhile, to enhance efficiency in service, additional KBank
Bancassurance Advisors (KBAs) have been assigned to the Bank’s branches in
Bangkok and the Metropolitan Area. Besides this, the Bank has offered such bundled
products as “KBank Klean Loan Protection” and “KBank Klean O/D Protection” to
our SME customers using these non-collateralized loan products. In a similar véin,
Ruang Khao Pithaksin, a property insurance product, has been offered to the Bank’s
housing loan customers. The Bank has also implemented product cross-selling. For
example, debit card products have been cross-sold with personal accident insurance
products to customers opening new accounts at the Bank’s branches. The first phase of
this campaign covers 20 branches in Bangkok and the Metropolitan Area.

Furthermore, the Bank has broadened business opportunities in deposits and
fee-based income products by introducing two new fund transfer services in
December. These new services include the “Inter-Region Fund Transfer” service, in
which money can be sent nationwide to persons without a bank account, and the
“Inter-Bank Fund Transfer” service, in which fund transfers can be made to accounts
at any bank via the Bank’s service counters.

As for debit card products, promotional activities and marketing campaigns
have been organized to strengthen the Bank’s customer base, as well as encourage
transactions through the Bank’s cards. Operational procedures have also been made
ready for debit cards that are jointly issued with other organizations.

In the foreign exchange business, additional foreign exchange booths were set
up, more than doubling the Bank’s sales channels over the previous year. All of these
efforts, in addition to the policy of offering competitive exchange rates, have resulted
in the Bank’s being able to maintain our rank as one of the market’s top three in this
business.
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Sales and Service Channels

In order to reach retail business customers, the Bank has continued to improve
sales and service channels, including:

® Branch Network

The branch network is the primary channel for customers to conduct financial
transactions, and for the Bank to introduce products designed to fit each customer’s
needs. To facilitate sales and service to targeted customer segments in a highly
efficient manner, branches are classified into two groups.

Group 1 -- Bangkok and the Metropolitan Area and Major Cities:

Branches in Bangkok and major cities are grouped into clusters to facilitate
management. Each cluster consists of differing branch types and sizes to ensure that
each cluster is commensurate with the business potential and customer service
requirements of a given location. Branches are divided into three groups as follows:

- Retail Branches provide financial services to customers in all segments,
and coordinate with Direct Sales Units to sell credit products to targeted
customers.

- In-store Branches aim to serve transactors and middle-income customers
during non-traditional banking hours at locations such as malls, stores, and
offices in urban areas.

- Transaction Outlets focus primarily on providing and conducting
transaction services for customers, selling non-credit products, providing

advice on the Bank’s products and encouraging credit and financial
services,

Group 2 -- Upcountry:

Upcountry branches are classified into two groups as follows:

- Branch Clusters for branches that are located in malls, or are in the
~ vicinity of one another, and can operate as clustered branches to enhance
managément efficiency.

- Single Full Branches are branches in upcountry areas that cannot be
clustered because they are located too far apart. Such branches are
therefore maintained and managed as a single unit.

® Direct Sales Force

Focus has been placed on marketing the Bank’s products, especially hd"u'sin‘g
loans, personal loans and credit cards, to middle-income customers, through this
channel. '

" ® Alliance Partners

Business allies are used to expand the Bank’s customer base, develop new
products and services, and to build image awareness.
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® Direct Marketing

The Bank uses this channel to promote a wide range of products and services
to new and existing customers, as well as to customers of alliance partners.

® Phone Channel: K-Contact Center (formally known as “KBank e-
Phone”)

Throughout 2005, the Bank continued to improve our customer relations
service through this phone channel. For exampie, the Interactive Voice Response
(IVR) system has been upgraded to enhance the efficiency of service to customers,
while .a “Web Chat” service, which is connected to customer relations officers
providing online help, has been introduced. Also, service teams have been trained and
informed about product features, and tests have regularly been conducted on teams
and team managers. Meanwhile, K-Contact Center has been used constantly as an
additional channel promoting the Bank’s services and products, such as credit cards
featuring specific promotional offerings for different groups of customers. Also, via
this channel, data on customer satisfaction and customer behavior has been collected
for analysis and improvements on the Bank’s products and services.

® Electronic Channels

For a better service coverage in response to the growing demands of
customers, the Bank has continued to upgrade products and services provided through
these channels. Moreover, since the fourth quarter, the names of products and services
have been changed, for consistency with the Bank’s new K Excellence concept. They
are divided into four groups, as follows, '

1. Interactive Machines

1.1 K-ATM (formally known as “e-ATM”)

As of the end of 2005, the Bank’s ATM machines have increased to 1,962
units, from 1,391 units at the end of 2004, all of which have been modified to handle
transactions for China UnionPay (CUP) cards, and were ready for this as of May 13,
2005. Menus were adjusted to make them easier to use, and the “K-SurePay” service
was advertised on monitors. The Bank’s ATM machines have also been upgraded for
faster transaction handling. At the same time, the Bank is in the process of upgrading
systems in preparation for encrypted ATM card PINs, in compliance with the
standards set by VISA International, and will be ready by July 1, 2007. In addition,
since December 22, 2005, customers have been able to complete their Unit trust
transactions through the Bank’s ATM machines in Bangkok and the Metropolitan
Area, with the Bank’s aim to provide nationwide coverage by January 2006. Besides
this, applications for mobile phone banking services can now be made through the
Bank’s ATM machines.

1.2 K-CDM (formally known as “e-CDM”)

To facilitate customers’ deposit transactions, the Bank has increased the
number of Cash Deposit Machines to 124 units at the 2005 year-end, from 70 units at
the end of 2004.
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2. Internet Banking

The Bank’s Internet Banking service, comprising K-Cyber Banking for
individual customers, and K-BizNet for small business customers, has witnessed
strong growth. Since a substantially larger volume- of transactions is expected in the
near future, the Bank has ceaselessly upgraded operations and services to make certain
that they will be ready for future demand. For example, since August 2005, the Bank’s
has streamlined application approval procedures, in which applications can now be
approved within two working days -- down from seven working days. Meanwhile, the
number of the Bank’s business partners accepting payments via our Internet Banking
services has been increased considerably, making it more convenient for customers to
make their purchases online.

2.1 K-Cyber Banking (formally known as “e-Internet”)

The Bank’s Internet Banking service for individual customers has enjoyed
satisfactory growth of 89.79 percent over 2004 in the number of users of this service.
Developments of note in 2005 included a service in which new PINs are provided,
either through e-mail or collectable at the Bank’s branches, for customers who forget
their passwords. .

2.2 K-BizNet (formally known as “e-BizLink”)

The Bank’s Internet Banking service for small business customers has also
sustained strong growth of 212.69 percent over 2004.

3. K-mPay (formally known as “KBank mPay”, or “e-Mobile Phone
Banking”)

The Bank’s bill payment facilities via mobile phone systems for individual
customers have registered growth of 900.00 percent over 2004. Notable developments
in 2005 include the implementation of the “Mobile Back Office” system for more
efficient service, as well as improvements in PIN registration to speed up approval
processes. Besides this, the Bank has launched the “K-mAlert” service, which
provides information on customers’ debit and credit card spending via SMS service.
Furthermore, the Bank’s operational system, since May 2005, has been undergoing
upgrades to handle transactions for VISA cards, in addition to those carried out for the
Bank’s savings and current accounts.

4. K-Payment Gateway (formally known as “e-Commerce”) ,

The Bank’s payment service for online business has recorded growth of 12.39
percent over 2004 in the number of stores using our service. Service system
developments have been completed, resulting in a more stable platform for a larger
number of orders. Participating stores have also been transferred to this new platform
for faster and more efficient service. In addition, the Bank is in the process of
upgrading the level of security in accordance with “Verified by VISA” and “Master
Card Secure” policies. This upgrade is expected to be completed by the first quarter of
2006.

® Business Service Center (formally known as- the “Business Banking
Center”) | '

Since January 2005, the operation of the Business Banking Center has been
transferred from the Corporate Business Group to the Retail Business Group, while the
Center has been renamed the “Business Service Center”. Through this channel,
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standard banking services similar to those at the Bank’s branches, as well as
commercial loan and cash management services are provided. By the end of 2005,
twenty-six Centers had been opened nationwide, with twenty in Bangkok and the
Metropolitan region, and six Centers upcountry. Five additional Centers are expected
to be put into operation in 2006, providing better service coverage for our customers.

0O Financial Position

® Loans

Retail Business Group Credits Classified by Product

276,894 41,532 .15.00

Total . - Y 100007 318,426 . . - 276; )

Retail business lending 74.26 236,478 210,055 26,423 12.58
Housing loans 20.54 65,415 52,306 13,109 25.06
Credit card products 3.50 12,428 11,650 738 6.31
Other loans 1.30 4,105 2,843 1,262 4439

As of December 31, 2005, the Retail Business Group’s total outstanding loans
were Baht 318,426 million, increasing by Baht 41,532 million, or 15.00 percent, over
the end of 2004. The increase in the Group’s total loans in 2005 was due mainly to a
Baht 26,423 million increase in retail business lending, mostly in promissory notes.
However, in terms of over-year percent changes, the product with the highest growth
was housing loans that grew by 25.06 percent over the end of 2004.

® Deposit Products

Proportion of Deposits Classified by Product Group
(Under the Retail Business Group)

(Unit: Million Baht)

g'ef.' )

Total 00.00° - 571,374 (31,584) “1(5:24
Current accounts 247 14,130 1,139 8.77
Savings.accounts 55.40 316,527 321,652 (5,125) (1.59)
Fixed-term deposit accounts 42.13 240,717 268,315  (27,598) (10.29)

3 months 31.60 180,526 216,523 (35,997) | (16.62)
6 months 2.88 16,458 4,469 11,985 268.29
1 year 6.06 34,613 34,39 217 . - 0.63
© > 2 years 1.59 9,120 12,927 (3,807) (29.45)

As of December 31, 2005, the Retail Business Group’s total deposits amounted
to Baht 571,374 million, falling by Baht 31,584 million, or 5.24 percent, from the end
of 2004. This was due mainly to a fall in fixed-term deposits, particularly in the 3-
month tenor that reported the largest contraction in terms of over-year percent change,
following heightened competition from other deposit-taking institutions, and also from
securities that yield higher returns. It should be noted that these deposits do not
include those of the Corporate Business Group, and are not the Bank’s total deposits.
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3.4 Treasury Group

The Treasury Group’s responsibilities include asset and liability management
and the trading of foreign currencies, equity securities, debt instruments, and
derivatives. The goal is to manage the Bank’s investments to achieve maximum
benefit within appropriate risk levels, and in line with the Bank’s policies and
governing authorities’ rules and regulations. The Group’s tasks also include liquidity
management in accordance with the Bank’s policies and BOT requirements. In
addition, the Group manages investments for trading purposes, which are generally
short-term investments, to provide service to customers in the area of foreign
exchange, debt instruments, and derivative instruments.

Q Business Operations in 2005

In 2005, market yields exhibited great volatility and mixed directions across a
range of maturities, causing heightened interest rate risks for investors, save those with
proper hedging. Mid-term and long-term yields eased during the first half due to the
economic slowdown triggered by the tsunami disaster at the 2004 year-end and higher
oil prices. Yields, however, edged up during the third quarter to early November as a
result of accelerating inflationary pressure and market expectations of aggressive
tightening by the BOT, as well as increases in deposit rates by large commercial
banks. Afterwards, oil prices began to moderate, and yields softened due to rising
demand for long-term investments, compensating for falling demand by commercial
banks associated with declining liquidity.

Yields on short-term debentures have been rising in line with the BOT’s interest
rate tightening. In 2005, the BOT and the U.S. Federal Reserve raised their benchmark
interest rates six and eight times, respectively. As a result, at the end of 2005, the
BOT’s 14-day repurchase rate stood at 4.00 percent, increasing from 2.00 percent at
the end of 2004, while the U.S. Fed Funds rate was at 4.25 percent, increasing from
2.25 percent at the 2004 year-end. A

The liquidity of Thai commercial banks declined throughout 2005, especially at
large commercial banks. This was due to loan extension and heightened competition
for deposits among Thai and foreign banks, as well as mutual fund and life insurance
companies. Such competition was evident in the pricing strategies adopted and
products with high returns offered by these players

As interest rate trends are likely to remain upward both at home and abroad, the
Bank has maintained our interest rate risk policy by not increasing investments in
fixed-income securities, while shifting more weight toward short-term investments.
Meanwhile, our focus has remained on increasing non-interest income through
derivative instruments. At the same time, products yielding higher returns, including
structured products and credit default swap products, have been developed, helping us
to better manage declining liquidity. The Bank has also continued with our strategy of
not increasing investments in equity securities. Meanwhile, the Bank has conducted
more financial transactions related to other types of derivative instruments to meet
with customers’ needs and expand the customer base in this business. Innovative
deposit and investment products have also been developed, enabling us to offer
customers a wider range of saving and investment choices. This, in turn, has helped us
manage our liquidity and adjust our liability structure for a better balance.
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O Financial Position and Operating Performance

As of December 31, 2005, total investments of the Treasury Group were Baht
190,280 million, decreasing by Baht 900 million, or 0.47 percent, from the end of
2004. Investments in the money market accounted for 47.72 percent of the total

investments, while investments in the capital market accounted for the remaining
52.28 percent.

Treasury Group’s Income

(Unit: Million Baht)

[ntefest and Dividend Income
Interbank and money market items 36.06 2,418 1,510 908 60.13
Investments ] 53.92 3,615 3,641 -26 =0.71

Non-interest Income

1,854
1014
8,019

Note: The figures above are managerial figures.

For 2005, the Group had total income of Baht 6,705 million, declining by Baht
1,314 million, or 16.39 percent, from 2004. This was attributed to a decline in non-
interest income of Baht 2,196 million, due mainly to decreases in gains on exchange
and gains on investments in fixed-income securities. Interest and dividend income,
however, increased by Baht 882 million, due to a rising interest rate trend.
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4. Risk Management and Risk Factors ’

4.1 Overall Risk Management

To provide a full range of financial services, KASIKORNBANK operates using
the concept of a ‘financial business group’, which includes subsidiary and associated
companies offering other types of financial services and support functions,
respectively. In doing so, the Bank adheres to service principles that are the utmost in
responsibility and accountability to all stakeholders and customers with regards to
proper risk evaluation. The Bank’s risk management policy consists of the following
main elements:

QO Risk Management Principles

The Bank’s risk management includes credit, market, liquidity, operational, and
other risk management. The principles of Risk-adjusted Return on Capital (RAROC)
and Economic Profit are also used to measure risk management performancé. The
Bank operates under the following Risk Management principles:

® Business Lines Accountable for Risk

Business units own the risks assumed, and are responsible for continuous and
active management of all risk exposures, so that risks and returns are optimally managed
in line with the risk appetite. Meanwhile, support units, which provide services to core
business units and share common business goals, are accountable for managing business-
derived operational risks.

® Independent Risk Controls
An independent risk control process is implemented with the establishment of
control functions responsible for providing an independent and objective view of risk-

taking activities to safeguard the integrity of the entire risk process. In addition, these
control functions are set to ensure that the risk level is in line with the risk appetnte

® Defined Risk Management Pollcy »
Risk Management Committee ‘determines  risk management policy under
guidelines from.the Bank’s Board of Directors.
® Integrated Risk Management
The management of various kinds of risks incurred from all aspects of tfxe

Bank’s business transactions is carried out in an integrated framework at all levels within
the organization.

® Risk-adjusted Performance Measurement

The performance of business units is measured and evaluated on a risk-adjusted
basis.

3 For the annual report, this chapter is shown in the “Risk Management and Risk Factors” section.
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O Risk Management Process

To ensure effective risk management, the Bank has outlined a risk management
process, which includes the following key steps:

¢ Risk Identification

Key risks are proactively identified in detail, including types and sources of
risks, as well as other risk-related factors, both internal and external. Assessments and
projections of the Bank’s current and expected risks are also in place.

® Risk Measurement

Various models and methodologies for risk measurements suitable for different
business characteristics are utilized. These models and methodologies are verified,
approved and reviewed, regularly.

® Risk Monitoring and Control

Risk measurement policies and appetites designated by the Bank’s Board of
Directors, which are implemented through various guidelines, procedures and risk limits,
are continuously monitored.

® Risk Reporting

Timely and adequate risk reports covering all aspects of operations are required
to ensure highest effectiveness in risk management.

Besides this, in order to avoid large financial losses, and to ensure continuity in
business operations, the risk management process also takes into account both normal
and crisis conditions.

0 Risk Management Structure

The Bank’s organization has been structured to facilitate all aspects of risk
management, while each business unit’s responsibility and segregation of duties have
been clearly identified in accordance with good internal-control practices. The Bank’s
overall risk management framework encompasses the following organizational structure:

® The Bank’s Board of Directors has the ultimate responsibility for approving all

risk management policies and guidelines, setting risk limits and risk appetites,
and ensuring the establishment of effective risk management systems and
“procedures in line with international standards.

® The Audit Commiittee is responsible for reviewing risk management processes

and the internal risk control system, ensuring their adequacy and effectiveness.

Furthermore, the Bank’s Board of Directors has assigned the following committees
and sub-committees to assist in managing various risks. :

o The Risk Management Committee is responsible for overseeing and monitoring
risk management policies and overall risk profile per the policies and
guidelines approved by the Bank’s Board of Directors.
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® The Asset and Liabilities Management Sub-Committee is responsible for
managing interest rate, liquidity and foreign exchange risks.

‘e The Credit Policy Sub-Committee is responsible for establishing credit policies
that are in line with the Bank’s strategies and credit risk appetite.

The day-to-day responsibility for measuring and monitoring all related risks has
been delegated to the Internal Risk Management Department. This department is
accountable for developing sophisticated risk management tools by converting all
related risks into a single comparable term of capital. This concept enables the Bank to
estimate and control the magnitude of various types of risks, set pricing that reflects the
risk level of different customers and businesses, and allocate capital to properly reflect
returns and risk levels.

4.2 Risk Management

Q Credit Risk Management

Credit risk refers to the risk that a counterparty or borrower may default on
_ contractual obligations or agreements. Such default may be caused by the
counterparty’s inability to pay due to financial encumbrances, or their intention not to
abide by the agreements, resulting in a loss to the Bank.

Credit Risk Management Guidelines

In managing credit risk, the Bank has adhered to international guidelines for
compliance with the centralization of credit approval processes and separation of sales
and credit decisions to promote the Bank’s transparency. Nevertheless, credit-related
officials, particularly SME Business Sales Agents, Relationship Managers and
Underwriters, all share goals in attaining credit quality and business development.

Furthermore, emphasis has been placed on credit operational efficiency under
proper monitoring and control processes. Clear roles and responsibilities have been
defined and disseminated to all staff levels, while clear guidelines and principles are
used to increase value in credit operations, improve the credit culture, and foster a
common credit language. In addition, staff have steadily received credit skills training
to better serve customers, while automated. operational and support systems of the
highest standards and efficiency have been developed.

Credit Policies and Credit Risk Management Tools

To enhance credit risk management efficiency, the Bank has fully utilized
various credit risk management tools. Business strategies based on an acceptable risk
appetite have been established in order to define clearer operational targets for staff.
These business strategies have been translated into a consistent set of credit policies
and action plans that cover all customer segments and product lines. Proper
qualifications for credit eligibility are established within these policies and guidelines,
which comply with, and go beyond, the rules and regulations of the BOT.

In addition to the Bank’s constant improvemients in our credit risk management
tools, credit policies are regularly reviewed and updated to ensure that they are in line
with the guiding principles and rationale, and are always available as a reference for
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staff through the Bank’s online information system. Customer risk rating tools have
been developed and utilized, supporting credit underwriting and setting appropriate
pricing for each customer. As for performing business customers, their credit ratings
are classified into twelve different ratings, while three ratings are specifically set up
for non-performing business customers. Regarding retail customers, credit scoring is
in place to improve credit approval standards and efficiency. When calculating the
Risk-adjusted Return on Capital (RAROC), the cost of funds and related operating
expenses are included, while the expected loss component from the credit risk is
‘factored in as well. In so doing, prices are set in accordance with each individual
customer and customer segment, depending on the credit portfolio management of
each business group.

After completing key tasks such as the reorganization of credit operations, as
well as development and updates in credit risk management tools, procedures and
policies, the Bank, in 2005, shifted the focus to organizing training programs for credit
operations staff. For example, in August 2005, the Skills Improvement Program for
credit operations employees of the Retail Business Group was completed. More skills
improvement programs are also in the pipeline, to further sharpen our staff’s
operational skills and efficiency.

Significant attention has also been given to the control of loan limit
concentrations in different dimensions, i.e., industry, product fypes, customer
characteristics and geographical locations. Each credit limit dimension is monitored
continuously with an official portfolio report generated on a monthly basis to make
certain that loan portfolio quality is in line with the Bank’s business plans. The Bank
has, at this time, yet to note any over-concentration in any industry or area in granting
loan approvals. Meanwhile, the Bank has closely followed the quality of loans
extended to the areas affected by bird flu, the tsunami disaster and the Southern unrest,
and thus has been little affected by these crises. Our loan extensions to these affected
areas are also reported on a monthly basis to the Ministry of Finance.

* Credit Underwriting and Approval Procedures

At present, the Bank has centralized credit underwriting and approvals for clear
and standardized credit procedures, with an approval process and system that is
designed to suit our customers, whose needs and characteristics are multi-dimensional.
To support operational personnel in making risk analyses using the same standards,
the Bank employs credit rating tools that measure both quantitative aspects -- referring
to customers’ financial performance -- and qualitative data focusing on trends and
competitiveness of businesses, including management quality. ‘

In the underwriting and approval processes of retail lending, which includes
credit card services, personal loans, housing loans and retail business loans, the Bank
has utilized an automatic credit evaluation system known as the “Loan Origination
System” (LOS), covering “Credit Scoring”, which is based on the Bank’s historical
customer data, while risks are managed as a portfolio. The Bank is in the process of
extending the use of Corporate LOS to cover lending to middle- and large-scale
business customers. Also, the Bank has developed a credit rating system for various
countries and financial institutions that the Bank does business with in money market
activities, derivatives and investments.

The Bank has also made efforts to improve our credit approval and contract
signing processes for upcountry customers by upgrading these procedures to a uniform
standard nationwide, and thus improving overall credit quality. This includes the
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adoption of a standardized business loan application form for loan requests up to Baht
7 million, rather than using the former credit application form. To enhance the clarity
-of criteria for credit approvals, loan applications now request further evidence
pertaining to the applicant’s debt servicing ability, and the ratio between credit lines
and collateral. For credit analyses on loan applications exceeding Baht 7 million, the
Bank carries out a financial position analysis, based on the customers’ financial
statements, in addition to the new standardized credit application form.

In addition, for personal loans and credit cards, credit operations have been
clearly separated from product development, for greater flexibility and efficiency. In
doing so, credit processes and marketing operations have been more clearly divided.
Besides this, the Bank, in the second half of 2005, upgraded the credit operational
structure for small- to medium-sized business customers, for higher quality in risk
management.

Post-Credit Approval Operations

The Bank has set up an operations center for post-credit approvals in order to
create standardized and efficient operations. This centralized unit is responsiblé for
consolidating all required contracts and setting up credit lines, as well as maintaining
lending agreements and collateral documents. Continuing from the previcus year, the
Bank, throughout 2005, furthered the design and implementation of post-crédit
approval operations, extended and standardized nationwide.

Risk Asset and Credit Process Review

The Bank established the Risk Asset Review Department to review the quality of
credit underwriting and efficiency of credit processes. For steady and efficient
development of the credit processes, this department also prepares audit reports and
suggestions on these matters for dissemination to senior executives and related
departments.

® OQutstanding Loans

As of December 31, 2003, the Bank’s consolidated outstanding loans stood at
Baht 626,946 million, increasing by 5.80 percent over Baht 592,588 million at the end
of 2004. The amount rose by 2.04 percent over Baht 614,439 million at the end of
September 2005.

As of the end of 2005, 58.83 percent of the Bank’s outstanding loans to
customers were loans exceeding Baht 20 million. Credit extended to the 20 largest
borrowers, excluding Phethai Asset Management Company Limited and the
companies in KASIKORNBANKGROUP, accounted for Baht 42,926 mil_lion, or 691
percent of the Bank’s total loan portfolio. Classified by customer type, juristic persons
accounted for 375,036 million, or 60.38 percent of outstanding loans, while sole
proprietor and individual customer borrowing accounted for the remaining 39.62
percent. In terms of maturity, credit with maturity of less than or equal to 1 year
accounted for 64.56 percent of the Bank’s total loans.
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~ The Bartn_lk‘_’s': Consolidated Lending Portfolio - Proﬁle

The Bank’s consolidated lending portfolios, including accrued interest
receivables, as of the end of 2005 and 2004, were as follows:

The Bank’s Consolidated Lending Portfolio
(including Accrued Interest Receivables)
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The Bank reviews loan portfolios on a monthly basis, in terms of growth and
quality compared with those of competitors and the Bank’s past performance. The
focus is on matters such as industry concentrations, the current situation in each
industry group, credit exposure by product type and customer group, collateral and
geography.
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® Non-performing Loans

As of December 31, 2005, NPLs of the Bank and its AMCs stood at Baht 56,217
~million, equal to 8.88 percent of the total outstanding credit, in¢luding that of financial
institutions. For Bank-only NPLs, the amount totaled Baht 44,388 million, accounting
for 7.08 percent of the total outstanding credit, including that of financial institutions.
NPL figures, as of the end of 2005 and 2004, are shown in the table below.

(Unit: Million Baht)

Xy

- The Bank and its AMCs® NPLs 56,217 72,809

Percent of total outstanding credit, including that of financial

mstltutlons _ v _ - 888 N »71,2.30
The Bank’s NPLs. . .- o L 44388 56870
Percent of! total outstandmg credlt mcludmg that of ﬁnancnal o - T
institutions . . 7 ., T 4L A .5

In 2005, the Bank and its AMCs entered into debt restructuring agreements with
borrowers with pre-written-off outstanding debts totaling Baht 40,628 million. At the
same time, the Bank-only pre-written-off outstanding debt amounted to Baht 34,337
million. The details of debt restructuring and losses from debt restructuring in 2005
and 2004 are shown in the following table.

(Unit: Million Bahr)

; nding :

Debt restructuring of the Bank and its AMCs 40,628 57,455
Losses from debt restructuring _ 3,792‘ ‘9,127
Debt. restructurmg of the: Bank o R o 3337 40,873

Losses from debt restructurmg R -~ | I 7% 13

® Allowance for Doubtful Accounts

As of December 31, 2005, the Bank’s consolidated allowances for doubtful
accounts totaled Baht 37,439 million. This amount was equivalent to 143,90 percent of
the level required by the BOT. As for Bank-only allowances for doubtful accounts, the
amount stood at Baht 29,076 million, which was equivalent to 143.29 percent of the
level required by the BOT.

® TForeclosed Properties

As of December 31, 2005, the Bank’s consolidated foreclosed properties had a
cost value of Baht 20,520 million, accounting for 2.45 percent of total assets. At the
same time, Bank-only foreclosed properties had a ‘cost value totaling Baht 15,225
million, accounting for 1.82 percent of total assets, while consolidated allowances for
impairment of foreclosed properties stood at Baht 3,057 million, accountin'g for 14.90
percent of the cost value of foreclosed properties. As for Bank-only figures,
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allowances for impairment of foreclosed properties were at Baht 2,622 million,
accounting for 17.22 percent of the cost value of foreclosed properties. Current
allowances, both consolidated and Bank-only, are believed to be sufficient to cover
holding, maintenance and disposal expenses, and losses on the liquidation of
foreclosed properties. The details of foreclosed properties and their associated
allowances, as of the end of 2005 and 2004, are shown below.

» »('Unit: Million tht)

Consolidated foreclosed properties

Percent of total assets

Allowances for impairment of consolidated foreclosed properties

Percent of consohdated foreclosed propemes

Bank-only foreclosed propertles

Percent of total assets

Aliowances for ) éfpcr’t_ies B

Percent, of Bank only ‘foreclose prop

® Phethai Asset Management Company Limited, and Ploy Asset
Management Company Limited

As of December 31, 2005, Phethai AMC had resolved and/or restructured NPLs
amounting to Baht 50,673 million, or 68.47 percent of the total initial unpaid principal
balance, with an expected recovery rate of 52.00 percent. For Ploy AMC, its all assets
were transferred to the Bank and Phethai AMC on March 15, 2005, making Ploy
AMC’s cumulative loans resolved/restructured equal to zero at the 2005 year-end. The
details of the NPL resolving and/or restructuring in the past five quarters are shown in
the table below. .

(Unit: Million Baht)

Phethai Asset Management Company Limited

Cumulative loans resolved/restructured 49,269 47,971 45,207 43,943 44,555
Percent of the total initial iinpaid

prmcnpal balance ' 66 57 64.81 61.10 67.86 . 68.80

Ploy; Asset Management Company lelted

Cumulatlve loans resolved/rest ctured -v‘f,l."a'-:*‘-_ Cna* - nat na* 30,659
Percerit of the:total mmal unpal A . ‘
pnnc1palbalance L iyt ona® o ooma® . - onat At 74.43

Note: * On March 15, 2008, all assets of Ploy AMC were transferred to the Bank and Phethai AMC, making Ploy
AMC’s cumulative loans résolved/restructured equal to zero from the end of the first quarier onward. In the
meantime, Ploy AMC remains under liquidation process.
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® Thai Asset Management Corporation (TAMC)

The Bank has transferred the sub-quality debts of 266 borrowers, who all had
characteristics as stipulated in the Emergency Decree on the Thai Asset Management
Corporation (B.E. 2544) and the Asset Transfer Agreement, to TAMC. Benchmarked
to the appraised value of collateral in accordance with BOT regulations, the total
transferred assets with a gross book value of Baht 14,596 million as of their dates of
‘transfer, were priced at Baht 10,123 million, or 69.54 percent of gross book value.

(Unit: Million Baht)

2001 216 12,171 9,203
2002 34 { 2,215 774
2003 10 124 70
2004 . 4 67 61
2005 BT U S
Total 266 14,59 1023

Note: The figures were adjusted for the corrections of transferred debts and their transfer
values, as well as the deduction of reversal of transferred debts not satisfying
transferal terms and conditions.

In exchange for the transferred assets, TAMC issued the Bank a 10-year, non-
transferable, callable note, guaranteed by the Financial Institution Development Fund
(FIDF). The note yields an annual coupon, reset quarterly, at the weighted average of
deposit rates of five major Thai commercial banks, paid for by a 1-year, extendable,
non-transferable, FIDF-guaranteed note. In 2005, the Bank recorded interest
amounting to Baht 51.43 million, equivalent to a yield of 0.92 percent.

Despite the asset transfer to TAMC, the Bank remains exposed to a proportion of
risk in our share of TAMC’s potential losses. According to the Emergency Decree on
the Thai Asset Management Corporation (B.E. 2544) and the Asset Transfer
Agreement, at the end of the fifth and tenth years beginning July 1, 2001, TAMC and
the Bank will share gains or losses arising from the resolution of the Bank’s
transferred assets. From this, the Bank may be liable for up to 30 percent of the
aggregate transferred price.

Q Market Risk Mhna‘gement

Market risk stems from changes in interest rates and exchange rates, as well as in
securities and commodity prices, which can cause volatility in the Bank’s income or
the economic value of assets and liabilities, either at present or in the future.

Market Risk Management Guidelines

The Bank adheres to market risk management principles that are efficient and
suitable for the changing environment, while asset and liability structures are properly
managed, and market risk is controlled in accordance with the risk appetite. Also, the
Bank’s market risk management is set to comply with the BOT’s requirements and
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related regulations, and with the policies controlled by the Risk Management
-Committee. In addition, transparency in our market risk management structure has
continually been maintained, reflecting segregation of duties, while independence of
risk control functions has been emphasized.

Market Risk Management Procedures and Tools

Core banking operation that is exposed to market risk can be divided into two
major groups: asset and liability management activities and trading book transactions.

1. Market Risk in Asset and Liability Management Activities
1.1 Interest Rate Risk Management

The Asset and Liability Management Sub-Committee (ALCO) is responsible
for monitoring and controlling interest rate risk stemming from mismatches between
the interest rate and the asset and liability structures of the Bank. ALCO’s objective is
to generate the highest returns to the Bank, while maintaining risk within levels .
approved by the Internal Risk Committee and the Board of Directors.

The.Bank’s approach to evaluating interest rate risk is based on an analysis of
repricing periods of Bank’s assets and liabilities. Mismatches in asset and liability
repricing periods indicate the interest rate risk level taken by the Bank. Sensitivity
analyses are used to analyze the effect of changes in deposit rates, lending rates,
money market rates and capital market rates on the Bank’s interest income over the
next twelve months, as well as on our financial position and off-balance-sheet items.
With results obtained from these sensitivity analyses, the Bank’s asset and liability
structures, which are linked to various types of interest rates, are properly managed.

The Value at Risk (VaR) concept is also employed. VaR is a statistical tool
that attempts to specify the probability distribution of risks by using historical data of
relevant variables. This helps forecast the potential maximum loss to the Bank at
specified confidence levels.” Furthermore, the Bank conducts stress testing, in
supplementing the VaR method, to enhance completeness of risk. measurement.
Meanwhile, the Bank’s interest rate risk management process has been developed in
accordance with the BOT’s interest rate risk supervision policy applied to financial
institutions’ banking books, enacted in 2006,

Analyses of financial assets and liabilities based on contractual reprlcmg
perlods as of the end of 2005 and 2004, are shown below: :
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Consolidated Financial Statement as of December 31, 2005

+ (Unit; Million Baht)

Financial Assets

Cash - - - - - 14,913 - 14,913

t
x;lriﬁirﬁd money 4,941 51,644 7,187 - 2208| - 65,980
Securities purchased 9.500 9,500
under resale agreements ’ ) ) ) ) ) ’
Investment 16,417 25,939 9,332 23,690 9,427 15,253 2,573 102,631
Loans 429,267 84,624 8,635 24,664 8,124 1,4551 70,177 626,946
Accrued interest 745 | 745
receivables ) ) : ) ’
Customers' liability under
acceptances i - - - - 857 - 857
Other assets _ - - - - - 6,064 - 6,064
Total : 828,63¢
Rinancial Liabilities: T A I EREA o
Deposits 390,160 190,861 58,396 8,801 - 39,563 - 687,781
Int; k and
o oo money L7200 1L,985| 1,013 515 600 3675 - 19,508
ﬁ;i!:;lr:gcs payable on i ) ) ) i 5,904 ) 5,904
Borrowing 741 6,266 550 - 20,170 - - 27,727
Bank’s liabili

ank’s liability under ) ) ) ) ] 857 ) 857
acceptances
Other liabilities - - - - 6,267
‘ N 209,117 | 748,044

0f" 80,592
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Consolidated Firancial Statement as of December 31, 2004

(Unit: Million Baht

Total -

- Financial Assets:

Cash - - - - - 13,536 - 13,536
Interbank and money .

market items 4,263 65,404 3,516 20 - 3,062 - 76,265
Securities purchased )

under resale agreements - © 19,040 - - - - - 15,040
Investment 16;457 14,177 7,646 56,247 7,537 8,335 3,985 114,384
Loans 376,499 71,698 4,358 29,884 10,525 1,276 98,349 | 592,589
Accrued interest

receivables - - - - - 2,455 - 2,455
Customers' liability under )

acceptances - - - - - 743 - 743
Other assets 7 ) 6,166
Total 3972197 17031 825,178
Financial Liabilities = R _
Deposits 384,552 | 255,939 21,017 6,113 705,570
Interbank and money

market items 593 3,432 3,246 200 11,525
Liabilities payable on

demand - - - - - 7,426 - 7,426
Borrowing - - 3,843 - 19,768 - - 23,611
Bank’s liability under

acceptances - - - - - 743 - 743
Other l';abilities - - - - - 7,146 - 7,146

L 756,021
80,03 0187

1.2 Foreign Exchange Risk Management v
The Treasury Group carries out daily purchases and sales of foreign
currencies, which can create exchange rate risk, thereby affecting the Bank’s Profit
and Loss, and the economic value of assets and liabilities. The Bank has a policy of
keeping this risk at a low level by setting limits on foreign currency positions in
accordance with the Bank’s business and requirements of the BOT. These limits are
under the close supervision of the Internal Risk Management Department and the
Asset and Liability Management Sub-Committee.
In addition, the¢ Value at Risk (VaR) method is used to manage foreigh

exchange risk.
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1.3 Equity Risk Management

The Bank does not have a policy of extending our equity investments, and
plans to reduce the size of these investments that are unrelated to our core financial
business. In this endeavor, we will analyze relevant information and timing to ensure
maximum benefit to the Bank.

2. Market Risk in Trading Book Transactions

Trading book transactions are handled under the guidance of the Bank’s policy
set particularly for activities that involve the purchase and sale of fixed-income
securities and derivative instruments, as well as the purchase and sale of currencies.
Market risks, incurred from changes in interest rates, exchange rates and derivative
obligations that are related to the above trading book activities, are managed by the
Treasury Group under the close supervision of the Internal Risk Management
Department and the Risk Management Committee. This is to make certain that risk
inherent in the Balance Sheet is within limits, while these limits are constantly
monitored through the use of the Value-at-Risk Limit and Sensitivity Limit methods.

Furthermore, a stress testing system has been developed, which allows an
estimation of potential losses caused by various shocks on the Bank’s financial
positions. A testing procedure for the Bank’s VaR model, so called ‘Back Testing’,
has also been improved and implemented for sound market risk measurement. From
two charts below, the chart on the left shows a comparison between estimated results
from the VaR method and hypothetical profits and losses. It was found that differences
between the two series are within a satisfactory level. In the meantime, the Bank also
monitors distribution of daily market risk-related gains and losses, as shown in the
chart on the right, to complement our routine risk analyses. All of these analytical
assessments confirm the capability of the Bank’s risk management tools, thereby
promoting efficient market risk management in line with international standards.

Back Testing for Trading Portfolio Daily market risk-related gains and tosses

Van

Frequency

—— Loss Profit ——

Additionally, the Bank has completed development of a new work procedure
complying with the BOT’s new regulations regarding capital adequacy for market risk
in trading book transactions, implemented in 2005. Key systems and processes have
also been put in place for efficient and up-to-date risk management targeting
transactions related to new derivative instruments and financial products. Besides this,
the Bank plans to further strengthen our risk management efficiency by implementing
a credit risk measurement system and the RAROC concept on more complex
derivative instrument transactions.
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O Liquidity Risk Management

Liquidity Risk stems from failure to meet obligations when they come due, due
to an inability to convert assets into cash, or to obtain sufficient funds to meet the cash
needs with appropriate costs within limited time periods, which may then result in a
loss to the Bank.

Liquidity Risk Management Guldelmes

The Treasury Group is responsible for managing liquidity in order to meet the
cash needs of the Head Office and branches by managing highly liquid Baht and
foreign currency assets, as well as balancing short-term and long-term funding
alternatives. The Asset and Liability Management Sub-Committee (ALCO) is
responsible for setting policies and guidelines for managing liquidity, which must
comply with liquidity risk standards approved by the Internal Risk Committee and the
Board of Directors.

Liquidity Risk Management Procedures and Tools

In managing liquidity risk, the Bank has established appropriate levels of liquid
assets that should be maintained to sufficiently meet cash needs when demand arises,
and to be in line with the BOT guidelines. As of December 31, 2005, liquid assets held
by the Bank and its subsidiaries totaled Baht 189,906 million, consisting of cash,
interbank and money market items, securities purchased under resale agreements, and
net investments in securities. This amount had decreased by Baht 29, 477 million from
the level on December 31, 2004.

The future liquidity requirements are assessed by estimating expected cash
inflows and outflows in different currencies based on both normal and crisis situations,
while relevant factors related to assets and liabilities, as well as contingent obligations,
are taken into account in this estimation. In addition, emergency funding plans that
outline processes for dealing with liquidity shortages durmg crises have been set to
ensure smooth business operations.

" Additionally, monitoring changes in the balance sheet structure on a constant
basis is another important procedure for liquidity risk management. Calculations and
analyses of various liquidity ratios are conducted, as they are used as early warning
indicators to facilitate liquidity management and related decision-making. An
important liquidity ratio is the Loan-to-Deposit Ratio, which stood at 91.15 percent as
of December 31, 2005, increasing from 83.99 percent at the end of 2004,

To promote a better-balanced structure of funding sources and an appropriate
combination of long-term and short-term funding, as well as to provide more
alternatives in investments for the public and the Bank’s depositors, the Bank, in 2005, -
issued short-term debentures of Baht 11,310 million, which consist of our Short-Term
Debenture Project 1/2005, offered in 9 sets with a maturity between 3-9 months, and
Short-Term Debenture Project 2/2005, offered in 4 sets with a maturity of 3 months.
In addition, the Baht. 741 million structured notes, maturxng in 1 year and 11 months, -
were also launched.

Financial assets and llabllmes as of the end of 2005 and 2004, based on their
contractual maturity, are shown below:
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Consolidated Financial Statement as of December 31, 2005

__(Unit: Million Baht)

Total: .
- Financial ‘Assets i . . . . . :
Cash - - - - - 14,913 14,913
Interbank and money market items 6,784 52,009 7,187 - - . - _65’980
Securities purchased under resale
- 9,500 - - - - 9,500

agreements

Investment 557 26,123 17,611 34,526 18,653 5,161 102,631
Loans 150,883 | 236,351 9,511 99,751 130,450 - 626,946
Accrued interest receivables 173 1,271 - 42 259 - 1,745
Customers' liability under

acceptances . - 857 - - - - 857
Other assets - 1,625 - - - 6,064
Total: .~ o+ o lctolrs8397900 327936 ) 34,300 ) 134,316 149362 | 245513 ¢ . 828,636 |
: Financial Tiabilities: [ oo | '
Deposits 429,723 190,861 58,396 8,801 - - 687,781
Interbank and money market items 5,395 9,985 1,013 515 2,600 - 19,508
Liabilities payable on demand 5,904 - - - - - 5,904
Borrowing - 6,266 550 741 20,170 - 27,727
Bank’s liability under acceptances - 857 - - - - 857
Other liabilities 96 1,066 138 18 - 4,949 6,267
CTofal 209, 097 U4,949 | 748,044
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Consolidated Financial Statement as of December 31, 2004

(Unit: Million Baht)

Financial Assets

Cash ‘ - - - - - 13,536 13,536
Interbank and money market )

items 6,926 65,803 3,516 20 - - 76,265
Securities purchased under :

resale agreements - 19,040 - - - - 19,040
Investment 5,763 11,444 8,178 66,518 17,037 5,442 114,384
Loans 163,479 | 202,757 7,023 98,353 120,977 - 592,589
Accrued interest receivables - 2,455 - - - - 2,455
Customers' liability under- '

acceptances - 743 - - - - 743
Othe»r assets - 1,818 6,166
Total . .. 176,170 304,060 | 825,178
Financial Liabilities - 1 A S

Deposits 422,501 | 255,939 705,570
Interbank and money market

items 4,032 2,932 1,146 200 3,215 - 11,525
Liabilities payable on demand 7,426 - - - - - 7,426
Borrowing - - 3,843 - 19,768 - 23,611
Bank’s liability under
acceptances - 743 - - - - 743
Other liabilities 10| 89| 79 39 - 6049 | 7,141
Total | 434,069 |'260:483 | - 26085 | 20,083, 6,049 ], 756,021

Q Operational Risk Managvement

Operational risk refers to risk of direct or indirect losses on income or capital,
resulting from inadequate or failed internal processes, people and systems, or from
external events.

Operational Risk Management Guidelines

Operational risk exists with all banking products, processes, operational units
and IT systems, which potentially can incur losses to the Bank, as well as to our
customers and shareholders. The Bank thus places great emphasis on effective
operational risk management, and has continually introduced risk management
policies to guard against such losses. The objective of these policies is to implement
effective Operational Risk Management (ORM) mechanisms in operational processes
appropriate to the ever-changing business environment, and comply with the
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regulations of the BOT, as well as other relevant laws and the initiatives of the
international banking community.

The overriding principle of the Bank’s operational risk management is to induce
all employees to accept accountability for, as well as understand and see the
importance of, operational risk management in limiting losses. Responsibility for
overseeing effective risk management lies with the Risk Management Committee,
which sets the operational risk management framework and guidelines for
implementation within the Bank, as well as all subsidiaries and associated companies.

Operational Risk Management Procedures and Tools

The Bank’s procedures for management of operational risk include risk
identification, measurement, monitoring, control and reporting. All of these processes
have been carried out at regular intervals for an accurate risk measurement and
effective risk control in accordance with risk appetite. Internationally-accepted tools
have been developed and continuously employed to assess and track operational risk
management. These tools include:

® Control Self-Assessment (CSA) — The Bank employs self-assessment tools
within its business and support units, and also applies these tools to products
and financial services to identify important matters of operational risk, as
well as to effectively control and prevent losses. Knowledge about risk
control and prevention is disseminated to operational staff to instill
awareness and prudence in their work. Results of self-assessments are
regularly reported to the Risk Management Committee to present an
overview of the current situation.

® Operational Loss Event Database (LED) — The Bank has implemented a
database to log, record and report on operational risk incidents, along with
analyses of the actual causes of the risk, and standard methodologies used in
ameliorating or correcting each problem. This helps prevent repetition of
such operational incidents, and aids in situational modeling for the
computation of adequate capital reserves agamst operational risk, for future
reference.

® Key Risk Indicators (KRI) — The Bank has put in place various KRI to
reflect levels of risk, such as indices of risk-based systems, employee and
process factors. In cooperation with business units that own the risk,
operational risk management staff identify and collect information on these
indices at regular intervals to track changes in the level of risk over time,
which acts as an early warning system against risks that could arise

® Business Contmulty Management (BCM) — The Bank has developed and
improved upon an emergency action plan for dealing with operational risk
incidents that could cause losses sufficient to affect operational continuity.
The plan is intended to protect essential systems, while it is also tested to
ensure that there will be uninterrupted business continuity in the event of a
major operational risk incident.

Aside from this, the Bank, in 2005, has also undertaken assessments of
operational risk in regards to new products and systems development to ensure that
they have acceptable risk levels and appropriate controls in place before they are
introduced to Bank customers. In the matter of fraud committed by external parties,
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the Bank has placed great importance on security against risks inherent to major
products such as credit cards, ATM cards and cheques, etc., for which the Bank has a
special unit tasked with investigation of abnormal transactions and risk factors. The
Bank has also installed state-of-the-art IT equipment and systems to thwart, correct
and/or reduce losses incurred by such crime.

Overall operational risk reports on important products, and reports on operational
risk losses, are regularly presented to the Risk Management Committee to keep the
Committee abreast of current operational risk profiles, ensuring that our work on risk
management is in line with the Bank’s related policies, as well- as international
practices. Furthermore, in order to meet the Basel II standards in terms of capital
reserves for operational risk, the Bank has proceeded with data preparedness and
situational modeling to facilitate computation of necessary capital reserves.

The Bank continues to develop, improve and upgrade our operational risk
management tools, procedures and systems, while the Internal Audit Department is
responsible for reviewing the accuracy, transparency and control of operational risk to
within acceptable levels, and ensuring that work conforms with the Bank’s overal] risk
management standards.

Q Other Risk Management

® Risks from Guarantees and Avals

Certain transactions with customers are in the form of guarantees on
borrowing or performance, letters of credit, or avals on notes. Such transactions are
considered as credit loans, which require submission of collateral. Regarding risk
control in this area, the Bank uses the same criteria as those used for the Bank’s normal
credit approval process. At the end of December 2005, the Bank’s contingent
obligations were Baht 61,910 million, compared to Baht 50,311 million at the end of
December 2004, '

® Risks Incurred from Contractual Obligations of Derivative Instruments

The Bank conducts various derivative transactions as a tool for risk hedging,
including exchange rate, interest rate, and the Bank’s securities price risks. ‘To increase
our income, the Bank also provides derivative instrument trading services to customers
and business allies, as well as conducting our own derivative instrument trading in
accordance with the Bank’s policy. As of December 31, 2005, the Bank had foreign
exchange contracts on the purchase side of Baht 160,114 million, with Baht 265,319
million on the sales side, compared to Baht 77,668 million and 196,807 million at the
end of December 2004, respectively. In addition, the Bank had interest rate contracts
on the purchase side of Baht 118,209 million and Baht 114,723 million on the sales
side, compared to Baht 54,607 million and 50,675 million at the end of December
2004, respectively..

© Risks Related to Capital Adequacy

As of December 31, 2005, the Bank’s capital adequacy ratio, including the risk
assets of Phethai and Ploy AMCs, was at 14.47 percent, which is significantly above
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the BOT minimum requirement of 8.50 percent. Despite our strong belief that the
current capital level is fairly sufficient to absorb possible impacts from a change in
economic situation, the Bank continues to monitor capital closely.

Q Preparations for a New Capital Accord ‘Basel II’

In order to ensure that financial institutions’ capital reserves adequately cover
and better reflect risks, the BOT has designated that Basel II standards on capital
adequacy shall be implemented at banking institutions in Thailand as of the year-end
2008; wherefore, Thai financial institutions will begin reporting their capital adequacy,
according to the Basel II standards in parallel with the present standards, one year in
advance of actual implementation. Currently, the BOT is in the process of discussions
with local financial institutions prior to finalizing regulations by the year-end 2006.

The Bank places great importance on the development of processes and
methodologies to be used for compliance with the Basel II standards. Therefore, the
Bank implemented our own Basel II strategic project in 2005, with the Risk
Management Committee responsible for oversight and follow-up on this important
program. A Basel II implementation team has also been established, composed of
representatives from all relevant business divisions, to develop and improve all
policies, processes, information and systems to comply with the coming Basel II-
related BOT standards.

Q Performance Measurement using Risk-adjusted Return on Capital
(RAROC) and Economic Profit

In 2005, the Bank continued the use of the Value-based Management (VBM)
framework, in which business value drivers are identified through performance
measurement using Risk-adjusted Return on Capital (RAROC) and Economic Profit. In
doing so, the Bank believes that highest value creation will be achieved for our
shareholders. Under the RAROC and Economic Profit guidelines, net profit after
adjusting both the risk charge and the cost of capital is measured and used as a tool to
facilitate effective management and decision-making. In addition, the Bank has
continued to develop models, tools and operational procedures to support the VBM
framework, as well as instill in our staff the principle of value creation in all aspects of
their operations, especially in determining long-term business strategies, setting
business plans and goals, measuring performance and profits, and setting prices. This
will help the Bank achieve returns at appropriate risk levels and reach the expectations
of shareholders, as well as increase the efficiency of capital adequacy management and
capital allocation to all business units.

The VBM framework has been implemented in our business operation for all
levels of customers, customer segments, and products. More training programs on
RAROC and Economic Profit have also been organized for our staff. The Bank expects
to fully implement VBM in all groups in the near future.
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S. Functional Groups

During 2005, the Bank continued our development efforts in many areas, such as
in human resources and in information technology (IT), in order to support core
business groups toward greater efficiency.

O Building an Effective, Performance-Based Organization

With the goal of becoming a competency- and performance-based organization,
the Bank continued with the implementation of human resources projects throughout
the year 2005. To enhance employees’ skills and work efficiency, individual
employees’ goals have been set in a clear and measurable way, while assessments have
been made by comparing the employees’ performance versus their individual goals and
that of their peers. As regards the Bank’s management staff, not only their individual
targets have been set, but “shared goals” have also been introduced, in order to increase
cooperation between departments and operating groups. Also, rewards and other
incentives have been established to encourage performance, based on individual
performance and overall organizational operating results.

Aside from these implementations, the Bank has undertaken extensive surveys of
compensation in the job market to ensure that our levels of compensation are
commensurate and competitive with those offered elsewhere in the market. In 2005, the
Bank increased its employees’ cost-of-living allowance by another Baht 1,000 as a
matter of concern for their welfare under the current economic conditions.

To groom future leaders, the Bank has carried out the “Leadership Development
Program”, which will include training in the fundamentals of leadership capability for
promising employees in preparation for further advancement. Pursuant to this, criteria
for selection and assessment tools have been set in three key areas, i.e., professional
discipline, management capability and leadership competency. The Bank will proceed
with assessment and development of individual development plans, further on.

O Credit Services Unit & Centralized Lending Services Project (CSU/CLS)

Since the first quarter of 2005, the Bank has completed all main credit service
projects. These projects included improvements in credit support and operations to
facilitate centralized operations after credit approval processes. Other projects
completed were the centralization of contract and collateral documents retrieval
systems for the Corporate and Retail Business groups in Bangkok and its Metropolitan
region, the Document Management System (DMS), and the Document & Collateral
Control System (DCS). These systems help to better manage and control internal
viewing and use of important document originals, such as those related to credit
contracts and collateral, thus facilitating faster credit and debt restructuring operations,
while also reducing the risk of loss or damage to originals during physical handling,
and facilitating efficiency in internal auditing.

Q IT Security Policy and Infrastructure

For the highest security in maintenance of customer data, the Bank has
continually upgraded and developed standards for our IT systems. This has included
work that proceeded on the IT Security Policy and ongoing upgrades in the IT

Management Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) 55



infrastructure throughout 2005. In the first quarter of 2005, the Bank completed design
of a secure IT infrastructure put in place to accept China UnionPay credit cards, and a
‘metadirectory’ was implemented to centrally register authorized users of the Bank’s
important system applications. This feature helps prevent unauthorized access to the
Bank’s IT system, while the registry was also upgraded to contemporary standards.
Thereafter, in the second quarter of the year, the Bank expanded the domain of these
new infrastructural improvements to subsidiary companies, the work of which was
completed in the fourth quarter. This has afforded the Bank with the ability to control
and manage the IT system registry with the highest security and efficiency. 4

Likewise, also in the fourth quarter, the Bank proceeded with the development
and implementation of a new security infrastructure for electronic transactions (‘e-
business’) to completion during the period, improving management and control of the
system in preparation for increased e-business transactions. The Bank also introduced
an improved design in the security infrastructure for the Bank’s subsidiaries,
completing the standardization of the entirc KASIKORNBANKGROUP IT system.
In doing so, the entire network’s security has been significantly improved, providing
secure file transfers between the Bank and outlying operational units. Besides this, the
Bank has proceeded with the more detailed electronic security audits, especially for
the Cash Connect system.

Q IT Outsourcing

The Bank, in cooperation with IBM Thailand Co., Ltd., has continued to improve
the efficiency of our IT system under the Transformation Plan. In the first quarter of
2005, improvements in the Disaster Recovery Plan and back-up systems for
mainframes were completed, along with updates in the Local Area Network (LAN)
system. Further enhancements were undertaken in the second quarter of 2005, wherein
complete redesign of the Bank’s LAN and its related systems were commenced prior
to further upgrades and tests, which proceeded throughout the rest of the year, and will
be completed in the first quarter of 2006. In addition, an enterprise architecture team
has been created to manage a new enterprise IT architecture and establish appropriate
standards for future IT development, along with drafting an IT Master Plan to shorten
development timeframes and reduce redundancies in system development, thus
leading to a better IT platform, overall.

Besides this, in the third quarter of 2005, the Bank began implementation of the
Desktop Management System, to link all desktop personal computers of the Bank to a
centralized control center that manages software installations and upgrades on all these
machines using online controls, which will not only help reduce the Bank’s operating
costs, but is also more convenient, and allows more thorough Bank-wide management
of software. Installation of this system was completed in the fourth quarter of 2005.
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6. KASIKORNBANK s Investments in Subsidiary and Associated
Companies

Q Subsidiary and Associated Companies

Subsidiary companies refer to companies where the Bank has invested in more
than 50 percent of the fully paid equity of the company. The Bank has the authority to
control these firms’ financial and operating policies through their boards of directors
and shareholders meetings.

Associated companies refer to companies where the Bank has invested in more
than 20 percent, but not greater than 50 percent, of the fully paid equity in the
company. The Bank has influence upon decision-making with regard to financial and
operating policies through these firms’ sharcholders meetings.

Q Investment Policy

The Bank’s investments in subsidiary companies serve strategic and outsourcing
investment plans, while investments in associated companies are for trading and other
purposes.

® Strategic Investments

The Bank invests in businesses for long-term strategic benefit. The Bank and
subsidiary companies collaborate in reviewing business strategies, as well as co-
operate in business operations and management for maximum efficiency. Such work is
achieved through the use of the Bank’s strengths in our customer base, database and-
quality customer relationships, along with the KASIKORNBANK corporate signature,
which is a vital tool used to present KASIKORNBANKGROUP’s products to
customers.

® QOutsourcing Investments

The Bank invests in companies that support the Bank’s operations. These are
companies providing services that are not the core business of the Bank, and need
flexibility in management. Bank executives are appointed as directors of these
companies in order to have control over their management and operating policies,
aimed at maximizing the Bank’s efficiency and benefits.

® Trading and Other Investments
The Bank invests in associated companies to seek benefit from returns on
investments, such as dividend payments and capital gains, without the intention of

having control over their management. Investments in some cases are a result of debt
restructuring.

The Bank’s investments in subsidiary and assomated companies as of the end of
2005 are listed in the table below. :
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Details of Investments

L2005

- ‘Operating -
Performance”
ABab).
Investment in Asset Manag, tCompanies . . v 0 Ll L
|. PHETHAI ASSET MANAGEMENT CO.,
LTD. Bangkok Services 800,000,000 799,999,993 99.99 Ordinary 253,598,204
Tel. 0-2694-5000 Fax. 0-2694-5202
2. PLOY ASSET MANAGEMENT CO.,
LTD. Bangkok Services 500,000,000 499,599,993 99.99 Ordinary 54,281,858
Tel. 0-2694-5000 Fax. 0-2693-2525
[nvestment in-Subsidiary and Associated Companies
1. PROGRESS GUNPAI CO,, LTD. Bangkok Services 200,000 199,993 99.99 Ordinary 26,853,884
Tel. O-2273-389§ Fax. 0-2270-1262
2. PROGRESS PLUS CO., LTD. Bangkok Services 230,000 229,993 99.99 Ordinary 791,951
Tel. 0-2225-2020 Fax. 0-2270-1273
3. KASIKORN FACTORING CO., LTD. Bangkok Factoring 1,600,000 1,599,994 99.99 Crdinary 83,423,636
Tel. 0-2250-2900 Fax. 0-2275-5165
4. PROGRESS LAND AND BUILDING CO,,
LTD. Bangkok Real Estate 13,200,000 13,199,992 99.99 Ordinary 12,272,451
Tel. 0-2225-9435 Fax, 0-2273-3883 Development
5. KASIKORN RESEARCH CENTER CO.,
LTD. Bangkok Services 100,000 99,993 99.9S Ordinary 1,151,046
Tel. 0-2273-1874 Fax. 0-2270-1569
6. PROGRESS FACILITIES .
MANAGEMENT CO.,LTD. Bangkok Services 50,000 49,993 99.99 QOrdinary 4,373,916
Tel. 0-2273-3289-91 Fax. 0-2273-3292
7. PROGRESS MANAGEMENT CO., LTD. Bangkok Services 60,000 59,993 99.99 Ordinary 4,790,770
Tel. 0-2225-2005 Fax, 0-2273-3883
8. PROGRESS SOFTWARE CO,, LTD. Bangkok Services 100,000 99,994 99.99 Ordinary 22,575,231
Tel. 0-2225-7900 Fax. 0-2270-1197
9. KASIKORN LEASING CO,, LTD. Bangkok Leasing 21,000,000 20,999,994 99.99 Ordinary (88,020,536)
Tel 0-2696-9900 Fax. 0-2696-9977
10. PROGRESS STORAGE CO., LTD. Bangkok Services 30,000 29,993 99.98 Ordinary 7,976,386
Tel. 0-2273-3832 Fax. 0-2271-4784 "
1. PROGRESS SERVICE CO., LTD. Bangkok Services 20,000 19,993 99.97 Ordiriary 10,493,233

Tel. 0-2273-3293-4 Fax. 0-2273-3292
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20050
. ‘Operating

A vPeFf(_)'l’lha!lC?? )

o (Bab)
12. PROGRESS H R €O, LTD. Bangkok  Services 10,000 9,993 99.93 Ordinary 3,020,271
Tcl<‘(.)-2273- 1785-6 Fax 0-2270-1273
13. KASIKORN SECURITIES PCL. Bangkok  Securities 60,000,000 59,989,762 9998 . Odinary  (80,896,193)
Tel. 0-2696-0071 Fax. 0-2696-0099
14 PROGRESS APPRAISAL CO., LTD. Bangkok  Services 5,000 4,992 99.84 Ordinary 8,336,296
Tel. 0-2273-3649 Fax. 0-2270-1051
15. KASIKORN ASSET MANAGEMENT
CO.,LTD. Bangkok  Mutual Fund  27,154274 27,154,273 99.99 Ordinary 241,507,619
Tel. 0-2693-2300 Fax, 0-2693-2320 Management
16. PROCESSING CENTER CO., LTD. Bangkok  Services 100,000 30,000 " 3000 Ordinary 82,504,241
Tel, 0-2237-6330-4 Fax,0-2634-3231
17.NC. AsébCLAiE €O, LTD. Bangkok  Trading 10,000 2,823 28.23 Ordinary (86,527)
Tel, 0-2661-5200 Fax 0-2661-4136
18. RURAL CAPITAL PARTNERS CO., _ ,
LTD. ' Bangkok Joint 1,000,000 275,000 ° 27.50 Ordinary (419,692)
Tel 0-2318-39538 Fax 0—:’2318-3958 ext. 406 Venture
19, PROGRESS INFORMATION CO,LTD.  Bangkok  Services 1,000,000 200,000 20.00 Ordinary  (7,203,337)
Tel 0-2642-7242 Fax 0-2263-8051
20. M GRAND HOTEL CO., LTD. - Bangkok Hote! 100,000,000 20,000,000 20.00 Ordinary (837,883)
Tel 0-2617-1949 Fax 0-2617-1940-1
21.E.S. INDUSTRIES CO., LTD. Pathum Textiles 1,100,000 220,000 20.00 Ordinary .
Tel 0-2516-9124-8 Fax 0-2516-9202 Thani |

* Note: These operating performance figures are shown in subsidiary and associated companies’ financial statements.
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[ EXCELLENCE |

Prasarn Trairatvorakul
President

Ref. CN. 2013/2006

To: The President
The Stock Exchange of Thailand

Board of Directors Meeting No.2/2549

The Board of Directors Meeting of  KASIKORNBANK PUBLIC COMPANY LlMITED
N0.2/2549 held on February 23, 2006 has resolved the following significant matters which will be
proposed to the Shareholders’ Meeting for consideration as follows: |

1.. To approve the Balance Sheet and Statement of Income for the year ended December
31, 2005 which have been considered by the Audit Committee and audited by the Certified Public
Accountant. ‘

2. To approve the appropriation of profit from year 2005 operating results and dividend
payment as follows:

Legal reserve ' Baht 700,000,000
Dividend on ordinary shares Baht 2,976,484,958.75
(Baht 1.25 per share, being 21.37 per cent of the 2005 net profit)
The dividend will be paid by April 18, 2006 to shareholders with names registered in
the Register of Shareholders on March. 17, 2006 at 1200 hours.
According to the Bank's policy in détermining-dividend payment, the Bank will. take
into consideration its operating results as well as long-term returns to shareholders. The Board of
Directors deemed that the rate of dividend specified above is appropriate for its remaining strong

capital funds to accommodate continuous growth and business expansion.

3. To approve the convening of the General Meeting of Shareholders No.94 which will
take place on Friday, April 7, 2006 at 1400 hours at the Bank Head Office No.1 Soi Kasikornthai,
Ratburana Road, Khwaeng Ratburana, Khet Ratburana, Bangkok, to consider the following

agendas :

A2
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Prasarn Trairatvorakul
President

1. To consider adopting the Minutes of the General Meeting 6f Shareholders No.93
Board of Directors’ opinion : It is considered appropriate for the Meeting of
Shareholders to approve the said minutes.

2. To acknowledge the Board of Directors’ report on year 2005 operations
Board of Directors’ opinion:: It is considered appropriate to report the year 2005
operations to the Meeting of Shareholders.

3. To consider approving the Balance Sheet and the Statement of Income for the
year ended December 31, 2005

Board of Directors’:om‘ni_on s It is considered appropriéte for the Meeting of
-Shareholders to approve the'Balance Sheet and the Statement of Income for the
year ended December 31, 2005 which have been considered by the Audit

Committee and have been audited by the Certified Public Accountant.

4. To considef approving the appropriation of profit from .year 2005 operating resuits
and the dividend payment -

Board of Directors’ opinion : It is considered appropriate for the Meeting of
Shareholders to approve the appropriation of profit from: the operating results of
year 2005 and dividend payment as follows:

Legal reserve Baht 700,000,000

Dividend on ordinary shares Baht 2,976,484,958.75

(Baht 1.25 per-share, being 21.37 per cent of the 2005 net profit)

- The dividend will be paid by April 18, 2006 to s_hareholderé registered on March 17,

2006 at 1200 hours.
According to the dividend payment policy, the Bank will take into consideration its
operating reéults as well as long-term returns to shareholders. The Board of
Directors deemed that the rate of dividend specified above i's_‘appropriate for its
remaining strong capifal funds to accommodate continuous growth and business

expansion.
5. To consider the rémuneration of directofs
oard of Directors' opinjon : -t is considered appropriate for the Meeting of
Shareholders to approve the increase of the Board of Directors remuneration, as
recommended by the-Human Resources and Remuneration Committee, as follows:

.3
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President

The closing ‘date of the Bank’s share register book for determining the right to attend the
General Meeting of Shareholders No.94 and the right to receive dividend is from 1200 hours of
March 17, 2006 until the General Meeting of Shareholders No. 94 is finished.

Please be informed accordingly.

Yours sincerety,

Executive Secretary and Shareholder Registration Division
Corporate Communication and Admihistration‘vDepartment .
Tel. 02470 2664 - 7
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« Remuneration for the Board of Directors’ Meeting totaling Baht 1,424,500 per
month; |

e Remuneration for the Audit Committee totaling Baht 231,000 pervmonth;

» Remuneration for the Corporate Governance Committee totaling Baht 99,000
per month;

s Remuneration for the Human Resources and Remuneration Committee totaling
Baht 99,000 per month;

» Remuneration for legal advisor at Baht 330,000 per month;

The proposed remuneration is deemed to be appropriate for the higher scope: of

responsibilities of directors, and is in alignment with the dire(I:to‘rs' remuneration of

comparable commercial banks. |

~The remuneratioh for the Advisory Directors to the Management Committee and
the Directors'’ anUSes remain unchanged.
6. To consider the election of directors to replace those retiring by rotation

Board of Dirggtgrg’ opinion:  The Board of Directors, exclusive of the nominated

‘d'irectors, approved the proposal of the Human Resources and Remuneration

Committee and considered it appropriate for the Meeting of Shareholders to

re-elect Mr. Somchai Bulsook, Ms. Sujitpan' Lamsam, Professor Khunying Suchada

Kiranandana, Mr. Charles L. Coltman, 1Il and Dr. Abhijai Chandrasen, who are due

to retire by rotation, as the Bank’s directors for another term.

7. To consider the appointment and the fixing of remuneration of the auditors

Board of Directors' opinion : It is considered appropriate for the Meeting of

Shareholders to appoint Mr. Supoj Singhasaneh or Mr. Winid Silamongkol or
Mr. Thirdthong Thepmongkorn or Mrs. Wilai Buranakittisopon of KPMG Phoomchai
Audit Limited as the Bank’s auditor, and to fix the remuneration of the auditor for

the year 2006 at Baht 11,410,000 as proposed by the Audit Committee.

8. Other businesses (if any)
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